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JOINT HEARING ON H.R. 4086, THE YOUTH
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ACT

THURSDAY, AUGUST 4, 1994

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, SUBCOMMITTEE ON SELECT
EDUCATION AND CIVIL RIGHTS, AND SUBCOMMITTEE ON
HUMAN RESOURCES, COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND
LABOR, Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 10 a.m., Room 2175,
Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Major R. Owens, Chairman,
presiding.

Members present from Subcommittee on Select Education and
Civil Rights: Representatives Owens, Payne, Scott, and Ballenger.

Staff present: Wanser Green, Robert MacDonald, Chris Krese,
and Lee Cowan.

Members present from Subcommittee on Human Resources: Rep-
resentatives Martinez, Romero-Barcelo, and Molinari.

Staff present: Alex Nock and Lester Sweeting.
Also present: Representative Morella.
Chairman OWENS. Please take your seats. The joint hearing on

H.R. 4086, the Youth Development Block Grant Act, is now in ses-
sion.

Today's hearing on H.R. 4086, the Youth Development Block
Grant Act, will address the plight of our Nation's youth. More so
than in any other time in our Nation's history, our children and
young adults are in peril. They face a national epidemic of violence
in the streets, in their homes, and even in their schools. Teenagers
are the age group most victimized by crime and they live in a Na-
tion where homicide is the leading cause of death among African-
American males and females aged 15 to 24. Since 1984, gun homi-
cides by teenagers have tripled, and an estimated 100,000 children
carry guns to school each day.

In addition to this onslaught of violence, our children face many
other grave challenges. In 1992, there were an estimated 2.9 mil-
lion cases of child abuse and negligence, with over 1,200 resulting
in death. There are an estimated 1,336 babies born to teen mothers
each day. One in five American children lives in poverty. Youths
are dropping out of school in ever-increasing numbers with poor
teens more than three times as likely to drop out; and 68 percent
of those arrested are functionally illiterate. A.pproximately 27 per-
cent of American children live in single-parent homes, or those liv-
ing with two parents have both parents working one and two jobs
in order to support their family.

To ensure that our young reach their full potential, we must
make the needed investments without which our Nation will not

(1)
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prosper. In order to learn to respect and be respected, our children
need positive experiences to counter the negatives they face every
day. We need to attack the whole problem, including those faced
by the child, the family and the community. We need to coordinate
a comprehensive school- and community-based effort to face these
problems head on. We need to send a message to our youth that
they are worth saving. We need to start now.

[The prepared statement of Hon. Mgjor R. Owens follows..]
STATEMENT OF HON. MAJOR R. OWENS, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE

STATE OF NEW YoRx

Today's hearing on H.R. 4086, the Youth Development Block Grant Act, will ad-dress the plight of our Nation's youth. More so than in any other tbne in our Na-
tion's history, our children and young adults are in peril. They face a national epi-
demic of violence in the streets, in their homes, and even in their schools. Teenagers
are the age group most victimized by crina and they live in a Nation where homi-
cide is the leading cause of death among African-American males and females aged
16-24. Since 1984, gun homicides by teenagers have tripled, and an estimated
100,000 children carry guns to school fach day.

In addition to this onslaught of vioknce, our children face many other grave chal-
lenges. In 1992, there were an estimated 2.9 million cases of child abuse and ne-
glect, with over 1,200 resulting in death. There are an estimated 1,336 babies born
to teen mothers each day. One in five American children live in poverty. Youths are
dropping out of school in ever-increasing numbers; and 68 percent of those arrested
are functionally illiterate. Approximately 27 percent of American children live in
single-parent homes, or those living with two parents have both parents working
one and two jobs in order to support their family.

To ensure that our young reach their full potential, we must make the needed
investments without which our Natan will not prosper. In order to learn to respect
and be respected, our children need positive expenences to counter the negatives
they face every day. We need to attack the whole problem, including those faced bythe child, the family and the community. We need a coordinated, comprehensive,
school- and community-based effort to face these problems head on. We need to send
a message to our youth that they are worth saving. We need to start now.

Chairman OWENS. We have just heard the bell for a vote. I am
going to ask Mr. Ballenger if it is all right if I let Mr. Martinez
make an opening statement, because he has to go and he won't be
able to come back; and then we will continue with opening state-
ments after we come back from the vote. We will recess for ten
minutes for a vote.

Mr. Martinez.
Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is really an honor

to be able to work with you again. I have always had a great deal
of pleasure in working with my distinguished colleague from New
York, Mr. Owens, and this is no less an honor in this particular
endeavor.

As Chairman of the Subcommittee on Human Resources, I would
say that our committee has had some experience with legislation
that deals with at-risk youth. We have jurisdiction over the juve-
nile delinquency prevention program, and in that, we have held
countless number of hearings. As the Chairman has said, there are
a great many youth at risk out there, and there is a great deal of
violence in our streets that doesn't necessarily have to exist. I no-
tice that the Boys and Girls Clubs of Greater Washington are going
to testify here today, and one of the young men that will testify
gives us the experience of how that experience changed his life.

I know firsthand how that works, because in my own district in
the City of Monterey Park, where I was the mayor, there was a
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Boys and Girls Club initiated there; and I happened to be Chair-
man of theor actually President of the Rotary Club at the time,
and took on as a Rotary responsibility the sponsorship of that club.
And there were many people in the community that had questions
about what the club would be. Would it be a gang headquarters or
something else? As it turned out, it was just the opposite. What it
turned out to be is a deterrent to gangs.

There was one particular gang that had just started called Poor
Side, and it was appropriately named because it came from a very
poor side of town. The fact is that with the Boys Club influence

v there and the tutoring that the directors of the Boys Club gave the
young people there, today there is no Poor Side. That gang no
longer exists.

That may be an exception, but I don't think so. I think in many
places and in many cases, especially in individual's lives, it isn't
the exception; it is the rule, as will be testified to today by youth
from the Greater Washington Boys and Girls Club.

But having said all of that, I think that there is something that
we need to do in order to be able to facilitate the funds that we
have, the limited amount of funds that we have on the Federal
level to be able to extend that as far and as far-reaching as we can.
And for that reason, I look forward to the witnesses that are going
to testify here today, and thank them for taking their time to come
and testify before us.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Martinez follows:]

STATEMENT OF HON. MATTHEW G. MARTINEZ, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM
THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. First let me say that I am honored to again have this
opportunity side by side with my distinguished colleague from New York. In addi-
tion, I would like to extend a welcome to today's witnesses and other individuals
to this hearing on the Youth Development Block Grant Act.

As Chairman of the Subcommittee on Human Resources, some would say that I
have some experience with at-risk youth. Let me add that growing up in East Los
Angeles gave me first hand experience and I could be witness as to the conditions
in which our youth live and to the benefits of programs, such as those that have
joined together within the National Collaboration for Youth.

I am familiar with the good work of many of these local and national organiza-
tions. A members of the Rotary Club in Monterey Park we worked hard to estab-
lish a locb.l boys and girls club in my neighborhood. Our community was in the posi-
tion to know what was needed for the kids in our city, who betterand it has made
a differencenot only co the kids, but also to the parents and the entire community.
They feel the immedinte and lasting effect.

The need to provide other alternatives to today's youth must go beyond what we
have done in the past.

We can't ask our schools to be everything.
Statistics indicate that kids spend approximately 40 percent of their free time out

of schoolwhere are they? What are they doing?
They are hanging with their friends on the streets or in the malls.
We've known for some time that kids need structure, the interest of a concerned

adult, constructive, positive alternatives to gangs and drugsso many of the things
our youth go without.

Tuesday, Education and Labor began its hearings into welfare reform.
Many of these kids who are the targets of these programs will soon be making

decisions that may lead them onto the welfare rollsas teen parents.
One of our colleagues in the other body says that he is convinced that most teen

pregnancies occur between 3 p.m. and 6 p.m.when unsupervised and idle children
begin to explore their physical desires.
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While I don't quite agree with this theory, I do believe that kids who go unsuper-
vised for great amounts of time will participate in irresponsible behavior of any na-
ture.

The programs that have joined together in promoting H.R. 4086 use proven, effec-
tive alternatives that fill idle time with valuable activities that teach these kids that
someone cares and that there are better and more productive things in which they
can be involved.

Among the many positive aspects of the Youth Development Block Grant is the
attention to local Involvement and the involvement of youth in the design and im-
plementation of activities.

It is my opinion, shared by others, that personal involvement brings with it a
greater commitment to any undertaking.

From this East Los Angeles kidI would offer my appreciation to these outstand-
ing programs and would again like to welcome everyone to today's hearing.

Thank you Mr. Chairman.

Chairman OWENS. The committee will recess for 10 minutes.
[Recess.]
Chairman OWENS. Please take your seats.
We are pleased to welcome Representative Morella to join us or.

today's panel. We will proceed now with an opening statement by
Mr. Ballenger.

Mr. BALLENGER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am sorry I wan a
little bit late, but we were trying to help the gentleman in the
wheelchair get through the door, and I didn't know how to open
half the door. It is not that they completely educate us here in the
building, but I didn't do it very well anyhow, but luckily he made
it in.

Let me thank you, Mr. Chairman, I would like to commend my
colleagues, Representatives Payne and Morella for their good inten-
tions in introducing H.R. 4086, the Youth Development Block
Grant of 1993, which is supposed to expand the community-based
youth and development programs for six- to nineteen-year-olds. But
given the volume of existing Federal youth programs which are
catalogued in this notebook, compiled by the Mott Foundation, enti-
tled Targeting Youth, the Source Book for Federal Policies and Pro-
grams, plus $7.4 billion worth of preventive programs that are in
the crime bill conference report that we are supposed tc vote on to-
morrow, I don't see the need for yet another duplicative social
spending program.

For example, let me highlight for you some of the 28 prevention
programs that are in the crime bill, the crime bill conference re-
port. There is a Youth Employment and Skills grant program of
$650 million, the Community Youth Academies for $40 million, the
Hope and Youth program for $20 million, the Olympic Youth De-
velopment program for $50 million, the Youth Violence Prevention
program of $50 million, and the Anticrime Youth Councils for $5
million, and it goes on and on.

It just seems to me that the only thing the youth development
block grant is going to add to is the deficit that we are passing on
to our youth. Nevertheless, I do look forward to hearing our wit-
nesses today discuas this bill and how they may be able to fit it
into their praiseworthy private efforts to provide disadvantaged
youth with future opportunities.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman OWENS. Thank you very much. Maybe we can explore

later the gentleman's idea that the administration of the programs
is the problem, and that prevention of the crime problems should
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be in the hands of the kinds of groups that we are talking about
today.

Mr. Payne.
Mr. PAYNE. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. Let me thank

you for calling this very important hearing. We realize that there
was a difficulty in scheduling and we appreciate your accommodat-
ing the organizations that are very interested in this bill. Also, I
would like to commend Mr. Martinez for his interest in this legisla-
tion.

I am especially grateful because the Youth Development Block
Grant, H.R. 4086, is a bill that was introduced back in March with
my distinguished colleague, Ms. Connie Morella; and the difficulty
of getting bills of this nature to move forward is certainly indic-
ative of the problem that we have.

And the statements made by my colleague, that in the crime bill
there are some things that seem like they are duplicative. The
problem was that the original crime bill was simply about building
jails, saying three strikes you're out, putting in 60-some-odd dif-
ferent death penalties, and a lot of punitive provisions. Because of
the inability to get support, the administration decided, sort of as
an afterthought, to increase prevention.

We were ahead of the curve. We have been talking about this for
several years. And so I would be glad also to work with the distin-
guished gentleman from the other side to see whether we can get
the funding for this block grant from the crime bill if it passes, and
to have the organizations, as the Chairman indicated, who have
been working with these various problems for decades, be the orga-
nizations that will then be entrusted with running the particular
programs. I think it is a very important issue.

Let me welcome two persons from my district, Ms. Carolyn Wai-
lace with the International Youth Organization in Newark, a very
outstanding program that the Majority Leader, Mr. Gephardt, took
time to visit about half a year ago while visiting the outstanding
programs that are being conducted in the center part of Newark.

I also would like to welcome Ms. Elnora Watson, who is the Ex-
ecutive Director of the Urban League of Hudson County and Jersey
City, another part of my district, who has also been working very
diligently with young people.

Of wurse, my long time interest, as a former teacher, is with my
work with the YMCA at a local level and nationally and inter-
nationally; I am currently a member of the board of the local Y and
the Boys and Girls Clubs. I feel very strongly that this is the type
of approach that we should take.

Let me begin by saying that the purpose of this initiative is to
expand community-based youth development programs for youth
ages six to nineteen. The bill is a bipartisan effort, as you know,
with my good colleague, Ms. Morella, from the great State of Mary-
land; and in conjunction with the National Collaboration of Youth,
a coalition of 15 major youth-serving organizations which collec-
tively serve over 25 million young people in this Nation.

Much of our Federal policy is reactive instead of proactive. As I
indicated, the crime bill was basically to build jails and then some
preventionan ounce of prevention, as a mattee of fact. So I am
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glad that we are trying to talk about a proactive effort. And we fo-
cused on youth in current programs that are already in crisis.

So much of our thinking and our policy is short-termed and
short-sighted. We provide funding for programs that assist youth
once they become pregnant, drop out of school, join gangs or com-
mit crimes. But we provide very little help to programs designed
to work with youth before they engage in such high-risk activities.
Experience shows us that it is far more cost-effective to intervene
earlier, before children have experienced trouble, and to help them
to develop skills and create options so that they can pursue a posi-
tive path in life; and I think that is very important. Many of the
young people do not have options, and this bill would assist that.

For too long we have relied on schools alone to meet the devel-
opmental needs of youth. Once children turn six and enter school
full-time, we convince ourselves that the school can assume the en-
tire burden of addressing ihe social, the moral, the physical, the
emotional and the cognitive needs of our young people; and once
they enter school, we feel that it is the problem of the local board
of education. Furthermore, I believe that we can learn from the ex-
periences of community-based groups which have improved the
lives of millions of Americans. Moreover, youth organizations have
the credibility and expertise to meet the growing challenges facing
youth today. Yet community-based organizations find it very dif-
ficult to reach youth without resources from the government; and
they could serve many thousands more of unserved 'youth if they
had this assistance. This is why I believe that the Youth Develop-
ment Block Grant is so important. It will provide community-based
organizations the necessary funds to serve those in need while
helping youth programs coordinate their efforts.

The YDBG would fund programs that help youth reach their full-
est potential through youth clubs, sports and recreation, mentoring
programs, leadership development, substance abuse and delin-
quency prevention and community service programs. To better
serve our low-income youth, allocation of funds for the YDBG will
be based on a State's total school-age youth population, the per-
centage of that population living in poverty, and the increase of ju-
venile crime in that State. This formula gives 7riority to the com-
munities we are most concerned about, the community with the
highest concentration of low-income youth who are at risk.

Let me once again thank all of the witnesses for being here in-
cluding Mr. Lynn Swann. I look forward to hearing your comments
and suggestions on how we can produce the best possible piece of
legislation to better serve you and our young people in our commu-
nities and the organizations that have such an outstanding record
in the past.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman OWENS. Ms. Morella?

STATEMENT OF HON. CONSTANCE A. MORELLA, A REP-
RESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF MARY-
LAND

Mrs. MORELLA. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. Again, I
want to thank you and also express my appreciation to Chairman
Martinez for this joint hearing. It is a very important and very
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timely issue, particularly with the backdrop of the crime bill; and
we will get into that.

I am not a member of this particulareither of these two sub-
committees, and so I particularly appreciate the invitation to join
you here to make an opening statement and to listen to the wit-
nesses and to later introduce Lynn Swann, who is on the second
panel, who is the National President of Big Brothers and Big Sis-
ters of America; to commend Carmen Delgado Votaw, who has been
very much involved with steering this particular bill that has been
put together by 15 different community groups; and to welcome
Joel Mann, who is from Montgomery County, Maryland, who will
be the first person to testify.

Childhood is supposed to be a sheltered time away from the prob-
lems and woes of the world. Unfortunately, violence has escalated
against those we have the greatest duty to protect. Childhood is
dying; it is a story of our times.

Ya mg Americans are being killed at rates far higher than in any
other country. The Chicago Tribune reports that in the Chicago
area, in 1993, 61 children under the age of 15 were slain, shot,
stabbed, beaten, burned, shaken, strangled, drowned, starved or
burned. Those are all quotes.

In Washington, DC., a study by the American Psychological Asso-
ciation of first and second graders reveals 45 percent indicated that
they had seen someone mugged, 31 percent had seen someone shot,
anoi 39 percent had seen dead bodiesfirst and second graders,
right here in the Nation's capital. Many youngsters have said they
expected to die before reaching adulthood.

Fragmentation of the family contributes to the unprecedented
challenges that face our Nation's youth. According to the Census
Bureau in 1992, nearly 25 percent of children under nine live below
the poverty level. Half a million of these chikli. en were born to sin-
gle, teenage mothers. And the Guttmacher Institute estimates that
21 percent of white teenage girls and 40 percent of minority teen-
age girls will become pregnant at least once by age 18.

The connection between drug and alcohol abuse and of violence
against our children is undeniable. Drugs contribute to the breakup
of families and often are at the root of neighborhood crime and vio-
lence. According to a 1993 University of Michigan study, 10 percent
of eighth graders, 18 percent of tenth graders, 23 percent uf high
school seniors reported that they had been offered an illegal drug
at school.

The litmus test of the 1990s will be how we restore innocence,
security and physical safety to childhood. We, in Congress, are con-
stantly engaged in heated debate about most issues. However, I
think that we can all agree that past policies have not adequately
addressed the problems of our at-risk youth.

The Youth Development Block Grant Act would provide positive
programs for our endangered kids that will help them to grow into
productive citizens. This legislation would encourage communit0
based organizations to work together to keep our youngsters busy
doing meaningful activities after school. Organizations like the
Boys and Girls Clubs, Girls, Inc., Big Brothers and Big Sisters
could work together, the Y's, all of them, each bringing a wealth

1 1
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of experience to help young people meet the challenges of their en-
vironments.

Often these-organizations are competing against each other for
funds for their worthwhile programs, and this legislation would
build on the strength of these community-based groups, allowing
them to coordinateto coordinate their efforts to serve at-risk
youth. So really it saves money.

The biggest challenges facing our kids are outside of the class-
room. Too many young people come home to empty houses after
school. Left on their own for long periods of time, they turn to
gangs, drugs, and crime as they search for connection to other
human beings, a sense of belonging.

This bill, H.R. 4086, developed by the National Collaboration for
Youth, a group of 15 national youth-serving organizations that
serves more than 25 million youth each year, is so crafted that the
funds would go directly to the local communities for programs de-
signed to meet the needs of local youth.

As a matter of fact, my distinguished colleague in the 100th Con-
gress class with me indicated, I think appropriately with all of
these prevention programs, where is the money going to come
from? A major response is, we can reallocate existing resources;
and that is what is planned in this bill. The National Gollaboration
for Youth believes that the bill can and should be funded through
reallocation of existing resources. It is reasonable to expe6 that be-
tween one-third and one-half of the Youth Development Block
Grant funds could be obtained by consolidating categorical youth
development programs, and the remainder could be obtained by re-
allocating funds for nonyouth programs, such ae drug interdiction
funds.

The groups that collaborated wanted to maintain their independ-
ence from the Federal Government. Consequently, programs feder-
ally funded for the first year are at 80 percent of what was des-
ignated as the reallocation of existing resources. The second year,
it would be 60 percent; the third year, 50 percent; the fourth year,
Federal funding drops to 30 percent. So it is a very fiscally respon-
sible piece of legislation.

The Youth Development Block Grant Act will enable so many
time-test d organizations to reach out to millions of currently un-
derserveu youth. It is an investment in our Nation's future that
will afford young people with the positive opportunities they need
and deserve.

I thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the generosity of the extra time.
Thank you.
Chairman OWENS. Thank you.
Mr. Scott.
Mr. SCOTT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think some of what I

wanted to say has already been said, so I will just summarize my
opening statement. Particularly in light of the comments made by
the lady from Maryland and the gentleman from North Carolina,
our obligation, as legislators, is to try to allocate the money we
spend as intelligently as possible to achieve the goals we are trying
to achieve.

We have a lot of problems with our youth in terms of teen preg-
nancy, dropping out of school, drugs and crime; and we spend a lot

12



of money dealing with these problems. Just to give an example of
what we are willing to spend money for, the idea of abolishing pa-
role is very popular, and it has been evaluated from a cost point
of view. Abolishing parolea bill to do that passed the Virginia
State House on a vote of 90 to 8and it would cost the Common-
wealth of Virginia approximately $2.6 billion and $1 billion a year
after that to run the prisons.

For that same amount of money, we have precincts in the Com-
monwealth of Virginia that have 1,500 to 3,000 voters. You could
put a brand-new million dollar Boys and Girls Club or family re-
source center in every precinct in the Commonwealth of Virginia,
fully staffed, and with the money that is left over, you could guar-
antee college scholarships and summer jobs for every poor kid in
the State for 20 years.

Now, there is no evidence that abolishing parole reduces crime,
and yet we are willing to spend that kind of money. So as we look
at th.e crime bill and $30 billion. I was delighted to hear my friend
from North Carolina compliment the crime bill on many of the ex-
cellent programs that are already in the crime bill. I think they
were compliments; I am not sure, but I took them as compliments.

So we are willing to spend a great deal of money dealing with
our problems, and our focus :is what the best use of this money is
going to be. We havft heard of the ecod work that many of the pro-
grams that we will hear from today have already done. I just want
to point out a couple of things.

One is the requirement for the public-private partnership where
the programs receive assistance from government funds, but re-
quire the local match. I think that is extremely important. Because
when you have that local investment, you are much more likely to
bring in not only the local financial dollars for the match, but also
a lot of volunteer effort and a lot of support that ia hard to meas-
ure.

I would also want to question the 70 percent. I would like to see
it capped off at a 50 percent local match. I assume that will be dis-
cussed as we g o.

I also want to point out that we need to look at an evaluation
component. I think there is an evaluation component in the bill.
That needs to be as strong as possible, because many of the preven-
tion programs are worth their weight in gold, solve many problems,
save more money than the programs cost; other programs that are
called prevention programs are, frankly, a waste of money. We
need to put our money into those programs that actually work and
avoid those programs that don't.

So I look forward to hearing the testimony. I congratulate my
friend from New Jersey and the lady from Maryland for introduc-
ing the legislation and look forward to the testimony and look for-
ward to having this added to that fine list of programs that my
fricnd from North Carolina mentioned in the crime bill.

Chairman OWENS. MS. Molinari.
Ms. MOLINARI. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I, too, want to compliment Representatives Payne and Morella

for their efforts to improve the lives of our disadvantaged youth. I
also want to take a moment to praise all the groups that have been
involved in formulating and promoting this legislationgroups like
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the Boys and Girls Clubs, Big Brothers, Big Sisters, the YMCA and
the YWCAs, Boy and Girl Scouts and many others. These are the
groups that should be commended because they are really the ones
that are on the front lines, day in, day out, trying to help our Na-
tion's youth.

At this point, however, I would also like to thank Senator Kasse-
baum who, along with Representatives Payne and Morella have
been the prime congressional movers; and I know that we have one
or two Members of Senator Kassebaum's staff here today who
helped to form this legislation, and we thank you for your constant
attention to this.

However, let me just say, like my colleague, Mr. Ballenger, I too
am concerned about the duplication of effort when it comes to our
Federal youth programs; and I am encouraged by the stated inten-
tions of the sponsors of this legislation that they will use it as a
vehicle for coordinating and consolidating many of our Federal
youth programs.

When we do look at the crime bill conference report and the pre-
vention programs, I think we could have done a little bit better in
trying to consolidate and perhaps more adequately and accurately
direct the targeting of these funds, if that consolidation and that
closer look would have taken place.

Nonetheless, I am delighted that we are here today to discuss
consolidation, discuss the possibilities of coordinating these pro-
grams with the Youth Development Block Grant; and I do want to
thank all of the sponsors, in particular again Congressman Payne,
Congresswom,In Morella, and in absentia, Senator Kassebaum for
all of the work that they have done to bring us to this point of en-
lightenment here today.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman OWENS. Mr. Romero-Barcelo.
Mr. ROMERO-BARCELO. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My statement

will be included later on in the record, with the consent of the
Chairman and the committee.

At this point in time, I will just pass and wait to see what the
witnesses have to say.

Thank you.
Chairman OWENS. Thank you.
We are pleased to welcome as our first panel Mr. Joel Mann,

Boys and Girls Clubs of Greater Washington; Ms. Carolyn Wallace,
International Youth Organization, Newark, New Jersey; Ms. Isabel
Carter Stewart, National Executive Director, Girls, Inc.

We have copies of your written statements which will be entered
in their entirety in the record. Please feel free to summarize them
in your oral remarks. You will have a chance to elaborate on your
points during the question-and-answer period.'

We will begin with Mr. Mann.
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STATEMENTS OF JOEL MANN, BOYS AND GIRLS CLUBS OF
GREATER WASHINGTON, SILVER SPRING, MARYLAND; CARO-
LYN WALLACE, INTERNATIONAL YOUTH ORGANIZATION,
NEWARK, NEW JERSEY, ACCOMPANIED BY RAESHEEA
SMITH, SAM SYKES, YUSEF KINCHEN AND KLAVAUS JACK-
SON; AND ISABEL CARTER STEWART, NATIONAL EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR, GIRLS, INCORPORATED, WASHINGTON, DC
Mr. MANN. Good morning, Chairman Martinez
Chairman OWENS. Can you pull the mike close to you?
Mr. MANN. (continuing] Chairman Owens, Congressman Donald

Payne, Congresswoman Connie Morella and Members of the com-
mittee. I am Joel Mann, a 14-year-old from Silver Spring, Mary-
land, and I am the Boys and Girls Clubs Youth of the Year. I am
honored to have this opportunity to speak with you on how my life
has changed because of the Boys and Girls Clubs. I ask that my
full statement be submitted for the record. I will summarize my re-
marks for the committee.

Greater Washington Boys and Girls Clubs has been very impor-
tant in my life because it is a place where young people can go and
have fun as well as develop important skills. The Boys and Girls
Clubs has been a place where I have had many opportunities and
made important friendships. In addition to all the friends I have
made, the Boys and Girls Clubs has been a place where I have
been able to mature and become a role niodel for others. The club
has helped me learn how to be a leader, a skill I will need later
in life in order to succeed.

When I moved from New York, I was a third grader and I had
a lot of trouble adjusting to my surroundings and environment. I
was having problems fur a lot of different reasons. The problems
that hurt and distracted me the most were my family problems. We
had to move because my mother had a very abusive boyfriend at
that time. She moved us here so that we would not have to suffer.
Today, when I think about why my mother moved us, I can under-
stand that she did it for our best interests and safety. At the time,
though, I couldn't understand why our family had been uprooted.
I was angry and confused, and this led me to have a very difficult
time in school Lid at home.

It was during this time that I was lucky enough to meet Ken
Salem. Ken, who was the Outreach Director of the Boys and Girls
Clubs, helped me get interested and involved in the club. The Tar-
geted Outreach Delinquency Intervention program helps get kids
off the street and involved in positive activities such as community
service, life skills training, and parenthood preparation and deci-
sion-making. Instead of being angry and preoccupied with my prob-
lems, I was able to discover a new world at the club.

I became involved in SMART Moves, a program that stands for
self-management and resistance training. The program helped me
learn how to resist drugs, drinking and sexual activity. The pro-
gram works well because a team made up of staff, parents, older
club members and community volunteers works with young people,
teaching them the skills needed to resist pressures that lead to
negative behavior. The Boys and Girls Club helped me to deal with
my problems while having fun at the same time.
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In my early days at the Boys and Girls Clubs I learned a lot
about how to respond to my feelings and to the people around me.
Because of my experience at the Boys and Girls Clubs I was also
able to relate better to my teachers and family.

As I got older, I became a peer leader and assisted staff with the
planning and getting started with the other activities such as
SMART Moves. I also got involved in the Keystone Club, which
was really interesting because it allowed me to meet other kinds
of people like the eld.erly and homeless and see new parts of the
area that I didn't even know existed. I helped staff plant trees, ren-
ovate a new police substation in Silver Spring and renovate the
club. I felt like I was helping to make my community a better place
to live. I felt like an important contributor.

Adults should understand that young people have a lot to offer.
Youth want to be part of the solution, not the problem.

I also spent a good deal of my time volunteering at the club. I
started out as a scorekeeper for softball games and basketball
games. When I got older, I began to take the responsibility of ref-
ereeing both soccer and basketball games. I was able to develop
many positive skills as a result of my experience as a referee. The
most positive aspect of my personality that I developed was the
ability to relate in an official manner to my peers and adults. I
learned how to channel and control my emotions. I came to realize
that I would be most effective, as a person and a referee, if I were
able to be controlled and rational in my behavior. The countless
Saturdays I spent volunteering benefited both the club and myself.

Even though I got interested in the club through the Outreach
program, the club attracts youth in other ways, such as sports and
other friends telling them about it. It offers a lot to the kids in my
neighborhood. There are tutoring services for kids who have trou-
ble in school, outdoor activities, homework club, arts and crafts,
chess club, newspaper club, planning a What's-Up club, What's-
Cooking club, youth of all ages, guidance and counseling service for
teenage parents and their families, the education and job skills
training for homeless families. The purpose of these programs is to
give young people a safe place where they can belong and grow so-
cially by learning how to relate to their peers and work through
conflict, grow physically by improving th.eir balance, flexibility,
speed, and overall body awareness, and grow academically by
working with tutors one-on-one on school subjects.

While the club serves over 13,000 youth and has many success
stories to tell, the needs of the community continue to grow. The
club would like to bring its programs, such as sports programs, job
servi:es and drug prevention activities to more kids in the area.
Howt ver, without additional funding they cannot do it.

The Youth Development Block Grant could provide the funding
that the club needs to serve all the youth that come through their
doors. The State of Maryland would receive over $6 million that
could help all different types of youth development programs ex-
pand and provide new opportunities to boys and girls.

I know from my own experience that if more young people get
involved with adults who care about them and offer them activities
that help steer their interests away from the streets and their
problems, more kids will succeed.
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Over the past 10 years, the Boys and Girls Clubs has meant so
much to me that sometimes it ia very hard to express how impor-
tant the Boys and Girls Clubs has been in my development. The
club has been an irreplaceable part of my development throughout
my life. I would hate to think of what would have happened to me
if the club did not exist. And I would hate to think about what is
going to happen to all those people who aren't as lucky as I have
been.

I respectfully ask that you pass the Youth Development Block
Grant this session so that other young people can get lucky, too.

[The prepared statement of Mr. bilann followsl
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Joel Mann

Chairman Martinez, Chairman Owens, Congressman Donald Payne, Congresswoman Connie

Morella, and Members of the Committee, I am Joel Mann. I am 14 years old and I am the

Silver Spring, MD Boys and Girls Clubs Youth of the Year. I am honored to have this

opportunity to speak with you on how my life changed because of the Boys and Girls Clubs and

the importance of passing the Youth Development Block Grant.

Greater Washington Boys and Girls Clubs has bmn very important in my life because it is a

place where young people can go and have fun as well as develop important skills. The Boys

and Girls Clubs has been a place where I have made many important friendships. In addition

to all the friends I have made, the Club has been a place where I have been able to mature and

become a role model for others. The Club has helped me learn how to be a leader a skill I

will need later in life in order to succeed.

When I moved here from New York I was in the third grade and I had a lot of trouble adjusting

to my surroundings and env;ronment. I was having problems for a lot of different reasons. The

problems that hurt and distacted me the most were my family problems. We had to move

because my mother had a ery abusive boyfriend at the time. She moved us here so we would

not have to suffer. Today, when I think about why my mother moved us I can understand that

she did it for our best interests and safety. At the time, though, I couldn't understand why our

family had been uprooted. I was angry and confused and this led me to have avery difficult time

in school and at home.
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It was during this time that I was lucky enough to meet Ken Salem. Ken, who was the Outreach

Director of the Boys and Girls Clubs, helped get me interested and involved in the Club. The

Targeted Outreach Delinquency Intervention program helps get kids off the street and involved

in positive activities such as community service, life skills training, and parenthood preparation

and dec;-i,.4-maldng. Instead of being angry and preoccupied with my problems, I was able to

discover a new world at the Club.

I became involved in SMART Moves a program that stands for Self Management and

Resistance Training. The program helped me learn how to resist drugs, drinking, and sexual

activity. The program works well because a team made up of staff, parents, older Club

members, and community volunteers works with young people teaching them the skills needed

to resist pressures that lead to negative behavior. The Boys and Girls Clubs helped me to deal

with my problems while having fun at the same time. In my early days at the Club I learned

a lot about how to respond to my feelings and to the people around me. Because of my

experience at the Club I was also able to relate better to my teachers and family.

As I got older I became a peer leader and assisted staff with the planning and implementation

of the SMART Moves program. I also got involved in the Keystone Club (a community service

program) which was really interesting because it allowed me to meet different kinds of people

like the elderly and the homeless and see new parts of the area that I didn't even blow existed.

I helped staff soup kitchens, planted trees, and renovated a new police substation in Silver
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Spring I felt like I was helping to make my community a better place to live; I felt like an

important contributor. Adults should understand that young people have a lot to offer. Youth

want to be part of the solution, not the problem.

I also spent a good deal of time volunteering at the Club. I started out as i scorekeeper for

softball and basketball. When I got older I began to take on the responsibility of refereeing both

soccer and basketball games. I was able to develop many positive skills as a result of my

experiences as a referee. The most positive aspect of my personality that I developed was the

ability to relate, in an official manner, to my peers and adults. I learned how to channel and

control my emotions. I came to realize that I would be most effective, as a person and a

referee, if I were able to be controlled and rational in my behavior. The countless Saturdays

I spent volunteering benefitted both the Club and myself.

Even though I got interested in the Club through the Outreach program, the Club attracts youth

in other ways. It offers a lot to the kids in my neighborhood. There are tutoring services for

kids who are having trouble in school; dance classes like modern-jazz, tap, and dance-a-cise for

young people of all ages; guidance and counseling services for teenage parents and their

families; and remedial education and job skills training for homelers families. The purpose of

these programs is to give young people a safe place where they can belong and grow socially

by learning how to relate to their peers and work through conflict, grow physically by improving

their balance, flexibility, speed, and overall body awareness, and grow academically by working

with tutors one-on-one on school subjects.
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While the Club serves over 13,000 youth and has many success stories to tell, the needs of the

community continue to grow. The Club would like to bring its programs, such as sports

programs, dance troupes, job services, and dnig prevention activities to more kids inthe area.

However, without additional funding they cannot do it. The Youth Development Block Grant

could provide the funding that the Club needs to serve all the youth that come through their

doors. The state of Maryland would receive over six million dollars that could help all different

types of youth development programs expand and rrovide new opportunities to boys and girls.

I know from my own experience that if more young poople get involved with adults who care

about them and offer them activities that help steer their interests away from the streets and their

problems, more kids will succeed.

Over the past ten years the Boys and Girls Clubs has meant so much to me that sometimes it is

very hard to express how important the Club has been in my development. The Club has been

an irreplaceable part of my development throughout my life. I would hate to think of what

would have happened to me if the Club did not exist. And I would hate to think about what is

going ;o happen to all those young people who aren't as lucky as I have been. I respectfully

ask that 3ou pass the Youth Development Block Grant this session so that other young people

can get lucky too.

Thank you for this opportunity to testify.

4

404-11



18

Chairman OWENS. Ms. Carolyn Wallace.
MS. WALLACE. Thank you.
Mr. Chairman, members of the subcommittee, and colleagues of

the youth development community, I am Carolyn Wallace, execu-
tive director of the International Youth Organization, known as
NO, of Newark, New Jersey, an administrator of the New Jersey
Youth Corps of Newark, which is one of 11 such programs in New
Jersey. I am here to speak to the needs of inner-city youth through-
out America.

No doubt, most of my experience has been with youth and their
families in Newark. Nonetheless, I have traveled extensively across
the Nation and have served on sufficient national and State boards
and commissions to have learned that our experience in Newark is
very similar to that of our counterparts in most all other of the Na-
tion's 75 central cities. Let no one think that the young people in
suburbia are immune to the same decadent influences a.ffecting
young people everywhere.

When my husband, James, and I began WO in 1970, our major
concern was that every young person go to college, and many did.
There was also a large amount of parental support. These parents
reached their goals, moved out of the city and left a great void.
They benefited from the initial funds sent into inner cities.

Youth development is such an urgent issue because we appear to
have failed so miserably with the generation coming up today; and
we have failed so badly in large part because we have been unwill-
ing to pave the course as we go along; consequently, we have wait-
ed until the problems become so awesome that the costs are nearly
bankrupting us. It is a rotten shame that we have to spend billions
on new prisons while we allocate a relative pittance on preventive
functions. We can either pay now or pay later, but if we only want
to pay later, we have to ask ourselves some basic questions.

at happens to our society when its next generation lacks self-
confidence, self-discipline and respect, or even regard for others?

What happens to our national economy when so many of our
next generation are unprepared to be productive workers?

What happens to our society when so many of our next genera-
tion have little or no connection to family structure?

What happens to our society when so many of our next genera-
tion are turned off by the educational system, but are turned on
by drugs and other forms of instant gratification?

What will happen to us all when so many young parents today
feel so overwhelmed and disillusioned?

We must face the fact that the Donna Reed age is gone. Unfortu-
nately, there are no more milk and cookies waiting at home for our
children after school.

Those of us serving youth and their families are witness to the
need for a national youth development program that is both com-
prehensive and targeted.

We recognize the urgent need for programs that build teams in
cohesive neighborhoods working with youth both individually and
in groups. We cannot afford to leave parents isolated, but rather
we must motivate and train parents to become agents of change in
their own neighborhoods. We wholeheartedly approve of this legis-
lation's emphasis on family development through youth activities.
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We greatly appreciate the inclusion of "moral competencies, such
as personal values and ethics," as a cornerstone for a true youth
development program.

This bill rightfully proposes to start our efforts at an early age
and to develop more sophisticated after-school and weekend pro-
gramming for youth of all ages.

Another big plus is the much neglected emphasis on follow-up
functions.

For too long we have seen new initiatives adopted by Washington
with the best of intentions, but then fail to sponsor that one extra
mile required to achieve success. We must build into the movement
sustained efforts to help our youth gain the skills they need for the
future.

But even as we focus on the need for early intervention with
those youth who have demonstrated documented behavior prob-
lems, we also need to pay attention to those boys and girls who dis-
play great potential at an early age and even those who are just
average children in need of protection from the decadent influences
of their environment.

We need to provide a healthy combination of a value-based cur-
riculum, spiritualism and community service opportunities for all of
our youth. The value of one's involvement in community service ini-
tiatives is for all ages. Again, congratulations on your insight for
agreeing to begin at an early age, six years old.

Prevention must come at every level. The Corps Community, for
example, has set a new pace and standard for young people. This
has been proven by the fact that today the National Association of
Service and Conservation Corps is looked upon by large employers
as a source for dependable employees and by some large labor
unions as a source of new members who will last.

As a part of my extended remarks, I am providing you with an
in-depth overview of the Youth Corps movement for your later
reading, so I won't take too much time here. But I also need some
direction right now from the Chairman, because I have brought
some young people that need to speak to this cause, and I don't
want to interupt the way you have set this up.

Ms. WALLACE. So I just need some instructions, sir, on how you
would like to hear from the young people. Unfortunately, I will
never be a 16-year-old pregnant teenager, and I will never have
any of the problems that they have; and I would like to present
them to you.

Chairman OWENS. I think they could one by one, take the end
mike here.

Ms. WALLACE. Okay. I will start with Ms. Raesheea Smith.
[The prepared state ents of Ms. Wallace, Ms. Smith, Mr. Sykes,

Mr. Kinchen, and Mr. Jackson follows0
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703 South 12th Street
Newark. Naw Jersey 07103

(201) 621-1100
Fax: (201) 624-7977

James Wallace. Founder

STATEMENT OF CAROLYN B. THOMPSON-WALLACE

CEO/ EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF
THE INTERNATIONAL YOUTH ORGANIZATION AND ADMINISTRATOR OF

THE NEW JERSEY YOUTH CORPS
NEWARK, NEW JERSEY

BEFORE

THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON SELECT EDUCATION AND CIVIL RIGHTS
AND

THE SUBCOMMTTTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES
OF

THE HOUSE EDUCATION AND LABOR COMMITTEE

Mr. Chairman, Members of the Subcommittee and colleagues of the Youth
Development Community, I am Carolyn Wallace, Executive Director of the
International Youth Organization (IYO) of Newark, New Jersey and administrator of
the New Jersey Youth Corps of Newark which is one of eleven such programs in
New Jersey. I am here to speak to the needs of inner city youth throughout America.
No doubt most of my experience has been with youth and their families in Newark,
N.J. Nonetheless, I have travekd axtensively across the nation and have served on
sufficient national and state boards and commissions to have learned that our
experience in Newark is very similar to that of our counterparts In most all of the
nation's 75 central cities. And let nn one think that the young people in suburbia
are immune to the same decadent influences affecting young people everywhere.

When my husband, James and I began IY0 in 1970, our major concern was
that every young person go to college and many did. There was also a large amount
of parental support. These parents reached their goals, moved out of the City and
left a great void. They benefited from the initial funds sent into inner cities.

Youth Development ts such an urgent issue because we appear to have failed
Page 1 of 3
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so miserably with the generation coming up today. And we have failed so badly in
large part because svl have been unwilling to pay the costs as we go along and
consequently we have waited until the problems became so awesome that the costs
are nearly bankrupting us. It is a rotten shame that we have to spend billions on
new prisons while we allocate s relative pittance on prevention functions.

We can either pay now or pay later. But if we only want to pay later, we have
to ask ourselves some basic questions

What happens to our society when its next generation lacks self confidence,
self discipline and respect or even regard for others?

What happens to our national economy when so many of our next
generation are unprepared to be productive workers?

What happens to our society when so many of our next generation have little
or no connection to family structure?

What happens to our society when so many of our next generation are turned
off by our educational system but are turned on by drugs and other forms of instant
gratification?

What will happen to us all when so many young parents today feel so
overwhelmed and disillusioned?

We must face the fact that the Donna Reed age is gone. Unfortunately, there
are no more milk and cookies waiting at home for our children after school.

Those of us serving youth and their families are witness to the need for a
national youth development program that is both comprehensive and target( d.

We recognize the urgent need for programs that build teams in cohesive
neighborhoods working with youth both individually and in groups. We can not
afford to leave parents isolated but rather we must motivate and train parents to
become Agents of Change in their own neighborhoods. We WHOLEHEARTEDLY
approve of this legislation's emphasis on family development through youth
activities.

We greatly appreciate the inclusion of "moral competencies such as personal
values and ethics" as a cornerstone for a true youth development program.

This bill rightfully proposes to start our efforts at an early age and to develop
more sophisticated after school and weekend programming for youth of all ages.

Another big plus is the much neglected emphasis on follow-up functions.
Page 2 of 3
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For too long we have seen new initiatives adopted by Washington with the
best of intentions but then fail to sponsor that one extra mile required to achieve
success. We must build into the movement sustained efforts to help our youth gain
the skills they need for the future.

But even as we focus on the need for early intervention with those youth
who have demonstrated documented behavior problems, we also need to pay
attention to both those boys and girls who display great potential at an early age and
even those who are just average children in need of protection from the
DECADENT influences of their environment.

We need to provide a healthy combination of a value based curriculum,
spiritualism and community service opportunities for all our youth. The value of
one's involvement in community service initiatives is for all ages. AGAIN
congratulations on your insight for agreeing to begin at an early age, six (6).

Prevention must come at every level. 'The Corps Community" has set a new
pace and standard for young people. This has been proven by the fact that today the
National Association of Service and Conservation Corps is looked upon by large
employers as a source for dependable employees and by some large labor unions as a
source of new members who will last.

As a part of my extended remarks I am providing you with an in-depth
overview of the Youth Corps movement in America.

Now, I wish to present to you four representative Newark youth who have
been blessed with the New jersey Youth Corps and IY0 experiences....
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Carolyn Wallace -

Mr Corps movement is a full time comprehensive and wbolistle approarth to
cultivate and produce youth ludervitip in our 16 - 25 years old. The methOd

used of public service opportunities, employment creation and educational
opponunIties In both urban and rural settings have produced outstanding
results.
PUBLIC SERVICE

Corps uadertake service activities which meet the needs of communities and
prepare paniepants for the future. Corps generally organize clorpsmembers
tato crer: ...etch work under the supervision of a peld, caring adult All corps
provide participants with at least a stipend.

Corps continue the great tradition of the Civilian Conservation Corps of the
l930's and by their nature ant a readily deployable labor fonts. Corps
programs from California to Florida continue to provide saviors ht times of
Custer. Most recently. corpsmembers from the Loa Angela. COnserVatiOn
Corps and the California Conservation Corps nested lin the cesit-up defforis o
the debris created by the earthquake.. Similarly, the corps surtmutding the

Mississippi River were immediately enlisted to uslat communittee ravaged by
last summuses devastating floods. The Orester Miami Service Corps and the

Florida Conservation Corps were the flat groups on tbe scene to alleviate tbe
euffering caused by Hurricane Andrew. White at the earns time the Corpe in
Camden and Newark. NJ. were I:rebind:1g their forces to Join In that effort.
and they did. mt. In hash bridges gaps for young people all across the

Country,

Recent years have seen an expanded role for corps, particularly is urban
areas. The New Jersey Youth Corpe of Newark wu ute of only ten programs to
complete the Urban Corps Expansion Project. Proving that the discipline and
expectations of the Corps can work in the inner cities. Service projects now

include housing rehabilitation, recyclying and other environmentel
projects. as well as direct service to day cars centers and elderly centers.
Corps now help to conserve the febric of our commuritles, as well as Our
natural resources.

EMPIZYMENT OPPORTUNIVES:

However youth corps provide more then public service to the community, they
also provide a comprehensive array of social, education end work Ocilla for the
participant to assist them in pursuing long term employcmtn and/or hither
education.

Corps provide a vital link to the greater Job market. Without the copra tame
corpsmembers would be unemployed or working at unskilled jobs without

future.

Corpemembers also master tho "educational tools" necessary for projects
Corpemembers learn the value of work an0 explore their goals, Allis, aptitudes
and preferences. Corpsmembers learn the basic skills of writing p resume,
interviewing and seeking out available jobs. Corps assist participants in
making the transition from the corps to other workplating them In jobs.
apprenticeship programs and internships.
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Corp provide a vital ltnk to the greater Job market. Without the eoprs some
corpsmembers would be unemployed or working et unskilled jobs without afuture.

Corpsznetubere also muter the "educational tools* necessary for projects
Corpemembers learn the value of work and *xylem their goals, skills, aptitudes
sad preferences. Corpsmetnbers learn the basic skills of writing a Name,
burviewing end seeking out available jobe. Corps assist participants In
making the transition from the corps to other workplacing them In jobs,
apprenticeship possums and Internships.

PMUCATIOR

Corps also 7,21%,qy the access to education that some' corpamembeti need in
order to complete their development sud become truly employed. Service
Leaning has become a successful tool In upgrading the academic levels of
young people whose pervious educational experiences have been
unsuccusfel. In doing so, they accommodate a broad range of education
needs, from corpsmembers preparing for high school equivalency exams le
those who have desire to go to college . Corps have also beets very valauble for
participants who seed basic skills In Eng lilsh proficiency. Corps provide
choose In critically important life skills, such as money management, personal
health, sexual reaponsIbility and parenting. Corps:amber come from various
backgrounds and economic situations. Corps Is very proud of its efforts in
assisting young women with children to find their place. shoot for a goal mg
obtain unsubsidlud employment.

Young people that successfully go through a Corps experinece discover that
their livers were changed for the better. Every Corps can tell a dramatic
=CCM' story: high school dropouts who are now in college, drug dealers and
gang members who have begun legitimate careers. anti teenage parents who
ue proud of the example they are setting for their children. and college
students who are now richer in the American experience.

YOUTH COM ARE COMMUNITYE ASED:

Corps operate under a variety of organizational arrangements. Some are part
of tribal, state or local government agencies; others are free-standhts, non-
profit organizations. Some programs are statewide; the majority, however arelocally -bust Some are residential and some are not. In September the New
Jersey we will be opesing their first Youth Corps residential site at Fort Dix.

YOUTH CORPS CAN QUICKLY EXPAND:

A strong nationwide network of youth corps already existOVer 100 program
In 36 sums and the District of Colunfolcand they aro capable of rapidly
expanding in response to a youth development initiative. Such an expensiOn
would meet a demand that already exists. Corps repOrt u many as 20-25-
appifIcants for every availably corps position. In Newark alone, them Is a
waiting list of 200 15-23 year old high school non-completer..

We appreciate aod are very excited sbout HI> 4061-Youth Development Block
Grant Act. Thio "Act" can offer to the thousands of young people that ire
standing waiting for us to assist them. the opportunities that were afforded



years ago to others. They are walling for an opportunity to hive i more
healthy, prosperous quality of life.
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STATEMENT OF KLAVAUS R. JACKSON, AGE 23 NEW JERSEY YOUTH
CORPS/NEWARK, N.J.

AND THE INTERNATIONAL YOUTH ORGANIZATION COMMUNITY SERVICE CORPS

BEFORE

THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON SELECT EDUCATION AND CIVIL RIGHTS

AND

THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

OF

THE HOUSE EDUCATION AND LABOR COMMITTEE

To etart off I would like to'say and explain what the New Jersey
outh Corps/IYO Newark Branch has done for me.

In the middle of the year 1992, May 26, I was accepted into the
Corps. I entered the Corps with some doubts in my mind, thinking I

would never accomplish my main goal--to obtain my G.E.D. High School
Diploma.

Before I made a decision on bettering my life, I was involved in
many and violent ways of life. Selling of drugs, fights, guns.

.Never spent time in jail, but I watched young adults like myself end
up in jail or left to die in the streets.

I finally put my mind (mentally, physically and spiritually)
together to make a change for the better.

NJYC//Y0 has helped me in so many ways. I have obtained many
academic skills and knowledge in class and out. I have my High
School Diploma and I put my talents to doing good and not bad.

I've done so well that I have received quite a few awards and
letters.

I thank Mr. 4 Mrs. Wallace and the staff for the direction and path
to success that they have put me on. I thank the help I got from
me positive friends in the Corps. I could hove been one of the

unfortunate and unlucky ones. Jail is not the place to be and death
is not a celebration.

Allow:1p 'In, :Olernynes Alfoual

BEST COPY AVAILABLE
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STATEMENT OF SAM SYKES AGE 22 NEW JERSEY YOUTH CORPS/NEWARK, N.J.

AND THE INTERNATIONAL YOUTH ORGANIZATION COMMUNITY SERY/CE CORPS

BEFORE

THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON SELECT EDUCATVIN AND CIVIL RIGHTS

AND

THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

OF

THE HOUSE EDUCATION AND LABOR COMMITTEE

Prevention Activities of the New Jersey Youth Corps has done a
for me. It keeps me off the streets.

When I was on the streets all I knew was selling drugs and drinking.
Every day I found myself running from the police. all my friends
were doing the same thing I wan doing. Nobody was thinking about
getting a job because we knew we didn't have a good education
because we had dropped out of school. I would see my friends with
new clothes and I would got mad and want the WPM thing. So I

thought selling drugs was the way to get it. One day my girl asked
me when was I going to stop selling and get a job. I didn't know
vhat to say. I didn't thInk I would ever find a job because I had
never had a job before. She told me about IYO and the Nw Jersey
Youth Corps. So I tried it.

It was hard at first, but I got use to it. I've been a part of the
NJYC for 2 years noW.

The Corps has made a big change in my life. The Corps helped me to
believe in myself, I got a high school diploma and now I am focusing
on bilget and better things in my life. I am now a member of the
IYO Community Service Corps and sometimes I look at my community and
the people I was selling drugs to and I realize it wasnt't worth it.
People find it hard to believe that I could just turn my Life around
like that. But if is wasn't for the New Jersey Youth Corps. I don't
' lw where I would be now. If given the same chance at prevention
a-fbody can turn their life around.

'Attitude 'Jet AotttUCte. Oefedrtnite Attitude
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3TATEMENT OF YUSEF KINCHEN, AGE 22 NEW JERSEY YOUTH CORPS/NEWARK

AND THE INTERNATIONAL YOUTH ORGANIZATION COMMUNITY SERVICE

CORPS

BEFORE

THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON SELECT EDUCATION AND CIVIL RIGHTS

AND

THE SUBCOMMITTE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

OF

THE HOUSE EDUCATION AND LABOR COMMITTEE

am here speaking for the hundreds of young people like myself.

Before I came to the New Jersey Youth Corps I was running the
streets. I always stayed in trouble if it was stealing cars,
robbing people, or selling drugs. I was always being around older
people that stayed in trouble and was getting high. I was never
home with my family. From the age of 14 I have been in and out of
jail.

The last time I vent to jail I sat down and thought to myself, "it's
time to make a change". When I came home a family member of mine
was attending NJYC and she introduced me to the program. It vas
hard for me at first to adjust to it, ad far as having positive
mind on things.

But after spending time in the program I begin to change from a
negative state of mind to a positive state of mind.

NJYC has done a lot for me as far as staying out of trouble. The
Corps also helped me change my attitude. It helped build up my
education, and how to work well with others. NJYC also helped me
with working skills and taught me how to give back to my community
by dOing Community service. Again the program has made a big change
in my life and without the NJYC I would have been dead or either in
jail for the rest of my life.

*At MUM? VOI A0Mude Nformenes Alfirwe

BEST COPY AVAILABLE



STATE M ENT OF RAESHEEL SMITH

PROGRAM PARTICIPANT OF

THE INTERNATIONAL YOUTH ORGANIZATION
NEWARK, NEW JERSEY

BEFORE

THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON SELECT EDUCATION AND CIVIL RIGHTS
AND

THE suBcominTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES
OF

THE HOUSE EDUCATION AND LABOR COMMITTEE

My name is Raesheea Smith and I am here today because I or 'ad to come
and tell you personally how I feel about International Youth Ort, .a.ation (IYO)

and other programs that help youth.

Today I can honestly tell you that I am looking forward to my future. I

am a high school graduate and I will be attending Fairleigh Dickinson University

as a Computer Science Major in the Fall.

I would like to begin by telling you about my future because it was not
something that I always looked forward to. The things that have occurred in my

life since early childhood are those which nearly destroyed me.

My mother and father were both victims of everything that existed in a
decaying urban environment. My mother was a substance abuser and my father
was incarcerated for eleven years of my life. The sense of abandonment that my

sister and I experienced began early and it stayed with me personally until I was

in the eleventh grade.

There were two forces in my life that I believe enabled me to be here
today, one a loving Grandmother who moved us to another neighborhood and

33
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adopted us and two of the IYO program that my sister and I have attended for the
past thirteen years.

It was fortunate that my grandmother realized that we needed the nurturing
developmental program that IYO offered.

NO was not only a place for us to go, it subsequently became a program
with a caring family who helped to ease the pain when it was at its greatest and it
provided security when it was most needed.

However, my personal problems did not east or go away. By the 8th grade
I entered a period of depression brought on by my mother's death which
exemplified the sense of abandonment I felt because of my parents. This feeling

was increased when my father returned home and just as quickly left to remarry
and after that the accidental death of my baby sister.

This period of my life was one of hospitals and therapy and throughout it

all the two influencing forces, remained, my grandmother and IYO who was
always there. The IYO staff, Mrs. Brown, Mrs. Jacobs, Ms. Jeanty and others
continued to be there for me. They counseled, visited my home and school and

all the while encouraging me to believe in myself and my ability to succeed.

I know from my own experience that IYO did make a difference. I believe
very strongly in what IVO does and know in my heart that it is the right way to
help other youngsters to keep them from destroying their lives and perhaps
hurting others.

1110re.

I appreciate what the committee is doing and only wish that it could do
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Ms. SMITH. Hello. My name is Raesheea Smith. I am 18 years
old, and I am here tod.ay because I wanted to come and tell you
personally how I feel about the International Youth Organization,
one of the programs that helps youth.

Today I can honestly say I am looking forward to my future. I
am a high school graduate and will be attending Fairleigh Dickin-
son University as a computer science major in the fall.

I would like to begin by telling you about my future because it
was not something that I always looked forward to. The things that
have occurred in my life since early childhood are those which
nearly destroyed me. My mother and my father were both victims
of everything that existed in the decaying urban environment. My
mother was a substance abuser and my father was incarcerated for
11 years of my life. The sense of abandonment that my sister and
I experienced began early and it stayed with me personally until
I was in the 11th. grade.

There were two forces in my life that I believe enabled me to be
here today. One, a loving grandmother who moved us to another
neighborhood and adopted us; and two, the WO program that my
sister and I have attended for the past 13 years. I was fortunate
that my grandmother realized that we needed the nurturing devel-
opmental program that IYO offered. WO is not only a place for us
to go; it subsequently became a program with a caring family who
helped ease the pain when it was at its greatest and provided secu-
rity when it was most needed.

However, my personal problems did not ease or go away. By the
eighth grade, I entered a period of depression brought on by my
mother's death, which intensified the sense of abandonment I felt
because of my parents. This feeling was increased by my father re-
turning home and, just as quickly, leaving to remarry; and after
that, the accidental death of my baby sister. This period of my life
was one of hospitals and therapy; and throughout it all, the two in-
fluencing forces remainedmy grandmother and IYO, who were al-
ways there.

The IYO staff, Ms. Brown, Ms. Jacobs, Ms. Dante, Ms. Wallace
and others, continued to be there for me. They counseled, visited
my home and school, and all the while, encouraged me to believe
in myself and my ability to succeed.

I know from my own experience that IYO made a difference. I
believe very strongly in what NO does and know in my heart that
it is the right way to help other youngsters, to keep them from de-
stroying their lives and perhaps hurting others. I appreciate what
the committee is doing; I only wish that they could do more.

Thank you.
Chairman OWENS. Thank you. We appreciate your joining us

today.
Ms. WALIACE. Mr. Sam Sykes.
Mr. SYKES. Good morning to everyone.
Ms. WALLACE. Good morning.
Mr. SYKES. My name is Sam Sykes, I am 22 years old. I was

raised in northern New Jersey and am a graduate of New Jersey
Youth Corps in northern New Jersey.

The prevention activities of the New Jersey Youth Corps have
done a lot for me. They keep me off the streets. When I was on the
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streets, all I knew was selling drugs and drinking. Every day I
found myself running from the police. All my friends were doing
the same thing I was doing. Nobody was thinking about getting a
job, because we knew we didn't have a good enough education, be-
cause we dropped out of school. I would see my friends with new
clothes, and I would get mad and want the same thing, so I
thought selling drugs was the way to get it.

One day my girlfriend asked me, when was I going to stop selling
drugs and get a job. I didn't know what to say. I thought I would
never find a job because I never had one before. She told me about
IYO and the New Jersey Youth Corps, so I tried it. It was hard at
first, but I got used to it. I have been part of the New Jersey Youth
Corps for two years now.

The Corps has made a big change in my life. The Corps has
helped me to believe in myself. I received a high school diploma
and now am focusing on bigger and better things in my life. I am
now a member of the NO Community Service Corps, and some-
times I look at my community and the people I was selling drugs
to, and I realize it wasn't worth it.

People find it hard to believe that could just turn my life
around like that. But if it wasn't for the New Jersey Youth Corps,
I don't know where I would be now. If given the same chance at
prevention, anyone could turn their life around. Thank you.

Chairman OWENS. Thank you, Mr. Sykes.
Ms. WALLACE. Mr. Yusef Kinchen.
Mr. KINCHEN. Good morning.
Ms. WALLACE. Good morning.
Mr. KINCHEN. My name is Yusef Kinchen. I am 22 years old,

from Newark, New Jersey, and a member of IY0 New Jersey
Youth Corps. I am here this morning speaking for the hundreds of
young people like myself. Before I came to New Jersey Youth
Corps, I was running the streets.

Chairman OWENS. Could you speak into the mike, Mr. Kinchen?
Mr. KINCHEN. I always stayed in trouble; I was stealing cars,

robbing people or selling drugs. I have always been around, older
people that stayed in trouble and was getting high. I was never
home with my family. From the age of 14 I have 1Deen in and out
of jail. The last time I went to jail, I sat down and thought to my-
self, it is time to make a change.

When I came home, a family member of mine was attending New
Jersey Youth Corps and she introduced me to the program. It was
hard for me at first to adjust to it as far as having a positive mind
on things. But after spending time in the program, I began to
change from a negative state of mind to a positive state of mind.
New Jersey Youth Corps has done a lot for me as far as staying
out of trouble.

The Corps also helped me to change my attitude. It helped build
up my knowledge of how to work well with others. New Jersey
Youth Corps also helped me with working skills and taught me
how to give back to my community by doing community service.

ain, the program has made a big change in my life, and with-
out New Jersey Youth Corps I would have been dead or in jail for
the rest of my life.

Thank you.
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Chairman OWENS. Thank you, Mr. Kinchen.
Ms. WALLACE. Mr. Klavaus Jackson.
Mr. JACKSON. Good morning.
Ms. WALLACE. Good morning.
Mr. JACKSON. My name is IClavaus Jackson. I am 23 years old

as of yesterday, August 3, 1994. To start off, I would like to explain
what the New Jersey Youth Corps, IYO North Branch has done for
me.

In the middle of the year in 1992, May 26th, I was accepted into
the Corps. I entered the Corps with some doubts in my mind,
thinking I would never accomplish my main goal: to obtain my
GED high school diploma. Before I made the decision to better my
life, I was involved in many violent ways of lifeselling of drugs,
fights and gunsnever spending any time in jail, but I watched
young adults like myself end up in jail or left to die in the streets.
I finally made up my mindmentally, physically and spiritually
to make a change for the better.

New Jersey Youth Corps IY0 has helped me in so many ways.
I have obtained my academic skills and knowledge in class and out.
I have my high school diploma and I put my talents to doing good
and not bad. I have done so well that I have received quite a few
awards and letters. I would like to thank Mr and Mrs. Wallace
and the staff for the direction and path to success that they have
put me on. I am thankful for the help I got from some positive
friends in the Corps. I could have been one of the unfortunate and
unlucky ones.

Jail is not the place to be and death is not a celebration. Thank
you.

Chairman OWENS. Thank you, Mr. Jackson.
Ms. WALLACE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman OWENS. Ms. Isabel Carter Stewart.
Ms. STEWART. Thank you.
Chairman Owens, Chairman Martinez, in absentia, Congressman

Donald Payne, Congresswoman Connie Morella and Members of
the committee, I am Isabel Stewart, national Executive Director of
Girls, Inc.

I would, before beginning, like to congratulate Ms. Wallace on
the work she is accomplishing, and to say that Joel and the four
young people who just spoke, amplify the points I think we all
want to make today; and I thank them for that.

I am honored to have this opportunity to speak with you, as well,
about the Youth Development Block Grant. It is obviously a critical
piece of legislation that will bring much-needed funding and coordi-
nation to the field of youth development.

I want to thank Representatives Payne and Morella especially for
introducing the Youth. Development Block Grant, and Representa-
tives Owens and Martinez for cosponsoring this landmark initiative
and for scheduling this very timely hearing. I am grateful for the
commitment and leadership you have shown on behalf of young
people in America.

In presenting my testimony today, I also represent many other
positive youth development programs across the country, especially
those you have heard referenced that are included within the Na-
tional Collaboration for Youth. As you heard, it consists of 15
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prominent national organizations, all dedicated to serving, collec-
tively, 25 million boys and girls, young men and young women
across the country.

At my organization, Girls, Inc. our particular focus is on girls
and has been for nearly 50 years. It is a national youth service,
program development, research and advocacy organization, and our
programs are offered through a network of affiliates located in
nearly 750 professionally-staffed sites across the country. Girls,
Inc. has heavily invested in program development for the past 10
years, and our programs, based on researchand rigorously evalu-
ated, I might add, Mr. Scottare widely recognized as being on the
cutting edge, addressing what girls need to be healthy, productive
and confident, both now and later, as young women.

These programs are used by schools, community organizations,
professional associations, science museums and health clinics and,
of course, by our own affiliates who collaborate with us on the de-
sign and testing of them. For our affiliates, improving the lives of
girls is not a question of figuring out what workswe know what
works; they have the Girls, Inc. expertise to draw uponinstead,
it is a question of finding the funding they need to reach more girls
in their communities. By our estimate, there are 22 million girls
in this country in our age cohort to reach.

America will not make significant progress in the challenges fac-
ing young people today unless we address their broader devel-
opmental needs. Young people who lack self-confidenceunlike
those you have just heard fromself-discipline, respect for others,
and a sense of connection to their families and communities are un-
likely to be successful in school and far more likely to engage, as
you heard, in high-risk behaviors.

Currently, prevention programs are largely focused on younger
children, ages four and under, and programs that have proven ef-
fective with this age group, such as Head Start, continue to receive
increased funding. We have held the schools primarily responsible
for the edification of young people ages five to eighteen, our cohort.
But with all they will charged to do, schools cannot meet every
need. As a result, the nonacademic, developmental needs of our
school-aged youth have largely been ignored.

Moreover, we fail to focus on the fact that youth ages five to
eighteen spend 40 percent of their time out of school anyway. Pre-
vention funding for this age group is limited and scattered through-
out the government.

Funding is available to local programs for particular activities
targeted at particular populations, such as sports programs for
public housing youth, community service for youth involved in the
juvenile court system. As a result, in order to receive funding, local
youth-serving agencies must reformulate their existing program
format and structure into narrowly defined mandates if they hope
to receive funding from the Federal Government. Often, programs
are developed or expanded based on what funding is available, not
on what best meets the needs of the young people in the commu-
nity.
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Because of the limited funding available, many young people
have no place to go after school and on weekends to find positive
experiences that will develop their interests and skills. Girls in
New York City we serve have told us that if we were not there de-
livering our math and science program called Operation Smart,
they would have nothing to do other than to watch the boys play
basketball in the gym, to hang out on the street corner or to go
home and be couch potatoes watching TV.

Once local programs receive their funding, there is little incen-
tive to coordinate their efforts with other organizations in the
neighborhood. No mechanism exists through which community-
based organizations, schools, government officials, and the private
sector can regularly come together to develop comprehensive youth
development strategies. The lack of such a process severely limits
our ability and the ability of community leaders to assess the broad
needs of the community to develop programs that build on those al-
ready successful and to fill in where there are service gaps.

The Youth Development Block Grant helps address all of these
issues: the limited funding available for prevention programs, the
categorical nature of Federal grants, and the lack of coordination
among providers at the local level. Through the Youth Develop-
ment Block Grant, $380 million, as you know, will be available in
the first year to local communities to develop or expand positive de-
velopment programs that strengthen the moral, the physical, the
emotional, the social, and the cognitive development of young peo-
ple. Many of the young people who currently go unserved could fi-
nally be reached.

If there are no positive youth development programs to welcome
them, as you heard, these young people will find gangs or other
outlets. Many of the social problems that concern usteen preg-
nancy, substance abuse, violence- -exist because of the lack of
youth development programs. Community-based, youth-serving or-
ganizations are a tremendous resource in developing and imple-
menting ycuth development strategies, both because of their re-
sponsiveness to local community values and concerns and their
ability to mobilize community resources. The Youth Development
Block Grant builds on the strength, credibility, and particular ex-
pertise of these organizations that know what works by giving
them a leadership role in both the planning and delivery of pro-
gram.

Programs funded under the block grant would also be funded to-
gether, a real strength and something that Girls, Inc. is already en-
gaged in with the YWCA, for example, the Salvation Army, and in
one case, with the YMCA. We know from affiliates that it is imper-
ative that the various sectors serving youth coordinate their efforts
in order to effectively serve the many and varied needs of young
people. Each entity has a different focus, a different mission and
serves a different purpose, but there is potential complementarity
among them.

I firmly believe that the Youth Development Block Grant could
prove critical in helping the country turn the tide against youth vi-
olence, youth alienation, youth boredom and give youth something
positive to say yes to. I thank you for this opportunity, and for your
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consideration, and remind you once again that the National Col-
laboration for Youth, which I am representing, stands ready to as-
sist you in any way to ensure the passage of the Youth Develop-
ment Block Grant.

Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of Ms. Stewart follows:1
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August II, 1994

Honorable Major R. Owens
Chairman, Subcommittee of Select Education and Civil Rights
U. S. House of Representatives
518 House Annex I
Washington, D.C. 20515-6107

girls
MC.

Honorable Matthew Martinez
Chair, Subcommittee on Human Resources
U. S. House of Representatives
Rayburn House Office Building B-346C
Washington, D. C. 20515

DeariZCt$1114-Ao-d-oti-av-4 S'aCIA"

To follow up the testimony presented by Isabel Carter Stewart at your hearing
August 4 on the Youth Development Block Grant, I am enclosing Truth. Trust
and Technolocy the report on our Pr..venting Adolescent Pregnancy Program
which includes the findings, description of program components and discussion
of the experimental design and evaluation. In summary, the results of the
longitudinal research showed:

Growing Together, a series of parent-daughter workshops for
younger teens on sexual information and values. Girls who
particinated were less than half as likely as nonparticipants to have
sexual intercourse for the first time

Will Power/Won't Power, an assertiveness training program to
help young teens say and mean "no" to sexual intercourse while
remaining popular with peers. Girls who participated in nearly the
entire program were the least likely to have sexual itgercoutsc_.=

. 1 II. I 1

likely as girls who participated for a shorter time

Taking Care of Business, a program to increase older teens'
motivation and skills to avoid pregnancy. Young women who
participated in nearly the entire program were about half astikely
as non-participants to have sex without birth control and about one-
third as likely as short-term participants. Consistent participants
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were two itusils_as_liket,_as_ short term partioNnts to bet. ome
atelatiinL

Health Bridge. a delivery system that links education at Girls
Incorporated centers with community-based health (including
reproductive health) services. Young women who participated

i hI. I. I I I

nonparticipants and were less than half as likely to become
mount,.

In response to Congressman Scott's question on cost, our estimate is that the
entire program can be offered to a girl for an additional cost of under $120 per
year, if a youth development program is already in place in the community. Of
course, our hope is that funding from YDBO would enable some agencies to add
these programs to their services and in other communities, new services could be
started to fill gaps.

I have also enclosed press coverage of Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy, Friendly
PlIERsuasion (our substance abuse prevention program) and Operation SMART
(designed to help girls become comfortable with math and science as a basis for
gixi) paying jobs in the future). All of these programs have been subject to
outside evaluation, have been field-tested, and are continually updated to meet the
needs of the populations we serve. As Ms. Stewart cited in her testimony, our
affiliates serve 350,000 young people. most of whom ar girls 6 - 18, three-
quarters of whom conic from families earning less than $20,000 a year. More
than half are from single-parent families and more than half are girl% and youhg
women of color, fly many definitions, the bulk of our service population is
considered as coming from an at-risk or high-risk environment.

We would he happy to provide any additional information that would he helpful
to your deliberations.

Sincerely,

/../cc,c

Mildred Kiefer Worf Li

Washington Representative

cc: Congresswoman Constance Morella
Congressman Donald Payne
Congressman Robert Scott

42



39

I A I/

THE WORD IS OUT
'a:be 4,Netti g ark Eauteo 1

Helping Teen-Agers Avoid Pregnancy
_....1,-"5.001 Ma

1 Owls are armed ober me 1.s. Cans s(SussOns u.
en ati Wm. oetnallo wow P.
oes. MP. vote nu* lor Waratilt to. me ......./ O

..... 'W .................1 Wab a.. -R-matton tAe RA hoil mot yea ... P.II..
IR low. rads. by NNW RO nreatelet

and a istaton for ...Z.1=1...4":".....1,7......rat Or....t.rb .0.1Verl to Ret. c.n...t. abet mama
......................... the future.
,................-... as mono., tit ha. anual .
.,::::= be :p.n., eg W. M.Th. hoM /to,. dreamt Ier No Itto tom. rel..

*ha Preetotaion, is....
1113 ta /I eke tow larm wean ac. symns lestna.........I.
NoteNt. eat4 Roe cot us hall Ne ......, .^ W....1.W t...esWSW tor 1.111.40. 0...11 WS .Stass atm at. N. More than 60 teed tot emote raw. en. eon.
se 11.17 ne ewe 40 tasy. woo nowl irOnnWs. away WM Wades. llus . ...Z..... A.. ....AA A.A. Iros V... .11.t. St us II.. enim eh.. MO( reanotat.

tiostose7=XXIS:relT .4.2.!". =AZ.= ''',' now ...so% sat Matt HIeun
sinona taw elto gesembeni of he

sneen... No. tha mu. MA i..,,,,,, ... sm.. amt.
...a sa.eabtat

aced . ewes. Dem aatls oent

1. atod1 N.. "1 00 -.0 VZo:::::=7:=:Zi ::: 1::: InZ:ZT:tr:.. 0...000 0.0...... .4 Mob. Gt. kat. U.N.. dote she mutest. ler Nonle
or c a and ell Orearants ow NW.. mesas Mem

as it RN.. es..1014 .0 taaNa 4..... ,
tun* eM atm 1.1o0s.fteent a-- L... %ham

bounden 1.1 to Nob

*MI tad Raairle MAO. aet.... ReaehomAis. wolt t.C., gust ass. to ft* Nlosete, Ri
The 11~ 0 ND th...or W. itto. Ittoklatoct $ CANN. oapt

10.104 eileastoarai and mote R.

neat.. laty Girls leer Mew. One cm C..1... in 14elnytem sag
.. .0.4 .en la set peak ha

C.. ai Ant..)..11 la .... Nat tettol pits Imola. Ms... ...z..7,:ztc..........
Rd. ta a as.ttnlareata al theCtl. . say ....1 Watt ...Su
I. al rettoil. no Xudf trs 101 AM. Nownts non so 111 tans lat 4. n Stu atlas stsi US MI a

Lt.. five Inassehm as *el.Nos. antse T. oats Ir. tea ars ....17 V/ .1, S .. Os...
0111.11p Iva Gt. Ina .111.1111. Is Os ars ta te 11 11 ... ot Ne ANA tt et tow arren MI it Ires

Obb,n11.004011 n e eb ord be Annt. 001.5.1% In Ilv. stud, iti.la .4 tate, mom Notot.d.dlorssi..4 ...A
e, e eery Mr $m. p.m. VI. Oast

than avarep rult al ...Ng ins Omaga M.. DIffor..
Or R.N. lel.. VOWS. . 11VO

tssil tt,....a.ILI: foRSOVAplital Is

en... Spoottor el 1.11. yam i sis I. us 1.4.1.11s ...rtal. .4. um Os. as IStaly . Non moo
me tnitoe year 1151.1 utte A *It POIKIMI IS W.I. We...

I usu. Po. ben /Wm. pm. t vs WM. SM. litles.. WIN.
4.1 lia Im tha p...m 11. nye N0 1

toiareor....ols
taat ools et. No N temp Nal

anIn taMo eto Nu *ay Ne uol 1ia15*.11, .ralasies N. Nth inato I. 1.1 raatoorol, WO% Ind.
..0 10.1.0.1, ... a... eate t.donts sO. rnallty et NI
Idbonto let Ne myself -r,,;-z;i, .e,,== n., oh In< tr.. tn. oaotoraft.

Visa Saw. raw 11 ord a ttuln, ...as. holm aro nta km..
1 adal 1.1111? U.K. NM 5110 INIS

at Della..... On Mee 0... or town. brace,. 14 web ..... ........v...,
sabl the SW., e vrwns ewe wool 7,:.: V.ZP,,trnZ",:r:=.4 ..: 1=1.'"111
In MO KU. Irma, dot 0.1. moan kefenen Ares as renemr.ats. 0.4 I. far

NZ:3= S'Iartslin': .. r...h Male..... a oNla ,,,,,, p ast . a. ast Mt.
a sums .. al. Illas Is. 44

'"'' ''..7.17..7Z":1, Z ............. ........... Clem tot A A A ,,..., ........ ...AA. .
pa...b.. wn. v....... .0.,..., ,,.., n g.,,,,,,,,, . r ft. P,...'m twat be OR. Ivo MS
.......I a... iltit-t ett len .1 I toe laterels....... .."1?/ttrlts.tr =1st '3.7141;
IISS I's WIS..... Stona sari' .. 41.1.111..M$ tr. re.
VI Saloon yelv 11 SUPT,r, V. .... gate to ihmottostoimeetattai eon oott laotd....1 KM
....... .1." .., ....... . nyr110 stns. slaw. attn.

Iose Pon 1..ram

w-
t.. to... at:4 ad el arm Na

rcm)rtaatt ;1991 tts the \ eat ,t erk hole, ( ilortonv Remitted Rs permission

st (De:r.
C)



Vltl 'Cei--tlubly
the maiordy vibe
hakie 'not hod SCSUOII
iniercoirise ancfn.).ay'
he-1eelin9.ad
.ever yhody rs doing it,
and under pressore tO
hin.ze seirical

: inter'coursewl)en
"theylre not ready.
:But we also recognize-
that.some young..
vi/Opien are
aCtive and that they

. .need acces.s- to .

.contlaceplion When .

they need-it.

40

USAT
19DAY

-,01,juo CoVOInn 7 'our,

71111I'S ROW is on MN Sa
and tstiether nem than sot sus no' a needed

Let's face up to teen sex
DIA VIEW Tom owl to Os

gnarl with Moor
tior IMO sox to promo* low
1111111Wf 1111111111S.

Teen lea has become a lad Dm of bre
SO% of pals and btAa of toss bei

come tem% active bY qe 17 25%
n(0111.331 111% of toys by see D

A taboo teetts beam corinant
or )eln al% °khan on aboebons.

Sll Mem a scent each ma on
haulm awed M,

AIDS as annsernoog teem A Mas.
sachuadas Huth found I in 16 morn
decked for AIDS tested comae

Atemenee a the best mu lo pre, en:
such sad fans But winos lads 11 r101
lay no" to ten ual not .0624 Dat
loth reed education

1.311 *ask. Carts 1700 pro AIM atari
LIM IlmsOf <dual= ambs to a shrimi
tar study of a smedumnon pruaram
Involving 750 rung omen all Min
pouos ihat had luch rates 04 orgasms

bumper tens 12 to 14 uont MAO:
a:40= web prams to tag., eau.
alas or Rush. hoa no, Ill lat m m MT,

)1t

%mum tu tune so.
Older krou Uo *VT ,ol000th,

se: abeam.' and cum plans mth
sense bore taught shout reproductive
health einem

ibe mums ume heanerum for sem
Mr parents aml 410.00cm)

S mow teem in the ;worms mire
balf as Limb as nonmanamants to he
sexual]. anne Aram the older toms
insse ether set path um Was likely as
noreparacmants to hare to thout
birth tnntrie Ishile those Duda Alm.
Meuse bealth woe Othadonh1104ylo

knoakdp and selfiresperi mi help
teens nuke moony* demons But
um mans weed muses merely trt
seam emu. sertuans Tau, nams bout es
Menem to a bur swu144 hoo n. ion
many dneO insahe menu And too
man, are tateta In ambers also Mier
bet name us ift oluesuon or am tr.
misdated M the aubmit

So Use numters 01 reenate MOM.
Mondani and AIDS mes erm

70 defeat those Ranh Mu of bre
teem need to be mood mth the Ma
atom so. IMO Um best Mtheetkun

THZ CHRISTIAN

Who Won the St

1

e=a manger a. earn. 0.0. area gam la pm

oloonOof H0000. anr...rem

BEST COPY AVAILABLE

44



iCIENCI MONITOR = .

xual Revolution?

41

fu ihnningham Naos October 5 MI

EDITORIALS

Learning To Say No
People oho Mow NOM the Wes

that 'jot say no m also the best gin
nip% to awed teenage pregnancies
have Wm Laughed at by dam who MY

anal lot simple
Hot Owls Inc (konerly Glob Clubs

Arweical has come up tenth a
that shows Just tam no' on

Ceith'rkey to radvetag the teenage
LIS:nrate Of mane first you

/4h adoimemis bow to my
the word

Its hot ostter 0410. mann{ the
forns the toned sound It

matter of becsaning educated atout
your body about relabonahtps about
papacy Awl motherhood at
Yerng

nutter of
Intern( Sow net tO

ert.In to the or
peer premum

platad on Menage
gala to become sex
easily actire

Owls Inc &eel
ciPed Ito Mogram
through a theoc-
ra1 mown that
imbed 750 pHs
ages 11 M 17 en

Dallas Memphis
Omaha and Mel
mington Del a

Pheladelptua sub.
arb

Participation in the program cut In
half the proportion of gets ages 12 to
14 who began to bare sextui mIll
coarse ft atm cut ie ball the number
of pregmacies among gots ages 15 to
17

TIN three:year study catcluded Nut
lust because a girl has all the high-rule
charaetentes hoes m an me, cat
family on welfare no father en the
Irene friends aM mother became
pregnant as teenagers doers t mean
she will follow that same bath

The Cols Int V.V.. Atte Sal,

geat IV trete Menage girls nag hkely
to ruccartb to peer prefaces Ilve pro-
gram has tour compineots The first
two 'Growing Together' ad 0011
Power Wool Power a., allIted at
IPhger get

Crown Tortim In:lodes fore two.
bow moo10ar daughter wortstopg to
Meter rammunmation between the..
The study concluded that parttaimest
wee Has than half as liters as non.
participants to Warne meetly
act. Well Power Memo Power es an
YaelloteneW Wan./ wage tbat
helm younger Mem Mon to Wt.no
aerially acme god still madam ikev
thendabos

The thud conmoneel.
'Taltne Care of Baal
nesC =Noes tune two-
boo same that In-
crease the gols desert
to avoid pregnancy The
workshops memo edo-
cats:mita/4 career *n-
ome that help Dm OLD
set goals in lite and
make respnosible deo
mons

The tonal component
Health Dredge Ls for

older teenagers many of
them &body segualin
01(111 Lemma in Hus
program are linked with

ownenunity based health clinics m
cluelmg Mom that offer contraeePtere
mews.* Participate were lets than
hall as likely to betenne reennant as
non-participants

Dols Ire deserves congratulations
Ice showing the teenage preorlare
rale tan be reduced men among high:
rest girls by gemg them the educatto
nal and pt. eloological support thm
need tonne gar ro

how rommme needs to dmeMp a
eat:responding pmgrain that a ill emu
lark get teenage lows to resat peer
Measure to became Setualit artne

Repnnted with pentusuon hum
rhe Ihronowitarre Newt

RcieintM t. :, .r N. . r r e....

I'll The I !wow, 4., 1.01,10 0,
, NU njIl. it .ene.1

BEST COPY AVAILABLE

45



llie following nu notletc. alio) coverecf thy per. ase
Di the Pr.ysenling Adjnyscynt Pretpi ,ncy po, arch

itirm +,1,1//i'L/11,/, triro
CNN Ft ,) I 0/11, /, ark
/15,01. f I. ,I s, 11,, tr. I Press
Ret.ore, r1,111.t or Ida, TV, huts'',

a, 0 I,
,

Arty s h .f ow, fr..I la fen o s ono. fla
ttl,,kailyll.f112,,.. I ff ft -1 111 r WA!

Al LI. nn flo

Ile 'p.a..
/Ilk, ',ye Eft 1,Pt.
.51,. On go ;rob iiiii
..5-1/./1. Mr IV 01.

/.7 )0sr 07,1, s

eke/am/I/ Iry
1.1 IMO

tr ilOr 11,1 1110,11,
No,of Torn, (boon

III AIJOI
tho Ott iqt

N1111111.1 IA, Mal Ill /POO. Ni vv.

H onor hy I xlnegotr tier 11,1 Loath"
I otosoille Count,

touato iron Row, hro,,,n, glayi,

Maryland Fitifyruft I venoh,

Mich., in I I I. /I

NI to I t Ili In I lOurio Oct

11,,ntinniro Is/11) IL graph

Now Jersov (", oar n OW, Post

North-Carolina Orrensnano Nins 5 eft

Ohio Coh.osnati !Moony,

OklatoAna 7hr Owlp Ohl phg.hrr

Rho& Island Provideme L ye .... lhillettri

AillenIcan Spmfator
Dalla,s Times Herald
tioustor, Post

I .
Vagliaa Norfolk Lodger Star ..

arrh/nond Times Dap itch





\Vorkintother

COSILL

MAURY ATTITUDES
Nalrla now mom boarWow waist.., ow
won onoeloil to we swarm ssio Soot
mom otrom miss boys ON' saes 15551 C.
Wawa% encode* Gamow el Carts how.
1...5011. silk* wows iinitooate
amoloo." ~awn feral.% Is to 54.
%Me am alois ow. Mob aro tows
11 ats dot elk to moo* wolalet

Maim amp soil *MOW Os dant
saws; saw Wow&

To WWI saw dawkwes milosumt, Sr
alma P1121hiumlso fikso

1MM bet &rola, *Wen Way Swap.
Twah Me OW Warty sows la ellianot

slow shwa sod osilare.
ha.. row MAI for seat Oa

as., not Mr oilost eiti Maas tam
Melo Mr to roompar mat wool*.

wlit *OW Mabel wol eiastioesto.
Uplift OW OVIMAYMMINYII WM ph

ow Se dowswass.
1016511 *MN OM *mono* caws bad

snd awes donee. ma mat gantry
*aft ewe tattoo two Noe lost.

Wert, *44, retruan IV.... b.
Wm, lemd fo..

THETIONANGE COUNTY

cgiser
I FAMILY NOTEBOOK

Peers, abuse
influence use of
drugs by girls

Go Is Inc.. formerly
Girls Clubs of Amer.
ma. offers these bits
of mformation on
girls and substance

abuse:
Peer pressure seems more

of a (actor in girls use of drugs
and alcohol than in boys' use.

Few yds use drugs when
they're alone. Groups of girls
tend to use socially -approprt.
ate drugs (alcohol. tobacco.
diet pills). Girls are more lskely
to be introduced to illicit drugs
by boys. often when dating

More girls than boys use
cigarettes, dset pills and other
substances to deal with body.
image problems.

A survey of 10thgrade girls
in Northern California found
that young women with bulimic
symptoms reported higher rates
of drunkenness. rnartluana and
ctgarene use. and greater len
els of depmsire symptoms
than their peers.

A study of 414 lids in
chemical dependency treatment
program found differences tri
drugiuse behavior based on sen .
ual-abuse espenences. Gsrls
who had been semally abused
were significantly more likely
to use stimulants. sedanves,
tranquilizers and hallucinogens
They also reported earlier first
use of alcohol and drugs, more
sell.medication. and more use
to escape family problems
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alje IIMOhtgton post

Gender Gap in Science
THAT G IP in math and science achieve-

ment, the one that manifests itself first in
the lower test scores of adolescent girls,

persists throughout school and influences wom-
en s aspirations has been studied and argued
user at least since the advent of the No. 2 pencil.
Is it in the genes or In the culture? Is it biology or
bias that propels Johnny toward the computer
and Jane toward the artwork? The definitive
ansuer remains elusive, hut some recent re-
searsh in testing and behavior Certainly suggests
training Can clove the gap.

The Mathernatual Association of Amenc.i.
Committee on the Participation of Women has
compiled 55 reasons why tco few women win at
mathematics. All pertain to customs prevalent in
places as different as nursery schools and doctoral
prograins Tbe committee cites the pervasive Influ-
ence of scx stem ots ping and the behef that mathe-
maws is "not teininine." It also questions the
validity of mini& hurce tests, which favor ag.
grease risk takers (Females perform better than
nualeS On opernended" math tests administered in
the Netherlands, preliminary results indrcate.)

Meanwhile, another research group has looked
at girls at play and in the classroom and discos.
ered that when they are offered encouragement
and the chance to seek adventure they persist
and perform well A report of the National
Resource Center of Girls Inc. (formerly Girls
Clubs of America) found that -much more expo-
sure to machinery and equipment, much more
interaction with plants and animals, many more
field trips to factooes and laboratories and many
more chances to get really dirty in the process of
exploration are part of the prescription for inter-
esting girls in math and science." A separate
longitudinal study of high school students finds
that the more math classes girls take, the better
they do and the more the gender gap narrows.

Today, fewer than me-filth of the name's scren-
trsts and mathematicians are women. Yet more
than half the new entrants in the work !tore
between now and the year 2000 will be women II
this country expects to excel in science and math,
and attract gond thinkers and problem solvers to
the work force it's going to have to change the
prevailing mind set about girls and math.
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Errata
p. vi, line 3: "nonparticipants" should read "short-term participants."

p. 2, Figure lc: "last 3 months" should read "last 4 weeks."
p. 2, Figure Id: "last 3 months" should read "last 4 weeks."

p. 9, Figure 5: The length of the shortest bars ("Long-term participants in Taking Care of
Business") should be scaled at an odds ratio of I (cf. Figures 2-4 and Figure 6).
The relative lengths of the bars are correct.
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Foreword

Girls Incorporated designed the Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy study to include girls and
young women. By doing so, the organization does not mean to imply that both the "problem"
and the "solution" of preventing adolescent pregnancy rest solely with girls and young women.
If fewer teenage men were sexually active and if those who were shared more responsibility
for contraception, fewer teenage women would become pregnant. If society did not tell
women that their major goals in life are sexiness and motherhood, fewer young women would
consider parenthood in their teen years as a rational solution to loneliness and anxiety. And if
society offered all young people more life options, fewer of them would drift into parenthood
for lack of better opportunities. As an advocacy organization, Girls Incorporated concentrates
on teenage women not because they are solely responsible for the problem of adolescent
sexuality, but because girls and young women are the ones whose lives are most drastically af-
fected by teenage pregnancy.

Truth, Trust and Technology was written by Heather Johnston Nicholson, Ph.D., Leticia T.
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Truth, Trust and Technology
New research on preventing adolescent pregnancy

EXECUTIVE S_UMMARY

Teenage pregnancy is a significant social problem. One organization estimates that births to
teen mothers cost the taxpayers of the United States $21 billion in a single year (Armstrong &
Waszak, 1990). Each year more than one million young women age 19 or under become
pregnant (Renshaw, forthcoming). Of great concern to Girls Incorporated is that 82 percent of
the pregnancies to teens in 1987 were unintended (Forrest & Singh, 1990). Thus, teen preg-
nancy is a problem to young women themselves.

Many young women are at risk of pregnancy. Through the teenage years the proportion of
young women who have had intercourse increases significantly by age: 27 percent at age 15,
34 percent at 16, 51 percent at 17 and 70 percent at age 18 (National Center for Health Statis-
tics, 1991). Although the proportion of sexually active teens using contraceptives has in-
creased in remit years, one-third of young women used no birth control the first time they had
sex and in 1988 one in five sexually active young women were not using any form of birth
control (Forrest & Singh, 1990).

Girls Incorporated, formerly Girls Clubs of America, is a national youth organization with ex-
perience in advocacy, research-based programming and evaluation. Since 1981 the organiza-

tion has been on record as supporting age-appropriate sexuality education and by 1984, 83 per-

cent of Girls Incorporated affiliates provided such education. In 1985 Girls Incorporated began
a major project to develop and evaluate a comprehensive program to assist young women in
avoiding pregnancy. Involving 750 girls and young women ages 12 to 17, the three-year
research project measured the effectiveness of the comprehensive approach and each of its four

components.

The Program and Results of Research

Growing Together is a series of parent-daughter workshops for younger teens designed
to increase positive communication about sexual information and values, decreasing
adolescent pregnancy by delaying the onset of sexual intercourse.

Findings: Girls who participated in Growing Together were less than half as likely as
nonparticipants to have sexual intercourse for the first time.

Will Power/Won't Power is an assertiveness training program for younger teens
designed to help them say and mean "No" while remaining popular with peers of both

sexes.

Findings: Girls who participated in nearly the entire program of Will Power/Won't
Power were the least likely to have sexual intercourse--only half as likely as nonpar-
ticipants and less than one-third as likely as girls who participated for a shorter time.
Thus "dosage" makes a difference in this skill-based program.

Taking Care of Business is a structured program designed to increase older teens'
motivation and skills to avoid pregnancy through educational and career planning,
goal-setting, communication skills and responsible decision-making about sexual be-

havior and contraception.

5 9
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Findings: Young women who participated in nearly the entire program of Taking Care
of Business were about half as likely as nonparticipants to have sex without birth con-
trol and about one-third as likely as nonparticipants. Consistent participants were one-
third as likely as the short-term participants to become pregnant. Again, "dosage" ap-
pears to be important to the process of developing skills.

Health Bridge is a delivery system that links education at Girls Incorporated centers
with community-based health (including reproductive health) services, addressing the
psychological and logistical barriers many young people offer as reasons for not prac-
ticing effective contraception when they first start having intercourse.

Findings: Young women who participated in Health Bridge reported having sex
without birth control one-third as often as nonparticipants. Health Bridge participants
also were less than half as likely to become pregnant as nonparticipants.

Recommendations for Youth Organizations Funders and Policy Makers

Start early and stay late. To be helpful, interventions to prevent adolescent pregnancy must
start early in a girl's life, by age 9, and stay late, through age 18, as she takes increasing
responsibility for her well-being.

The more the better. "Dosage" can be important to the effectiveness of programsit takes
time to develop skills, think through values and establish a peer group who make decisions
about sexuality carefully. Pregnancy prevention is not finished when a program ends but is
part of the responsibility of caring and reliable adults--parents, teachers and community mem-bers.

Truth, trust and technology are the keys to responsible behavior. Every young woman
needs and deserves information (truth), support (trust), and skills and rcsources, including con-
traception when she needs it (technology). These are the keys that enable a young woman to
have the confidence to keep saying "No" and making it stick or to insist upon contraception
until she makes a responsible decision to become a mother. Society shares responsibility with
young women to see that they have access to the services they need.

Youth organizations and other community groups have a significant role to play in reduc-
ing teen pregnancy. These organizations can provide both a support system for the majority
of young women who arc not sexually active but may feel as if "everybody's doing it" and
nonjudgmental assistance to the large minority who are sexually active. The organizations can
be advocates in their communities, encouraging increased services and improved policies that
help all young women to plan their futures instead of drifting into them.

Spend now, save later. Investing in pregnancy prevention today means less money spent on
economic assistance later. Early, unplanned pregnancy is enormously costly--a single preg-
nancy delayed beyond the teen years may save society $8500 (Armstrong & Waszak, 1990).
As an organization whose purpose is to enable girls and young women to succeed in an ineq-
uitable world, Girls Incorporated is even more concerned with the costs of early sexual activity
and teenage pregnancy to young women--emotional distress and barriers to achieving educa-
tional, occupational and family goals. Preventing adolescent pregnancy makes economic--and
humansense.

The Girls Incorporated Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy project shows promise that
"something works" in enabling teen women to avoid pregnancy.

CO
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Introduction

New research shows promise that youth-serving organizations can help young women get
through their teenage years without experiencing pregnancy.. The Girls Incorporated (formerly
Girls Clubs of America)1 Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy study found that younger teens
who participated in one of two developmentally appropriate program components were less
likely to initiate sexual intercourse. Older teens who participated in one of two different
program components were less likely to become pregnant than were their nonparticipating
peers. "Dosage" was important in two of the programs especially emphasizing skills: it was
important to participate in the entire program to have the desired effect on sexual behavior.

Why the Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy project?

Teenage pregnancy is a significant social problem. One organization estimates that births that
occurred when the mother was a teenager cost the taxpayers of the United States $21 billion in
1989 (Armstrong & Waszak, 1990). Each year more than one million young women age 19
or under become pregnant (Henshaw, forthcoming). Of the teenage pregnancies conceived in
1987, 36 percent ended in abortions, 14 percent in miscarriages and 50 percent in live births
(Forrest & Singh, 1990). Of great concern to Girls Incorporated and other organizations
working with youth is that 82 percent of the pregnancies to teens in 1987 were unintended
(Forrest & Singh, 1990). Thus, teen pregnancy is experienced as a problem by young women
themselves.

Many young women are at risk of pregnancy. Under age 15 the majority of young women
have never had sexual intercourse, yet even at this age 27 percent have had intercourse at least
once and 13 percent are currently sexually active (Figure la). Through the teenage years the
proportion of young women who have had intercourse increases significantly from year to
year: 27 percent at age 15, 34 percent at age 16, 51 percent at age 17, and 70 percent at age
18 (National Center for Health Statistics, 1991). Among young women ages 15-19 a majority
(53%) have had intercourse, 43 percent have had intercourse in the last three months and 12
percent have been pregnant (Figure lb). Although the proportion of sexually active teens
using contraceptives has increased in recent years, one-third of young women used no method
of contraception the first time they had sex and in 1988 one in five sexually active young
women were not using any form of birth control (Forrest & Singh, 1990). Among sexually
active teens, those who were younger (Zabin, Hirsch, Smith, Streett & Hardy, 1986) and those
with low incomes (Forrest & Singh, 1990) were less likely to use contraception.

Why Girls Incorporated?

During the 1980s, schools and other youth-seri/ing agencies were implementing and evaluating
pilot programs intended to decrease teenage pregnancy (reviewed in Hofferth, 1987 and
Nicholson, 1988). Girls Incorporated already had considerable experience in both research-
based programming, including program evaluation, and in family life education. lv lany Girls
Incorporated members in more than 120 cities across the nation belonged to groups considered
at high risk for teenage pregnancy, including low-income families, single-parent families, and
minority racial/ethnic background.

I. In April 1990 Girls Clubs of America changed its name to Girls Incorporated in order to
reflect more strongly the organization's mission of preparing girls to achieve an economically
independent, responsible and confident adulthood and to distinguish the organization more
clearly from other national and local youth organizations with similar names. This report uses
the new name Girls Incorporated for the national organization and participating affiliates.
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Figure 1, Sexual Behavior of Young Women
United States & Girls Incorporated Study
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Affiliates' expenence was that these young women themselves saw pregnancy as a problem.
By 1981 the governing council of Girls Incorporated had adopted a policy statement endorsing
age-appropriate sexuality education by schools and community organizations, in support of
parents as the primary sex educators. The national organization instituted training to comple-
ment its nationally acclaimed publications on adolescent sexuality and parenting; several af-
filiates developed their own pregnancy prevention programs. By 1984, 83 percent of Girls In-
corporated affiliates were providing some programs in sexuality education. Girls Incorporated
also took national leadership in the policy arena on adolescent pregnancy prevention, par-
ticipating in the Title X (family planning) coalition and informing others of the seriousness of
the issues.

Girls Incorporated decided to develop and evaluate a comprehensive program to address the
maze that girls and young women must negotiate to emerge from their teens without children
of their own. As shown in Figure 1, the organization, working with four affiliates, success-
fully enlisted girls and young women at high risk of early pregnancy, whose participation
served to refine the program and to study its effects. For example, as of their first survey,
prior to any involvement in the study (Figure 1c), 25 percent of the girls ages 12-14 had had
sexual intercourse at least once, 9 percent had had sex in the last four weeks and 1.5 percent
had been pregnant, a profile similar to the considerably older national sample (Figure la).
Among the older girls in the study (Figure Id), most of whom were under age 17 (mean age
15.7 years), 60 percent had ever had sexual intercourse, 30 percent had had sex in the last four
weeks and 9 percent had been pregnant, again a profile of risk similar to a national sample
(Figure lb) with an older mean age.

The comprehensive approach and program components

Studies of knowledge-based sex education programs have shown that while participants learn
much of the information presented, their learning does not carry over into a lower likelihood
of sexual activity or greater use of contraception (Kirby, 1984). Girls Incorporated national
staff, working with recognized experts on teenage pregnancy and sexuality education, designed
a comprehensive approach providing factual information and skill-building exercises to enable
girls and young women to make and implement responsible decisions about sex.

Recognizing that in today's society it is not easy or automatic for young women to avoid preg-
nancy until they finish high school, the approach was comprehensive and addressed the differ-
ing needs and levels of understanding of young women of different ages. The programmatic
goal for girls ages 12-14 was the choice not to have sexual intercourse until they were older,
so p:ograms for these girls stressed skills in communication and in identifying and resisting
pressures toward sexual activity. Young women ages 15-17 could participate in programs
stressing life planning skills and health education and care. These programs shared two goals:
to increase young women's motivation to avoid pregnancy until they made a responsible deci-
sion for motherhood and to give them the means to avoid pregnancy through the decision for
abstinence or effective use of birth control. These program components were offered and
evaluated in four Girls Incorporated affiliates serving communities where the teen pregnancy
rate was higher than the national average. The four affiliates selected as demonstration sites
were in Dallas, Memphis, Omaha, and Wilmington, Delaware.

Growing Together

This program component provided a series of workshops in which 12- to I4-year-old girls and
their mothers (less often, fathers, or other significant adults) practiced communicating about a
variety of issues, particularly sex and sexuality. Many parents find it difficult to talk to their
children about sex, whether providing information or discussing values (Alan Guttmacher In-
stitute, 1981). In 1985, whcn Growing Together was developed, the weight of the literature
indicated that girls who could talk with their parents, particularly their mothers, about scx
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were less likely to be having intercourse (reviewed in Fox & Inazu, 1980 and McAnarney,
1982) and more likely to be using birth control if they did (Coles & Stokes, 1985). Although
some later studies (Furstenberg, Herceg-Baron, Shea & Webb, 1986; Treboux & Busch-
Rossnagel, 1990) failed to find a similar connection, it was considered important to test Grow-
ing Together as a component of the comprehensive approach.

The program was implemented as five two-hour sessions led by a trained facilitator. The first
session was for adults only, giving parents a chance to feel comfortable with the facilitator and
each other and reassuring parents that they are competent to discuss sensitive issues related to

sex and sexuality with their daughters. The remaining four sessions covered such topics as
reproductive anatomy, physical and emotional aspects of puberty, accurate information about
pregnancy and acceptable types of dating. Interactive exercises included role plays and discus-

sions; depending on the exercise, parents and daughters participated as individuals or as
parent-child(ren) teams as well as by family role in order to point out that differences in
opinion arenot always disagreements between parent and child.

Will Power/Won't Power
a

This second program component for girls ages 12-14 focused on group-building, understanding
relationships and practicing assertiveness skills. Expert opinion suggested adirective approach

for these young teens, asserting that the participants are too young to be having sexual inter-

course and guiding them to practice recognizing and resisting pressures to do so (Kirby, 1984;
McAnarney, 1982). Studies published after Will Power/Won't Power was designed confirm
that programs based on skill-building and social learning can help young teens decide to delay

becoming sexually active (Howard & McCabe, 1990) or to avoid substance abuse (Ellickson &

Bell, 1990).

The Will Power/Won't Power curriculum was delivered in six two-hour sessions. Activities
included recognizing media and peer pressure to be sexually active through the use of films,
videos and exercises, reasons to avoid early sexual activity, and discussion of physical affec-

tion and dating situations. Many of these situations, including resisting "lines" and other pres-

sures to engage in sexual intercourse, were explored through role plays.

Takthg Care of Business

This program component for older teens ages 15-17 included career education and future plan-

ning as well as information on sexuality, reproduction and contraception. This approach was

based on studies of young women from a variety of cultures and backgrounds indicating that

those who see a bright future ahead, as evidenced by their aspirations and career goals, are less
likely to experience pregnancy as teenagers than their peers whose aspirations and goals are

lower (Chilman, 1980). As argued by researcher and program consultant Joy Dryfoos (1983),
knowledge of how to prevent pregnancy is not enough; young women also need motivation to

postpone pregnancy.

The version of the program now called Taking Care of Business used during the Preventing
Adolescent Pregnancy study was based on Choices: A teen woman's journal for self-awareness

and personal planning (Bingham, Edmondson & Stryker, 1983), a life options curriculum
developed by the Girls Club of Santa Barbara. The nine twn-hnur sessions included such

topics as sexual responsibility as defined by abstinence or consistent of effective contracep-

tion, information on reproduction, birth control and sexually transmitted diseases, career plan-

ning and goal-setting, and communications and assertiveness skills. The most recent studies of

similar life options programs (Allen, Hoggson & Phillibcr, 1990; Philliber & Allen, in press;
Public/Private Ventures, 1987) agree that this approach is useful.

86-877 0 95 3
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Health Bridge

Health Bridge, the second component of the Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy project designed
for older teens, coordinated health education, including information on reproduction and con-
traception, in Girls Incorporated centers with comprehensive health services in a neighborhood
clinic. According to the Panel on Adolescent Pregnancy and Childbearing of the National
Research Council, pregnancy is best prevented among sexually active teenagers by encourag-
ing their consistent use of birth control methods and ensuring their access to contraceptives
(Hayes, 1987). While the final verdict on the effectiveness of school clinics is stillout, four
school clinics prescribing birth control and providing contraceptives or access to them recorded
over twice the percentage of student visits for reproductive health care as did two school
clinics only providing contraceptive counseling (Kirby, Waszak & Ziegler, 1991). Zabin
found that sexually active junior high school students in Baltimore increased their use of birth
control methods when a readily accessible storefront clinic was established as part of a com-
prehensive program (Zabin et al., 1986).

The design of Health Bridge combined the fcatures of school-based and neighborhood clinics
found to be most important in preventing adolescent pregnancy: ongoing health education and
ca.se management provided by a nurse from the bridging clinic, with the attendant opportunity
for building a trust relationship; comprehensive health services, so that making use of the
clinic was not tantamount to announcing contraceptive or reproductive health concerns; and
accessibility, allowing participants to attend educational sessions and make fullest use of the
available health services. Financial and logistical difficulties in implementing Health Bridge
meant that this program component could not always be implemented exactly as designed.
Health Bridge was implemented for between one and two and a halfyears at each demonstra-
tion site.

Study design

The field research for the Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy project ran from October 1985 to
October 1988. During the three project years, each site recruited as many girls and young
women currently between the ages of 12 and 17 as possible as project participants. Project
participants were encouraged but not required to enroll in program components for which they
were eligible by age. Those who did became the experimental group. Project participants
who did not enroll in any of the program components served as the control group. All project
participants, regardless of program parti, ipation, were asked to complete an annual survey in
October of each program year and at t' . end of the program. This survey collected back-
ground data on participants and asked auout their attitudes toward teenage pregnancy, their
educational and career goals and expectations, their sexual experience and their use of birth
control methods. Young women who turned 13 during the course of the projcct were en-
couraged to continue their participation by completing the same annual survey as youngerpar-
ticipants and an additional part asking about educational and job experience, marital status and
numbers of pregnancies and births. The analysis of data was based on those young women
who coinpleted at least two consecutive annual surveys--that is young women for whom there
is "before" and "after" information on sexual behavior for one year, with (participants) or
without participation (nonparticipants) in onc or more program components during that year.

Project participants chose whether or not to enroll in program components, rather than bcing
randomly assigned to experimental and control groups. One might susptct that teen women
viho enrolled in program components differed from those who did not enroll in ways that
meant they were less likely to become pregnant as teenagers regardless of participation. In or-
der to test for this possible self-selection bias, the annual survey collected information on back-
ground characteristics--age, race/ethnicity, mother's education, family structure and sources of
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income, academic average, educational expectation, being the child, sister or friend of a
teenage mother and previous sexual activity--which previous studies had found to be associated
with risk of teenage pregnancy.

Study subjectsparticipants and nonparticipants

In the sample for measuring the effectiveness of Growing Together and Will Power/Won't
Power the girls who had ever had intercourse were excluded, since this was the outcome
measure of interest. The girls were young, with 11 percent not yet having turned 12 at their
first survey, 55 percent age 12 and 34 percent age 13 or 14. About 75 percent of the girls
were African American and 25 percent were white, Latina or of other racial or ethnic groups.
The majority, 83 percent, were Protestant or of other religions and 17 percent were Catholic.
In this young group one-third (36%) reported living in a household with a father, three-fifths
(58%) had mothers who had completed high school and one-fourth (24%) reported welfare as
a source of family income. The mothers of 37 percent of these girls had been pregnant before
age 18 and 46 percent of the girls had girlfriends who had been pregnant before age 18. There
were 412 girls who were subjects in the research project for one year, at any time during the
three years that programs were offered in the study, and who had never had intercourse at their
first survey. Of these girls, 257 participated in Will Power/Won't Power and 84 participated
in Growing Together, including 46 who participated in both components; 117 participated in
neither component.

In the sample measuring the effectiveness of Taking Care of Business and Health Bridge the
young women who had had intercourse were included but those who had been pregnant were
excluded, since this was the outcome of greatest interest. The average (mean) age was 15.4
years; 84 percent were African American with 16 percent white, Latina or of other racial or
ethnic backgrounds; 90 percent were Protestant or other religions and 10 percent were
Catholic. In this older group 29 percent were living in a household with a father, 62 percent
had mothers who had completed high school and 27 percent reported welfare as a source of
family income. The mothers of 45 percent of the young women had been pregnant before age
18, as had girlfriends of 85 percent of them. The sample for testing the effectiveness of
Taking Care of Business comprised 343 young women ages 14-20 who took part in the
research project for one year and had never been pregnant prior to their first survey; of these,
165 participated in Taking Care of Business and the 178 who did not participate became the
comparison group. In the sample to test Health Bridge there were 359 young women; 89 be-
came participants and 270 were nonparticipants.

For the test of the comprehensive approach involving all four components the sample consisted
of 343 girls and young women ages 12 to 15 when the study began who had completed three
consecutive annual surveys and had never been pregnant prior to the first survey. Among the
237 program participants, 133 participated in one component, 104 in two or more components;
106 young women did not participate in any component and became the comparison group.

Background characteristics of participants in each program component were generally found to
be similar to those of nonparticipants in the same age group. The only program component for
which there was evidence of possible self-selection bias was Growing Together; girls enrolled
in this program component were significantly different from nonparticipants in several back-
ground characteristics associated with less likelihood of being sexually active, a finding con-
sidered important for the design of future parent-daughter programs. The differences were
statistically controlled in data analyses. In the case of Will Power/Won't Power and Taking
Care of Business, a further comparison was made after dividing the experimental group into
those who had participated for the average number of hours or more and those who had par-
ticipated less than the average numbcr of hours. Two significant differences were found be-
tween the Taking Care of Business groups. but both indicated that program nonparticipants
were possibly at less risk of teenage pregnancy than were program participants, contrary to the
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assumption of self-selection bias. Comparisons of project subjects who enrolled in no program
components, in one program component and in two or morc program components found no
significant differences in background characteristics between these groups.

Results

The four program components of the Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy project show promise
in achieving their goals of postponing first sexual intercourse for younger participants and
decreasing the likelihood of pregnancy among older participants. "Dosage" seems to be impor-
tant in the two programs focusing on skill development, Will Power/Won't Power and Taking
Care of Business; the teen women who participated in these programs for more than the
average number of hours were the most likely to achieve program goals. Participation in one
or more program components also seems to increase participants' probability of avoiding
teenage pregnancy.

Unless stated otherwise, the results reported here are statistically significant at the .10 level or
below. That is, such a difference between participants and nonparticipants, or between long-
term and short-term participants, would occur by chance 10 times or fewer in 100.

Growing Together

Girls who participated in Growing Together were less than half as likely as their peers who did
not participate to have sexual intercourse for the first time. As shown in Figure 2, Growing
Together participants were more likely than nonparticipants to continue to delay having sexual
intercourse until they were older. This was true independent of the number of hours girls par-
ticipated in this program component.

Will Power/Won't Power

To sec whether "dosage" makes a difference, the girls in the Will Power/Won't Power study
were divided into three groups for analysis--girls who participated in Will Power/Won't Power
for ten hours or more, girls who participated for one to nine hours, and nonparticipants (0
hours). The girls who participated in nearly the entire program (10 or more hours) were the
least likely to have sexual intercourse for the first time--only half as likely as nonparticipants
(Figure 3). Figure 3 also shows that the girls who participated in nearly the entire program
were less than onc-third as likely as girls who participated for a shorter time to have sexual in-
tercourse for the first time. The apparent diference between short-term participants and non-
participants should be viewed very cautiously since it was not a statistically significant
difference--that is, the difference might well have occurred by chance. If this difference is
"real," it may be that special attention must be paid to retaining teens who seem less com-
mitted to the program, or that young teens who are more interested in sexualityfor example
already datingare more likely to sign up for a program than their peers for whom decision-
making about sexual behavior is less immediate. As we explore the data further through
causal modeling, the extent to which the nonparticipant/short-term participant difference is
"real" may become clearer. The effects that arc statistically significant suggest that participa-
tion in the full program is associated with delay in first intercourse.

Taking Care of Business

Again to address the question of "dosage"--whether the amount of involvement in the program
is important to its effectiveness--the subjects for the study of Taking Care of Business were
divided into young women who participated for 13 or more hours, those who participated for 1
to 12 hours, and nonparticpants (0 hours). Young women who participated in the entire
program (13 or more hours) were about half as likely as nonparticipants to have sex without
contraception (Figure 4). Those who participated for the entire program were only one-third as
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likely as their peers who participated less than 13 hours to have sex without using contracep-
tion. Again the apparent difference between the nonparticipants and the short-term participants
was not statistically significant and could well have occurred by chance. If the difference is
"real," it may signal the importance of making programs for older teens attractive and con-
venient enough to retain their full participation, or the need to back up educational programs
with reproductive health services, such as the Health Bridge. The effects that are statistically
significant suggest that participation in the full program is associated with greater likelihood of
using contraception.

As shown in Figure 5, these more consistent participants in Taking Care of Business were
somewhat (but not significantly) less likely than nonparticipants and one-third as likely as the
short-term participants to become pregnant. The statistically significant results suggest the im-
portance of participation in the entire program.

Health Bridge

Young women who participated in Health Bridge reported one-third the incidence of sex
without using contraception compared to their peers who did not participate. Health Bridge
participants were also less thIn half as likely to become pregnant as nonparticipants (Figure 6).

Comprehensive participation

Teen women who participated in one or more of the program components during a two-year
period were less than half as likely as nonparticipants to become pregnant. Project participants
as a group and when divided by participation in one or more than one program component
were not notably more likely than nonparticipants to use contrneption at last sexual inter-
course. This result is puzzling and contrary to expectation.

Discussion

Virtually all of the analysis of data collected in the Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy study
suggests that each program component is effective in preventing adolescent pregnancy. In two
programs length of participation was crucial to program effectiveness. We conjecture that for
girls enrolled in Will Power/Won't Power greater length of participation allows more practice
of communication and assertiveness skills and may also reflect stronger committhent to the
program's goals. Similar factors may also be operating in Taking Care of Business, which
emphasizes decision-making skills. Length of participation proved less crucial in the other two
program componen:s. Growing Together also involves practicing skills, in this case com-
munication, but the relationship between the participant and a trusted adult seems less subject
to quantity than quality of time invested. In Health Bridge, again, establishing a relationship
with a nurse or other caring adult and feeling connected to a comprehensive clinic as a means
to using effective birth control may not take a specific number of hours or sessions.

Though self-selection bias would be suspected when participants chose to enroll or not in

program components, analysis of background characteristics showed no evidence of self-
selection bias in the study population as a whole or in the experimental and control groups for
three of the program components. Participants in Growing Together were significantly dif-
ferent from nonparticipants of the samc ages. White and Latina girls were more likely than
African American girls, and Catholic girls more likely than Protestant girls, to participatein
Growing Together. These factors were controlled in the analysis but the difference between
participants and nonparticipants may account for some of the apparent effectiveness of this one
program component.
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Growing Together in its published version has been adapted for younger girls, ages 9-11. This
change to a younger age group is intended to help girls and their parents establish good com-
munication and discuss values and information concerning sex and sexuality so that they can
continue to do so as the girls negotiate the nersonal and social challengesof adolescence. Al-
though the resulting program has not been studied, the hope is that girls and their parents from
all backgrounds will find parent-daughter workshops more appealing when the girls are
younger.

The age range for Health Bridge has been expanded in the published version to include girls
from age 12 on, responding both to the fact that some girls this young were having intercourse
and to the experience of the demonstration sites that younger girls were eager to listen to and
talk with Health Bridge nurses.

Recommendations

The promising findings from the Girls Incorporated study have implications for adults working
ith girls and young women in other settings, and for funders and policy makers concerned

with youth.

Start early and stay late:
Sexuality education needs to start as early as age 9 and last through age 17 or 18. Both the
literature on sexuality education and our experience in the study recommend that sexuality
education should begin by at least the fourth grade, or age 9. About one-fourth ofgirls have
had sexual intercourse by age 15, too many of them by age 12 or 13. The proportion who are
sexually experienced and active increases rapidly each year after 15, although there is still a
substantial minority of teens age 17 and 18 who deserve support for the decision not to have
sexual intercourse.

The barrage of messages about sexuality in our culture leaves girls and young women under-
standably confused. Should they believe the advertisers of jeans and beer? Parents or religious
leaders? Older teens or close friends when making decisions about sex? A peremptory "just
say 'No fails to take account of the developing strengths and needs of girls. By age nine
girls need to know about their developing bodies and share theirconcerns about sexuality with
caring and sensible adults. As they get older they should have help sorting through the mixed
messages, acquiring a firm belief that it is their right not to have sexual intercourse and the
skills to make the decision stick without becoming social outcasts. While they are still in
junior high or high school young women need to learn to plan their own lives and have the
skills and adult support to decide if and when children might be part of the picture. Whatever
adults would wish for them, many young women do become sexually active while in their
teens and they require the information and resources to prevent pregnancy and sexually trans-
mitted disease in order to pursue their own educational, occupational and family goals. To be
helpful, interventions to prevent adolescent pregnancy must resNnd to the issues young
women arc confronting--they must start early in a girl's life and stay late as she takes increas-
ing responsibility for her well-being.

The more the better:
"Dosage" can be important to effectiveness. It takes time to develop skills, to think through
values and to establish a group of peers who make decisions about sexualitycarefully, so
programs may need to last several sessions over several weeks. Program developers need to
pay as much attention to retention as recruitment. Programs should address real problems of
teens to sustain their interest. Another aspect of "the more the better" is that pregnancy
prevention is not "finished" when a given program is over. Although we cannot prove it from
this study alone, the chances are that teens who receive consistent messages and reliable adult
support at home, school and community organizations are more likely to prevent pregnancy
successfully.
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Truth, trust and technology are the keys to responsible behavior:
For most young women, particularly for young teens, responsible behavior means deciding not

to have sex until thly are older. Realistically, however, there will always be some teen
women who are sexually active. Every young woman needs and deserves information (truth),
support (trust) and skills and resources, including access to contraception when she needs it
(technology). These are the keys that enable a young woman to have the confidence to keep

saying "No" and making it stick or to insist up3n contraception until she makes a responsible
decision to become a mother. Thus, society shares responsibility with young women to see

that they have access to the services they need.

Youth organizations and other community groups have a significant role to play in reduc-

ing teen pregnancy:
The prevalence of pregnancy among Girls Incorporated members (and presumably among
members of other youth organizations) implies that girls whobecome pregnant are not neces-

sarily uninvolved and isolated. The Girls Incorporated Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy study
shows that organizations already trusted by parents and children can help young women learn
the information and skills they need to make responsible decisions in the context of family and
community values. They can provide both a support system for the majority of young women
who are not sexually active but may feel as if "everybody's doing it" and nonjudgmental assis-

tance to the large minority who are sexually active. Organizatiois can be advocates in their
communities, encouraging increased services and improved policies that help all young women

to plan their futures instead of drifting into them.

Spend now, save later:
Investing in pregnancy prevention today means less money spent on economic asssistance later.

Early, unplanned pregnancy is enormously costly. Oue organization estimates that teen preg-

nancies cost society $21.55 billion in 1989 (Armstrong and Waszak, 1990) and that the poten-

tial savings to society for a single pregnancy delayed beyond the teen years is more than
$8500. As an organization whose purpose is to help girls and young women succeed in an in-

equitable world, Girls Incorporated is even more concerned with the costs of early sexual ac-

tivity and teenage pregnancy to young women. Teenage pregnancy is a risk factor for future
unplanned pregnancies (Sornstein, Hilton & Montoya, 1985). Teenage motherhood makes it

difficult to complete one's education and locks many young women into low-paying jobs
(Hayes, 1987; Youth and America's Future, 1988). Both government and private funders

must begin making the fiscally prudent and humane decision to increase funding for sex educa-

tion and reproductive health care, including contraceptive services. Preventing adolescent

pregnancy makes economic--and human--sense.

Preliminary estimates indicate that offering all four components of the Girls Incorporated
Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy program to one girl costs about $1200. Participation in this
program can not only help teen women to postpone pregnancy until they are ready for
motherhood, but to acquire skills and confidence that will help them be more responsible
adults, with a secure future for themselves and their families.

Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy in action

Enthusiasm for all four program components at the demonstration sites was high, and local

staff members believed that the programs were helping Girls Incorporated members acquire the

knowledge, skills and motivation to delay becoming sexually active or pregnant. Their ex-
periences and early evaluations led to publication of program curricula, revised in light of

three years of implementation, in 1988 and training of Girls Incorporated staff at any inter-

ested affiliate to offer the program components as soon as the experimental phase of the project

ended. In 1990, 62 affiliates offered at least one program component to over 6500 girls and
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young women. As Girls Incorporated staff continue to analyze data collected in the Preventing
Adolescent Pregnancy project and affiliates continue to evaluate their experiences in offering
the program components, further studies will be published and new revisions may be adopted.

Recruitment for Growing Together has proved difficult less because of parent reticence than in
light of realities of family life, especially as many Girls Incorporated members live in single-
parent families. Providing transportation to and from sessions, a snack or light meal and child
care for younger siblings have proven helpful in allowing parents and daughters to participate.
As explained above, the program has been revised for 9- to 11-year-olds and their parents.

Will Power/Won't Power is the most readily implemented program component for most youth
organizations. Girls enjoy the activities and skill practice. Materials are inexpensive and easy
to obtain, and often staff have the small-group, interactive skills the program requires.

In the revision of the program, assertiveness and peer support (as opposed to peer pressure) are
further emphasized. Participants are encouraged to form a sorority supporting each other in
the decision to wait until they are older to have sex. Girls are given more practice in assertive-
ness skills and more guidance in declining sexual activity, particularly for those girls who have
previously had sexual intercourse.

The published version of Taking Care of Business concentrates less on careers and more on
issues of and information about sex and sexuality while preserving its emphasis on life-
planning skills. As older teens have many competing obligations, this program proved most
successful wl,en offered as part of a youth employment or career exploration program. Ptxr
educators, particularly college students, are recommended as program facilitators.

Health Bridge is the most expensive and most difficult program to implement. It is, however,
greatly needed by many young women who do not otherwise have access to health care which
can provide the services they need affordably and nonjudgmentally. Younger teens were eager
to participate and more willing to admit ignorance or to ask for advice: theprogram is now
recommended for teen women ages 12-18.

The results of the study are promising if not overwhelming evidence that programs emphasiz-
ing truth, trust and technology can help girls and young women at high risk avoid pregnancy
during their teen years. Girls incorporated recommends strongly that affiliates implement the
entire comprehensive program and urges schools and other community organizations to support
all adolescents in making responsible decisions about their sexual behavior.
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Appendix

Sample activity from Growing Together

IDEAL PARENT/IDEAL DAUGHTER

Purpose: To help participants focus on those characteristics they would hope to find inan 'Ideal parent and in an
'ideal daughter.'

Materials: Two sheets of newsprint; two markers.

25 mtnutes.

Procedure: Tell participants that this final activity of the session is intended to improve parent-daughtercom-
munication. Point out that parents and daughters often wonder what each expects of the other.

Divide participants into two groupsone parents only, the other daughters only. Have parents
brainstorm qualities of tht: 'ideal daughter' and have daughters brainstorm qualities of the 'ideal parent.'

Appoir.t a recorder for each group, and give both a sheet of newsprint and a marker. Tell them to list all
contnbutions. (If two facilitators are available. one should go with each group. If not, the leader should
stay with the daughters' group and help them with this process.)

After five to ten minutes, reconvene the large group. Have both recorders post their lists. Ask parents
to react to the daughters' list and vice versa. Then pose the following questions:

Discussion Points:
I. Are you surprised by anything that appears on either list?
2 How realistic is each list?
5. Which of these charactenstics would any of you like to acquire?

Conclusion: End by encouraging parents and daughters to discuss this activity on the way home tonight. Tell
them that you will type up their 'ideal' lists and pass them out at the start of next week's session.

Source: Girls Clubs of Amenca (1988) Growing Together. A sexuality education program for girls ages 9-112.
p. 64.

2. As explained above, after completion of the Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy project this program component
was adapted for younger participants.
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Sample activity from Will Power/Won't Power

MAKING AND REFUSING REQUESTS

Ramose: To practice making and refusing requests.

Mittens Is: Leader Resource "Situations; Handout "Assertiveness Rights and Behavior"; index cards;
newsprot; marker.

Time: 40 minutes.

Pia:nine Note: Review the three situations provided In the Leader Resource. Adapt them or substitute others if

they do not seem relevant to your group: Write out the situations on two sets of index cards--
one situation to a card. (An alternate method is to make two copies of the Leader Resource and cut the

situations tnto strips.)

Procedure: Begin this activity by saying, 'As human beings, we all have certain rights.' Distribute the handout
and review these five rights:

To express our feelings honestly
To ask for what we want (make a request)
To say 'no' (refuse a request)
To change our nunds
To act in our own best intenst (do what ts best for us)

Continue by saying, 'These are cal ed assertiveness rights. Note that in addition to these rights, your
handout lists the assertiveness tecibtiques we discussed earlier. Now let's practice carrying out these as-

sertiveness rights.'

Post the following on newspnnt:

Make a request--ask for what you want
Refuse a request--say 'no'
Change your mind

Explain that the girls will work in small groups to roleplay three situations: making a request, refusing a
request and changing your mind. Divide participants into two groups and have each group chore e a

leader, whose responsibilities are to assign roles and to see to It that all girls get a chance to take part in
the exercise. Give each group an index card on which the first of the three 1...-ader Resource situations

appears; tell participants they have 10 minutes to plan and act out the roleplay. Afterwards, have mem-

bers briefly discuss how the situation was handled.

Have the girls folios,. the same procedure for the tsso remaining situations. (Throughout this activity,
monitor the progress of both groups and help out when necessary.)

To conclude, ask the follouing questions:

Discussion Points:
I. How easy was it to be assertive in the thrix situations?

2. Of the three-making a request, refusing a request and changing your mind-hich do you think

is the most difficult in real life? Why do )ou feel this is so?
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Leader Resource
SITUATIONS

1. Make a request:
You're with two friends in a restaurant. You ordered a

well-done hamburger. When the burger arrives it's so

rare that blood is dripping onto your plate. You discuss the situation with your friends and then call the waiter

over to the table. Create a roleplay in which you ask the waiter to correct the problem.

2. Refuse a request:
Your friend wants to know if she can borrow your new blouse. The last time she borrowed something from you

she spilled mustard on it and the stain never came out. You know that your friend doesn't take care of her clothes

the way you do, and you don't want to lend het your blouse. She keeps talking about how perfect the blouse

would be with her black pants, and she promises to get it cleaned before she returns it. Create a roleplay in which

you refine her request.

3. Change your mind:
Paula Ina been going with Adrian for throe months. They've had sexual intercourse a few times. But now--after

taking part in a WILL POWER/WON'T POWER program at
the Girls Incorporated centerPaula decides that

she doesn't want to have sex again until she's older. Create a roleplay in which Paula tells Adrian thatshe's

changed her mind.

Handout
ASSERTIVENESS RIGHTS AND BEHAVIOR

Your Rights:
You have a right to express your feelings honestly.
You have a right to ask for what you want.

You have right to say "no."
You have a right to change your mind.
You have a nght to act in your own best interest.

Aasertiveness Techniques:
I. Use the 'Broken Record' method. Say 'no'--or something else just as simple and directand

keep repeating it. Don't offer reasons or excuses for saying 'no.'

2. Take the lead in the conversation. Tell the person that the pressure is bothering you.

3. Refuse to discuss the matter further. Walk away from the situation. Tell the person you'll

Lalk about it later.

Source: Girls Clubs of America (1988). Will Power/Won't Power: A sexualin education program for girls ares

12-14, pp. 18-21.

21



_

78

Sample activity from Taking Care of Business

WEIGHING RISKS

Puroose: To have participants pracfice distinguishing between reasonable and unreasonable risks.

Materiak: Leader Resource "What Kind of Risk?": newsprint; marker.

Plannin2 Note: Before the start of the session, write the definitions of 'reasonable risk' and 'unreasonable risk'
on a sheet of newsprint. Before beginning this activity, post the newsprint sheet in the front of the room.

Time: 30 minutes.

Procedure: Tell the group that they will now be asked to distinguish reasonable risks frorn unreasonable risks.
Read aloud the situations provided in the Leader Resource After each onc, ask:

Is this a reasonable risk? Why or why not?
What does this perwn stand to gain or lose?

After discussing the group's reaction to each situation, pose the following questions:

Discussion Points
I. What are some other real-life situations that involve reasonable risks?
2. What reasonable risks have you taken?
3. What would be an unreasonable risk for a young child? For a teenager? For an adult? For an

older person?

82
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Leader Resource
WHAT KIND OF RISK?

Andrea es an excellent baseball player. She tries out for the team at her neighborhood recreation center,
even though it's always been a boys-only wan].

2. Deborah decides to go white-water rafting. She has never done it before, but she's goiug with a group of
people and an r tperienced guide. She also plans to wear a life vest.

3. Brenda and her long-distance boyfriend have sexual intercourse two or three times every summer. -They
never use birth control.

Sam never wears his seat belt. He thinks it's too much trouble.

5. Jane uses PCP once or twice a year when she visits her older cousin in New York.

6. Shirley and her boyfriend James have tried anal sex a few times. He doesn't wear a condom.

7. Lashawn is a nice person and a serious-minded student, but shes not very popular at seicrol. She decides
to run for Class Treasurer.

S. Jackie has no work expenence. She walks into the personnel office at local department store to ask
about a summer job.

9. AI has a few friends who use crack He decides to try it just once.

10. Mike has had sexual intercourse with five different girls during the last two months. He never usm a
condom.

11. Stella had four beers at a party after the homecoming game, then drove home.

12. Marcia feels bored all during her senior year. She doesn't like her teachers or any of the subjects she's
taking. She knows she'll manage to graduate but has no further plans. She figures she's sure to fmd
man who'll take care of her.

Source: Girls Clubs of America (1988), Taking Care of Business pp. 68-69.
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More information about the Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy project

EYaluatiQn

Nicholson, H.J. & Postrado, L.T. (in press). A comprehensive [Preventing Adolescent Preg-
nancy] program in a youth organization: Girls Incorporated. In Miller, B.C., Card,
J.J., Paikoff, R.L. & Peterson, J.L. (Eds.), Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy: Model
Elpgrams and evaluations. Newbury Park, CA: Sage.

Nicholson, H.J. & Weiss, F.L. (in press). Cost-effectiveness in yowl services--Preventing
adolescent pregnancy. In P.A. Reiling (Ed.), Efficiency and cost-effectiveness in non-
profit organizations. Westport, CT: Greenwood Press.

Postrado, L.T. & Nicholson, H.J. (in press). Effectiveness in delaying the initiation of sexual
intercourse of girls age 12-14: Preventing adolescent pregnancy in Girls Incorporated.
Youth and Society, 2,3(2).

Curricula

Growing Together: A Sexuality Education Program for Girls Ages 9-11

Will Power/Won't Power A Sexuality Education Program for Girls Ages 12-14

Taking Care of Business. A wxuality and Career Exploration Program for Young
Women /Noes

Health 114(1ge. A Collaborative Model for Delivering Health Services to Young
IKoluenAges_LU-

The Girls Incorporated National Resource Center in Indianapolis will provide information on
the latest available materials on the Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy project. Adults inter-
ested in bringing the Preventing Adolescent Pregnancy program to their community should
contact Girls Incorporated through either the headquarters in New York City or the National
Resource Center.
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Chairman Martinez, Chairman Owens, Congressman Donald Payne, Congresswoman

Connie Morella, and Members of the Committee, I am Isabel Stewart, National Executive

Director of Girls Incorporated. I am honored to have this opportunity to speak with you on the

Youth Development Block Grant (YDBG), a critical piece of legislation that will bring much

needed funding and coordination to the field of youth development.

Before I begin, however, I want to thank Representatives Payne and Morella for

introducing the Youth Development Block Grant, and Representatives Owens and Martinez for

co-sponsoring this landmark initiative and for scheduling this timely hearing. I am thanIdul for

the commitment and leadership you have shown on behalf of America's young people.

In presenting my testimony today, I also represent many other positive youth development

programs across the country, especially those included within the National Collaboration for

Youth. The Collaboration consists of fifteen prominent national organizations, all dedicated to

serving children and youth across the nation. Collectively the National Collaboration for Youth

serves more than 25 million youth each year. The members are:

American Red Cross The Salvation Army

Girls Scouts of the USA Camp Fire Boys and Girls

Association of Junior Leagues International WAVE, Inc.

Girls Incorporated Child Welfare League of America

Big Brothers/Big Sisters of America YMCA of the USA

National Network of Runaway and Youth Services YWCA of the USA

Boy Scouts of America 4-H Extens+ 21 Service

Boys and Girls Clubs of America
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At Girls Incorporated, our particular focus is on girls. Girls Incorporated is a national

youth service, program development, research, and advocacy organization. Our programs are

offered through a network of affiliates, located in nearly 750 professionally staffed sites across

the country. While our national organization was founded in 1945 as Girls Clubs of America,

Girls Incorporated centers date back to the Industrial Revolution, when they were formed in the

northeast mill towns to provide a safe haven for the daughters of the factory workers and for the

young women who worked in the factories. Since then, the organi_ ition has continued to meet

the changing needs of girls and young women and committed itself to helping them overcome

discrimination while working to make society more equitable.

Girls Incorporated has heavily invested in program development for the past ten years.

Our programs, based on research and rigorously evaluated, are widely recognized as being on

the cutting edge, addressing what girls need to be healthy, productive, and confident now and

later. They are used by schools, community organizations, professional associrtions, science

museums, and health clinics as well as by our own affiliates, who collaborate with us on the

design and testing. For our affiliates, improving the lives of girls is not a question of figuring

out what works they have the Girls Incorporated expertise to draw upon; instead, it is a

question of finding the funding they need to reach more girls in their communities.

All of us who are dedicated to improving the lives of young people know how urgent

their needs are today. The Youth Development Block Grant provides the critical funds and

national leadership to address those needs. Too many of our youth are reaching adulthood

unprepared to be contributing community members, responsible parents, and productive

participants in mainstream institutions. By some estimates, more than one-quarter of U.S. young

2



84

people confront a *serious risk of never reaching their potential, and another one-quarter are

at *moderate risk.' Between 60% and 80% of the young people judged seriously at risk live

in our inner cities.' Kids growing up in the inner-city, in the words of one youth worker, are

just 'trying to live, just to duck the bullet.° Success for these young people is measurec in

their ability to avoid bullets, violence, crime, pregnancy, abuse, and neglect.

Over the past decade public concern rela.ted to young people has focused primarily on

*controlling* youth problems, like substance abuse or juvenile delinquency. Juvenile arrest and

incarceration rates have steadily increased over the last ten years. In 1991, there were an

estimated 2.3 million juvenile arrests. Juvenile arrests for violent crimes increased 41% from

1982 to 1991. It is becoming increasingly clear that even after the ambitious National Education

Goals, our War on Drugs, and now the War on Crime, America will not make significant

progress on the challenges facing youth today unless we address the broader developmental

needs of our youth. Young people who lack self-confidence, self-discipline, respect for others,

and a sense of connection to their families and communities, are unlikely to be successful in

school, and far more likely to engage in high-risk behaviors.

Currently, prevention programs are largely focused on younger children age 4 and

under, and programs that have proven effective with thic age group, such as Head Start, continue

to receive increased funding. Vic ve held the schools primarily responsible for the edification

of young people ages 5 to 18. But with all they are charged to do, schools cannot meet every

need. As a result, the non-academic developmental needs of our school-age youth have largely

been ignored. Moreover, we fail to focus on the fact that youth age 5 to 19 spend 40% of their

time out-of-schoo1.4 Prevention funding for this age group is limited and scattered throughout
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the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS), the Office of Juvenile Justice and

Delinquency Prevention (OHDP), the Department of Education (ED), and the Department of

Housing and Urban Development (HUD). For example, there is $13 millionallocated for youth

sports programs in housing projects in HUD, there is $63 million for prevention programs for

youth in the Center for Substance Abuse Prevention, and $10 million for youth gang substance

abuse prevention in MIS.

Funding is available to local programs for particular activities tareeted at particular

populations -- sports programs for public housing youth, community service for youth involved

in the juvenile court system. As a result, in order to receive funding, local youth serving

agencies must reformulate their existing program format and structure into narrowly defined

mandates if they hope to receive funding from the federal government. Often programs are

developed or expanded based on what funding is available, not on what best meets the needs of

the community. Most importantly, because of the limited funding available, many young people

have no place to go after school and on weekends to find positive experiences that will develop

their interests and skills, and improve their outlook for the future, especially in low-income

communities.

Moreover, once local programs receive their funding, there is little incentive to

coordinate their efforts with other organizations in the neighborhood. No mechanism exists

through which community-based organizations, schools, government officials, and the private

sector can regularly come together to develop comprehensive youth development stTategies. The

lack of such a process severely limits the ability of community leaders to assess the broad needs

4
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of the community, develop programs that build on those already successful, and fill in where

there are service gaps.

The Yonth Development Block Grant helps address all of these issues: the limited

funding available for prevention programs, the categorical nature of federal grants, and the lack

of coordination among providers at the local level. Through the Youth Development Block

Grant, $380 million (95% of the entire funding for the bill) will be available in the first year to

local communities to develop or expand positive development programs that strengthen the

moral, physical, emotional, social, and cognitive development of young people. Many of the

youth who cunendy go unserved could finally be reached.

At Girls incorporated we know from experience that young pezple today are interested

in organized activities and joining neighborhood organizations. Research supports this

knowledge; the landmark study by the Carnegie Corporation, "A Matter of Time, states that

young people today want:

"more regular contact with adults who care about and respect them, more

opportunities to contribute to their communities, protection from the hazards of

drugs, violence, and gangs, and greater access to constructive and attractive

alternatives to the loneliness that so many now experience.

Youth want a place to belong, where they are respected and that provides them with a

sense of identity and purpose. Especially in the inner-city where yo;:th are overwhelmed with

v:olence and chaos, they seek a place where they can belong. Researchers who just completed

a five-year study on youth development programs, Urban Sanctuaries Neighborhood

Organizations in the Lives and Futvres of Inner-City Youth, found that:

5
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'at least three-quarters of the youth growing up in the caldron of the inner city

are potential hopefuls, but only a small portion of these young people lino their

way to organizations that effectively give them hope."

If there are no positive youth development programs to welcome them, gangs will. Many

of the social problems that ccncern us teen pregnancy, substance abuse, violence exist

becauw of the lack of youth development programs. Community-based youth serving

organizations are a tremendous resource in developing and implementing youth development

strategies, both because of their responsiveness to local community values and concerns and their

ability to mobilize community resouxes. The Youth Development Block Grant builds on the

strength, credibility, and expertise of Imse organizations by giving them a leadership role in

both the planning and delivery of programs.

Under the YDBG, local youth devlopment boards comprised of youth workers, and

other key leaders in the community -- the mayor, the school superintendent, parents would

receive the funding and based on the community':t needs assessment, would determine what their

priorities are. A community may want to open thc YMCA for midnight basketball, or decide

ro start a mentoring program in the school, or ask the local Girl Scouts to start a council in the

housing projects. Community leaders who know and uliderstand their youth are in a position

to determine who gets the funding and for what purpose.

And these decisions would not be maue without input from the community's youth.

Und -r the YDBG, priority in funding would go to programs that involve youth in the design and

implementwion of the activities. This is important because when youth cre involved in planning

programs, they have a greater commitment to the program's success. Tho Carnegie Council

6
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found that 'Young people respond enthusiastically to programs that :eflect their notds and
desires; they may shun programs that adults plan without their advice." 1

Programs funded under the Youth Development Block Grant would also be coordinated

with one another as well as with other services in the community. Welaiow from affiliates that
it is imperative that the various sectors serving youth schools, recreation departments, youth
programs, and government coordinate their efforts in order to effectively serve the many Ind
varied needs of young people. Each entity has a different focus and mission and serves a
different purpose for the youth, but without communication

among them, duplication and gaps
in service result.

I firmly believe that the YDBG could prove critical in helping the country turn the tide
against youth violence, youth alienation, youth boredom, and give youth something positive to
say 'Yee to. I am not alone in my belief, the Carnegie Council, Eisenhower Foundation,
Kauffman Foundation, Public/Private Ventures, and Milbrey McLaughlin, Merita Irby, and
Juliet Langman (in Urban Sanctuaries) have all verified that coordinated, comprehensive,
positive youth development strategies pays off in the lives of young people. In the words of
a youtli worker, "Kids can walk around trouble, if there is some place to walk to, and someone
to walk with."

Thank you for this opportunity and for your consideration. The National Collaboration
for Youth stands ready to assist you in any way to ensure the passage of the Youth Development

Block Grant. I have attached a brief summary of the Youth Development Block Grant, two
separate op-ed articles and an editorial on the YDBG that appeared in Youth Today, and an op-
ed article from the Washington Post written by Congresswoman Connie Morella on the subject.
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Summary of the Yard) Development Block Grant

This summary highlights key components of the Youth Development 13lock
Grant. It will be helpful to you in explaining the legislation.

Key Definitions
Youth development program. A1' YDBG prograrrs funds would go to

"youth development programs"; that is, nonacademic programs that use active and
experiential learning methods to help youth ages 6 to 19 develop social, moral,
emotional, physical, and cognitive competencies. Such programs must be open to
a broad range of youth, induding but not limited to those who have demonstrated
high-risk behaviors such as school failure, teenage pregnancy, juvenile delin-
quency, or substance abuse. Program examples include youth clubs, sports and
recreation, mentoring, and leadership development.

Rationale The central goal of the YDBG is to promote positive youth devel-
opment. Rather than waiting until young people are in crisis, the YDBG will fund
developmental programs that help youth develop the values, life skills, and self-
esteem they need to succeed. The YDBG reflects the belief of leaders in the field
of youth development that youth programs should address the development of
social, moral, emotional, physical, and cognitive capacities. Likewise, the YDBG
reflects the strong consensus among youth development experts that programs
should not segregate so-called Thigh-risk" youth but should be inclusive.

Community-based youth development organization: Defined as a tax-
exempt 1501(cX3)l youth-serving organization with a major emphasis in providing
youth development programs as defined above.

Rationale Most existing youth development programs are provided by
community-based organizations. The YDBG builds on the strength, credibility,
and expertise of these community-based organizations by giving them a leadership
role in both the planning and delivery of YDBG-funded services. The YDBG
distinguishes youth development organizations from other youth-serving organiza-
tions that focus primarily on credentialling (e.g.. education) or treatment and
control of youth who have engaged in high-risk behaviors such as substance
abuse or fuvenile delinquency.

Funding
Total funding: $400 million in FY 1994, and "such sums as necessary" in

subsequent fscal years.
Rationale There is a broad and growing consensus among youth policy

experts on the importance of increased investment in positive youth development
programs. Community-based youth development organizations provide critical
services to millions of youth, but millions more go unserved or underserved. The
$400 million in annual funding reflects the conviction of the National Collabora-
tion for Youth and other youth policy experts that the federal government must go
beyond small demonstration programs and make a major investment in strength-
ening community-based youth development programs.
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Source of finsding: The National Collaboration for Youth (NO') believes
that die bill can and should be funded through reallocation of eristing federal
resources.

Rationale: Given America's growing social problems and the limited re-
sources available to the federal government to address those problems, it is more
important than ever to shift federal resources from unproductive programs to new
initiatives that promise a higher return on investment. The National Collaboration
for Youth believes that no program offers a higher return than investment in the
positive development of America's children and youth, and that there are many
far less productive federal programs that could be cut to provide resources for the
YDBG.

Allocation cf funding: 93.5% of YDBG funds would be allocated to the
county level and administered by local youth development boards, 4% would be
allocated to the states, 1% would remain at the federal level, and 1.5% would be
allocated to native American organizations.

Rational The primary purpose of the YDBG is to make high-quality youth
development programs available to as many children and teens as possible.
Therefore, to the greatest extent possible, funds should go directly to the local
level to evand existing, successful programs.

Allocation fornuda: Funds would be distributed to counties based on a
formula that gives equal weight to the size of the population of those ages 6 to
19, the proportion of the representatives of youth population living below the
poverty line, and recent increases in juvenile crime.

Rationalft The allocation formula balances two objectives: die need to
strengthen positive development programs in all communides and the need to
give priority to supporting youth in disadvantaged communities.

Local Youth Development Board
Local board composition: The chief elected officer of the county will

determine the size of the board. One-third of the members will be representatives
of community-based youth development organizations affiliated with national
youth development organizations actively working in the community. One-third
will be representatives of youth development organirations not affiliated with
national youth development organizations. The remaining third of the board will
represent other key stakeholders, including government, business, schools, par-
ents, and youth.

The YDEG defines a national youth development organization as an organi-
zation which has a purpose and activities that are national in scope and which,
either directly or through its local affiliates, provides youth development programs
in at least seven states.

Rationalft Communities have traditionally relied on community-based
organizations, not government, to provide non-s,hrol-based youth programs.
These organizations have the experience, expertk e, and credibility to take the
lead in defining community priorities

2
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Selection of local boat* The two-thirds of the board representing commu-
nity-based youth development organizations would be selected annually by the
organizations themselves; the remaining third of the board would be selected by
the chief elected officer of the county.

Rati.o13a1e For the reasons outlined above, two key goals of the YDBG are
to strengthen the role of community-based organizations in the development of a
comprehensive community youth development plan and to encourage those
organizations to work together more dosely and effectively to implement the plan.
The composition of the board and term limits on members are designed to prevent
any organization or interest from dominating the board's deliberations, assuring
that the YDBG remains responsive to the broad interests of the community.

Responsibilities of local boartk The board will conduct a community
needs assessment, define a set of youth development priorities, establish a grant
application process, coordinate the distribution of funds to local providers, moni-
tor and evaluate funded programs, and submit a youth development plan to the
state commission.

Rationale In most communities, youth development efforts are fragmented
and underfunded, and no process exists for key groups to corn together regularly
to develop a comprehensive youth development strategy. Local communities are
in the best position to determine the needs of their own youth and families, the
mcst productive way of addressing those needs, the best means of leveraging local
resources, the most effective way to coordinate existing rrogram efforts, and the
best way to make community services more accessible to all.

The YDBG promotes local initiatives and combats fragmentation of services in
two ways. First, it provides local communities with finable youth funding that can
be targeted to community priorities without the constraints of traditional program
categories. Second, it mandates an indusive planning process administered by the
local youth development board.

Administrative costs: A board may use up to 5% of the funds received for
planning, administration, coordination, evaluation, and expenses of the fisail
agent.

Rationale To maximize funds available for program delivery, the YDBG
establishes a stringent limit on administrative expenses of local boards.

Local Youth Development Programs
Eligible grouses: At least 85% of the funds shall be awarded to community-

based youth developrner' organizations to provide youth development programs;
the remaining funds may be awarded to partnerships of youth-serving organiza-
tions and governmental entities conducting youth development programs.

Rational Because the most effective way to meet the needs of children and
teens is to expand the existing network of comm.nity-based youth development
programs, at least 85% of YDBG program funds will go to those organizations.

The YDBG does, however, recognize that under certain circumstances com-
munities may want to support the creation or expansion of youth development
programs by government agencies or community groups that do not qualify as
youth development organizations. Therefore, up to 15% of YDBG program funds
may go to these groups.

3

96



MI6

93

Program requirements: All YDBG-funded programs must address com-
munity youth development priorities as defined by the local board; recognize the
role of the family in your development; involve parents, youth, and community
leaders; coordinate services with other programs in the community; estahlic'-.
process and outcome objectives; be open to all youth; meet the matching funds
requirement; and devote between 5 and 10% of all grant funds to staff training.

Rationale The YDBG attempts ro balance the need for providing commu-
nities with broad flexibility to defme local youth development priorities with the
need to ensure that all funded programs incorporate characteristics that research
and experience have demonstrated are crucial to effectiveness. The program
requirements have been developed through a review of the literature and discus-
sions with experts in the field of youth development, including the Carnegie
Council on Youth Development and the United Way of America.

Matching funds requirement A private, nongovernmental match of 20%
in the first year of funding, 35% in the second year, 50% in the third year, and
70% in the fourth and subsequent years is required of all funded programs. In-
kind conrsibutions are restricted to no more than 25%.

Rationale The YDBG uses federal resources to leverage community invest-
ment in youth development. The matching funds requirement is the key to
accomplishing this goal.

The matching funds requirement will also ensure that only organizations with
solid community support will be able to meet the matching funds requirement.

Administrative costa' Grantees may use up to 10% of their funds for
planning, administration, coordination, and evaluation.

Rationale While it is important to provide organizations with enough
funding to administer their programs properly, a stringent limit needs to be set on
administrative costs in order to maximize funding for service delivery.

Training costs: Grantees must devote not less than 5% and not more than
10% of grant funds to pre-service and in-service training and educational materials
and services for staff.

Rationale Leaders in the youth development field agree that staff develop-
ment and training is vitally important and inadequately addressed in most youth
developme.at programs. To ensure the quality of adult leadership in youth devel-
opment pr ',grams, experts recommend that programs expand the availability of
appropnae training and other forms of staff development for all adults who work
with young people.

86-877 0 - 95 - 4
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State Youth Development Commission
Commission cotorposition: The governor shall determine the size of the

boani The composition is the same as the local board.
Rationale: For the same reasons given for the composition of local youth

development boards, it is appropriate to give community-based youth develop-
ment organizations a leadership role in implementing the YDBG at the state level.

Responsibilities of commission: To distribute funding to local boards,
based on a review of their youth development plans; monitor and provide techni-
cal assistance to local boards; recommend to the governor a set of state youth
development goals; and submit to the national commission an annual report.

Rationalft Creation of the state commissions will encourage states to make
youth development a priority and will establish a state-level resource to assist local
communities in developing comprehensive youth development strategies.

National Youth Development Commission
Commission conpositiom The commission shall have 21 members. The

composition is the same as that of the local board.
Rationalft For the same reasons given for the composition of local youth

development boards, it is appropriate to give community-based youth develop-
ment organizations a leadership role in implementing the YDBG at the national
level.

Responsibilities of commission: To promulgate regulations, monitor and
evaluate local programs, coordinate efforts with other federal agencies, serve as a
clearinghouse, provide technical assistance to states and counties, and submit an
annual report to Congress.

Rational The commission must be a si...gle-:-)cused governmental entity in
order to effectively strengthen state and local youth development networks, de-
velop appropriate regulations and evaluation ma'erials, and raise national leaders'
awareness of young people's needs. Such a structure ensures that the commission
will have the co:pertise, prominence, and support to focus the nation on youth.
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YDBG= Rx For Youth Work

Fk.w would dispute that the fedevl effort to aid youth is a
mess. Too often federal categorical programs abrsed at ameliorat-
mg youth problems udi as teen pregnancy, substance abuse and
delinquency Wind Iv doing as much damage as good.

Rnally the nation's leading youth serving organizations
seemed to have had enough of a system that develops bureaucra-
cies and paperwork while slantbig you'll development work off to
also ran status. Led by the YMCA and the Child Weybre Itague Df
America, 15 of the largest youth seising agencies, organiied into
the National Collaboration for Youth, have come up with a partial
answer for how to get revenue to front line youth workers in dis-
tressed neighborhoods.

The Youth Development Block Grant Act has just been intro-
duced in Congress by sponsors from both parties. It would funnel
$400 million or more per year to comrnunity-based youth agencies
for positive youth development work. No list of youth problems or
quick ayes clutters the bill

The quest for revenue will make this legislation contentious.
While the youth field will welcome this sensible legislation. few
special interest groups will make the YDBG a priority. Instead
they will work mightily to spare their own progrcuns. (Seepage
40.) Under the new rules of the budget game the money must
come from somewhere. Some would target the ineffectual Drug
Ree Schools program, others the discornbobulated High-Risk
Youth program at CSAP while some prefer that old standby, the
Pentagon

The YDBG is a practical approach toward aiding grassroots
youth-serving agencies that have Me best chance of making a real
difference in the lives of youth. The Collaboration for Youth is to
be commended for leading the way. Hopefully other national
groups will put parochial interests aside and support this sound
strategy to youth development
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4,700 Teen Hours To Spare

I BYDENNIS J. FLEMING

yourg people an back tn
the news at least
those who are dytng or
having babies. And
Congress is mill churn-

Mg out its usual response ate .
goncal grants that attempt to &tag-
racnt and cempartmentakte trictivid .
ual youth Into discrete 'problems'
that can be noted in blreestary.like
tsoiation from *real life

If Mabry II any guide. new me-
sweat-glint programs will be very
sunder toms eategarkslone-legged
whtte elepbaMa They will cost mil-
lions. if rot billions. They will pro-
vide research kdder for academies.
they willaeate unlegtoups that will
flyby a:scanty br a narrow mi-
ssal and addlIzil funds. And moat
will be run thriaightbe schools ce in
youth orreence settings

Our echo* are aktsdy overbur-
dened. Beattie sebools are one to-
natation that young people aze ac-
tually compelled to attend. they are
expected. not only to be all things to
all people. but to do all things for all
iods.

But what about the other 4.700
hours a year the 40 percent of a
young persons discretionary time
that is nee gen tn rhea? Why don t
we Urns! In that?

The history of federal catenoncal
grant pmgrams has shown them to
be divisive. egentive and a barrier
to creative and protlueuve partner-
shtps. Extensive research has dem-
onstrated that elforts that invoke the
whole community bring the most
positive changes and have the best
chance oi achieving sustained in.
provemenu in youth social Indica-
ton.

Foran annual investment in SI CO
per youth S I CO. tax SI .000 ve

couid create community-based and
communny-controlled youth devel-
opment pmgrams that would enable
young people to become whole. ano
let schools concentrate on their tra.
dnional academie roles.

Thee is a lame void ln most corn.
:minium. They lack a sale erniron-
mere wrier: adoleacents can tonere-
gate, meet new Mends. do home-
tent OM 001110Utetel. Ot past rang
..,ut C omm unity centers or youts
/ iubs oiler a ranee ol youth develop.
ment services The eroansion oi
:.,oth clubs would be a maim step
n aaoressing the tragic national de.
..me :0 our ;amity am community
_le

n New Yore State knee 1678 an
37 counties ana hew York City and

46 municipalities have a system of
youth development and dellnquency
prevention strISOSS that am planned
and delivered en tke kcal level. Each
county ptepares a comprehensive
plan for chlldren. puth and family
senues that involves all segments of
the community. New Yat State pro-
vides funding based on each minty s
under-21 population. Local compre-
hensive plans pass mast 11 the money

on to kcal non-pnalts for dlrect ser-
Act to teens.

In Sulam County, New York. the
local youth bureau demonstrated
what keel Inititeim can do rff work-
ing web a mention of pubbe and pri-
vate agentses to reduce trattutional-
lawn tn tbe state pnentk Justice
system By awing a baily preser-
ve= eysIe eusihIn was able
to cut youth mations placanans
by 80 mart and save the county at
least S600.000 last year.

The mat ore nanonal program com-
parable MOM we have In New York
would be 57 billion a year. There is
nO need to rase taxes to obtain this
amount. Instead, we should look to
conmlidating the dozens of federal
categorical programs that Mmed at
teen problems but mostly creme su-
perfluous aduk

Leg-Mallon Just introduced in Con-
gress by Sens. Nancy Kaseebauto IR-
KAI and Chits Dodd ID-CM awl Reps.
Connie Morella IR-MD1 and Donald
Payne ID-NJI and endorsed by the
Nattonal Collaboratlon for Youth au-
thorizes a S400 million Youth Devel-
opment Block Grain that would fund
meal non-profits engaged In youth
wore with sa to 19 year olds is an
werdue step in the rtglit direction.

There will be cppcettlon to this pro-
Dosal. prunanly from the fat and hap-
py naoonal interest groups that cur-
rently =ewe targeted fuming. A fcw
categoncal g.afitS are In fact worthy
of continued support. but most are
not

Currently 40 percent of our youna
xoole's lives 700 hours be W-

ow or worse. Instead of letting ado-
'eseents waste these hours on vile-
ness and MTV uT Carl ene them the
-wad ortpcnurav tor human growth
'hat they so Desperately need.
Shouldn't we as youth Annan tit
waling to accept inconvenience arm

nange in Otter to glee them a atter
-ance

Dertnu J Remind Ls ezecunue avec.
oi the Rxklarta Caere Am, leek

Yarn Bureau
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MA in Labeling
II BY KAREN PITTMAN

In the mkist of escalating alann
about youlla problems and yout h

unrest, any youth services pm-
gram that could All Its report
cord with zeroes no drugs, no

pregnancies, no Ms, no arrests
wouid be hailed by hinders, envied
by competitors, and hounded by
replication specialists. This program
will, indeed, have earned ten:claim.
The question Is, will we use tilts at.
lent Ion toll:tinnier home the fact that

the 'science of prevention was se-
I tautly the art of promotion? Prever,-
lion may bc the hcadllne, but lit
story ts development. Cant we make
the headline reflect the reality of
what teens need and want and what
youth workers do?

I think we can. We know 'what
works. As Richard Murphy. former
Commissioner of Youth Services ln
Ncw York City, pot it. 'Kids need
places to go. people to talk to, and
pos31131111 les to explore.' The ne.ton .

ally rerognI leaeon schools. de
vekmed by Mw, uhy. are one of Amm .
tea's best recent sureeSS stories
!lased on Murphy's simple filemula.
they enthody " bask. kleas of youth
and cammo development.

These Was are makIng their dr.
cullou s way through Washington
where domestic policy debates are
still inkrally iropered with the lan-
guage of dtsfunetion, detentIon, and

deterrence. lly contrast, the pro-
posed Youth Development Block
Grant. Incited by the National Col-
lahorallon for Youth. Is brimming
over with language that salutes the
importance of communIty.based
youth organisations that provide
guided oppmtuntlks fur stable re
lationships, meaningful participa-
t Inn. family Involvement, active
learning and skill development.

Perhaps illure noteworthy is the
appearance of youth development
language in congressional and ad
ministrat lye efforts to address dnig
liblIse, crime and violence. 'rite
Crime Illifsmendiappreoch to curb-
ing youllirktenee is ekorly problem.
alk The Ounce of Prevention pro.
visions. hows.ver, offer up new dol-
lars tut pmgrams I radllionally ass0 .
elated with youth development
recreation sod sports, after-school
enrichment, community service,
yout It leadership. A recent IIIISRFP

on gang prevention stales that' :Int

and foremcat, strategies have to be
grounded within a youth develop.
merit framework rather than the'
usual problem-oriented approach.'

Youth development strategies are
at last taken seriously In prevention
discussions. A beginning, but not
enough. Preventien is not the ulti.
mate goal More Important. It may
not be a completely achievable goal.

Zmn y the proposed Block Grant
dares to say that while problem pre.
+motion is a possible outcome, the
!Amery funetkin of youth devekopi
men! programs Is to 'make a major 14,

contribution to helping youthdevell
op the life skills and moral volute
needed to face 'the challenges of
adolescence and the 'responsibli
Hies of adulthood.' Prevention, de. i
scribed here. Is a by.product oflt
commItment to youth development: t

Mast prcgrom dhectors candkIli
acknowledge that they are prOmOt:
ing youth development, even ttrougt j '
they are using probkrn.foGuKst Call .1

egorical funding. Why then, don't
youth workers unabashedly tell the
public what they are dolnaWhy
label programs using prevention p
language and evaluate only in du. I,

Mous prevention teems? Common
answers: That's how the money
Roo. That's how the public and poi.
It [clans think. Why switch labels? It
doesn't make any difference.

From my viewpoint, it makes a
ht ige difference. This isn't just about

semantics. This ts about letting peo.
pie know that we don't just prevent.
We promote. Let's Mart labeling our
programs that way and insisting that

they be evaluated that woy trn. Let's
devekni outcome measums that will
short how youth mark enriches the
lives of young people, promotes
health, community reaponsIbillly,
and economic self-sufficiency, Let's.
define our principle, of praeilee. Yes,
youth vmrkers no gaps and respond
10 Crises, tint what we do best Is
promote the development or young
people. We've gal aginal product. We

know what works. More important,
we know why. IA's give II a truth. -
ful label. The rest, as Richard Mon
pity a I woys reminds me. 'is market.
log.'

Koren Pittman Is director of the Acad.
emy for Educational Development's
Center far Yoolit Development and
/they Resets/eh, D.C.
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lvi
The
National
Collaboration
for Youth

Working together for America's youth
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Meet the National
Collaboration for
Youth.

Chances are you already know some of
our members. The National Collaboration
for Youth is 15 of the largest national
youth-serving organizations in the United
States which work together on behalf of
today's youth. One of every two Americans
has belonged to an NCY member. Check the
list below; chances are that you grew up
with a Collaboration organization!

Together, National Collaboration for
Youth members seek to provide a united
voice for all youth, advocating for improved
conditions and positive development oppor-
tunities. The Collaboration is an affiliate of
The National Assembly, an umbrella group
of national health and human service
organizations.

NCY members

American Red Cross
Association of Junior

Leagues International
Big Brothers/Big Sisters of America
Boy Scouts of America
Boys & Girls Clubs of America
Camp Fire Boys & Girls, Inc.
Child Welfare League of America
4-H, Extension Service
Girl Scouts of the USA
Girls Incorporated
National Network of Runaway

and Youth Services
The Salvation Army
WAVE, inc.
YMCA of the USA
YWCA of the USA

Photos courtesy of Big Brothers/Big Sisters of America
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More than 5 million Americans from all
walks of life currently volunteer with NCY
members, giving their time, talent and hearts
to assist young people. These volunteers work
with 40,000 professional staff in communities
across the country. Together, they help more
than 30 million young people grow into
adulthood.

Here's what the National
Collaboration for Youth
does.

The Collaboration engages in activities
designed to:

Raise the level of public awareness of
the needs and contributions of young people
and the agencies and organizations that serve
them.

Provide a united voice at the national
level on key public policies that affect youth.

Increase national resources directed
toward positive youth development and the
prevention of behaviors that place young
people at risk.

Empower young people to participate
effectively in decisions which affect their
lives and partner with adults as community
resources.

Here's what NCY
members do.
Youth development

For generations, National Collaboration for
Youth members have provided services aimed
at giving all our nation's youth the things they
need to develop. Programs encourage health
and physical well-being, personal and social
competence, cognitive and creative ability,
vocational awareness and readiness, and
leadership and citizenship skills.
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Community service
NCY organizations have been leaders

in the community service movement,
recognizing that in order to grow and
develop, young people need to feel useful in
their families, schools, and communities.

Valuing diversity
NCY members seek to recognize, value,

and respond to the diverse backgrounds
and experiences that exist among young
adolescents.

Delinquency prevention
Collaboration members offer programs

which prevent juvenile delinquency, offer
alternatives to the incarceration of status
offenders, and help young people in correc-
tional institutions.

Informal education and
employment preparation

Youth are tutored and serve as tutors
themselves in programs supported by NCY
members. They receive basic skill training,
preparation for work, career exploration,
and job guidance. Special programs offer
exposure to the arts, the outdoors, and
diverse cultures.

Health
NCY members offer a variety of wellness

programs, including physical fitness,
competitive athletics, nutrition education,
counseling, and personal support. Activities
encourage mental and physical health and
discourage risky behaviors, such as the use
and abuse of alcohol and other drugs.

Family life, character, and
leadership

NCY programs support values clarifica-
tion, parenthood preparation, problem-
solving skills, and leadership development.
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Here's what NCY
has accomplished.

Created in 1973 to jointly develop pro-
grams and advocate social policies that
respond to the diverse needs of our nation's 6-
to-18-year-olds, the National Collaboration for
Youth has been a pioneer in collaboration.

NCY successfully worked to establish
and fund the Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention.

NCY, with funding from the DeWitt
Wallace-Reader's Digest Fund, has initiated a
national effort to increase public awareness of
career opportunities in the youth development
field.

NCY was a supporter of the National
and Community Service Act, which provides
young people with opportunities to serve their
communities.

NCY has shared models of exemplary
youth employment programs for replication.

NCY worked with the federal Depart-
ments of Health and Human Services and
Labor to implement Making the Grade. More
than 150 communities participated in this
national effort designed to empower to
assume responsibility for young people.

NCY played a primary role in the
crafting and passage of the Claude Pepper
Young Americans Act, the first federal
legislation on national youth policy.

NCY developed the concept of a Youth
Development Block Grant, which proposes the
first comprehensive federal program support-
ing early adolescent development.

NCY, with the federal Center for
Substance Abuse Prevention and the JM
Foundation, has guided communities toward
successful strategies to prevent alcohol and
other drug abuse among youth.

NCY national executives have provided
expert testimony before Congress and the
executive branch. In meetings with cabinet
officers and federal agency staff, they have
served as advocates for youth.
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Chairman OWENS. I want to thank all of the panelists. I will
begin with a few brief questions.

Ms. Wallace, how long has the International Youth Organization
existed?

Ms. WALLACE. Twenty-four years.
Chairman OWENS. And how many youth are participating at this

time?
Ms. WALLACE. Every day at the center there are 310 young peo-

ple from the ages of five to twenty-five.
Chairman OWENS. SO you are just in one location?
Ms. WALLACE. Yes.
Chairman OWENS. Ms. Stewart, you call this a community action

program approach.
Do you remember the old community action program under Lyn-

don Johnson, with the emphasis on coordination of all the activities
within one community? Are you familiar with that?
MS. STEWART. Yes.
Chairman OWENS. Do you call for that kind of coordinated ap-

proach within each community? Is that what you are saying?
Ms. STEWART. Yes. Very strategic coordination. I referenced

complementarity in what the various organizations do. I think that
if this legislation is directed to the local level, those loal commu-
nities will know best what is available and can help to direct the
complementarity and the coordination.

I referenced our own efforts at Girls, Inc. that are quite success-
ful. If I can give you an example, Girls, Inc. addresses girls six to
eighteen. The YWCA picks th.em up at age eighteen. We have
found 26 combinations of YW and Girls, Inc. programming across
the country. That is a very successful model; everybody wins.

Chairman OWENS. Do you reach many girls in gangs?
One of the problems and one of the complaints of this structure

is that these are the organizations which will reach the youngsters
who are not exactly the most at risk. Obviously IYO is reaching
some youngsters A() are very much at risk. But traditionally, it
is felt that the good boys and girls go to these organizations.

Ms. STEWART. Well, I can give you Girls, Inc. demographics, if
that will help. We serve 55 percent girls of color; we serve better
thanclose to 60 percent girls come from families with incomes of
less than ).0,000 across the country in our cohort of 350,000 young
people seri, ed.

Chairman OWENS. No particular experience with gangs?
Ms. STEWART. I can cite one instance of an affiliate in California

that I visited, in fact. I saw a group of girls who represented any
number of different gangs through their boyfriends at their school
who told me that at school, because of the gang structure, they
didn't speak. They could not acknowledge one another. But at this
place called Girls, Inc., that they came to, to do our programming
and pregnancy prevention and math and science, they were very
good friends. If that gives you an example of the power of a positive
environment to which young people can be sometimes lured and
then captivated.

Chairman OWENS. Thank you.
Mr. Ballenger?
Mr. BALLENGER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Mr. Mann, you gotI mean Joel, excuse me; the lady sitting next
to you, I am sure can speak in your case. And I commend you. At
the age of 14 I would never ever have dared to come speak before
Congress. I would have had a heart attack straight out.

So I do commend you, and I want to thank you for proving that
there is a success that can be done in the city, this city where we
live. I mean, I live here in Washington part of the time. But I
would like to ask you, you have 13,000 kids involved in this pro-
gram, in DC.?

Ms. Lov Err. Just in Greater Washington.
Chairmen OWENS. Please identify yourself again.
Ms. Lov Err. My name is Maria Lovett; I am the Program Direc-

tor at the Bors and Girls Club in Silver Spring where Joel goes.
Mr. BALLENGER. What I would like to ask is, the three of you,

each indiviivally, are you able to usewhat Federal programs are
you able to use now, Federal monies thatI mean we got tons
that book is just loaded with possible programs that could be used.
Are you using any, and if so, do you know which ones?

Ms. Lov Err. The only ones I know of are the Community Devel-
opment Block Grants. That is the only specific money that our club
is receiving. It is all board-raised funds and private d.onations.

Mr. BALLENGER. Yes?
Ms. WALLACE. On the local level, some Community Block Grant

money, but as you know, in Newark, there is not a lot. Also, in try-
ing to get Federal money, there is a long process; it just doesn't
happen, and the competition is very steep. It is also who you know
and how many people you can get down here. So I have never been
lucky enough to get any real Fesieral money.

We were in a commission and a corporation with the New Jersey
Youth Corps, but not being a national organization, it is very hard
to get funding, no matter how good you are, and whatever you try
to do. You are in a competitive race against national organizations,
and I don't look forward to being in a national organization at my
age; but, there must be a way where funds can come to the local
level. So it is very difficult, and I have never been successful.

Mr. BALLENGER. Well, Ms. Stewart, as big and well organized as
your group is, surely goodness and mercy, you must use some of
these Federal programs.

Ms. STEWART. We do have Community Development Block Grant
money at the local level. Each of our 136 affiliates sits on its own
bottom; they are self-sustaining. Each one goes through the same
struggle to put together a patchwork of funding.

I just want to go beyond, this statement and compliment the con-
ceptual piece of this program that requires local matching funds.
I think that is absolutely inspired, because it is a litmus test for
the value in which the particular organization is held on the local
level.

So I would hope that the power of the Federal dollar, combined
with the requirement that these programs be fiscally acknowledged
locally, would take us very far. May I say, Mr. Ballenger, that I
hail from Bertie County, Windsor, North Carolina, two generations
back.

Mr. BALLENGER. Well, like I say, you are welcome back any time
you would like to come.
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One question, and having been in county government sometime
back, when I was more constructive in my efforts to help the com-
munity and I considered any kind of block grants to be more con-
structive, and I think you in your statement have said the same
thing. There are so many programs out there that you almost have
to design yourself to submit the program so that you can get the
Federal money; and in your particular case, I can understand it. It
doesn't make sense because you know where you want to go, and
there is probably a very difficult time in changing your program to
fit what the Federal Government is coming up with.

And I would like to commend the two people and also the Sen-
ator that came up with the idea of block grants. There are so many
things that can be done at various and sundry places in a commu-
nity, but the people at the local level know what needs to be done;
and to find some way to get into the Federal pocketbook, shall we
say, is almost impossible. And if you could wipe out all of our
youthful programs and make every one of them a block grant, I am
quite sure that I would agree withI am not sure everybody else
would.

But your statement about the good boys and the good girls, I was
checking myself off to see how many of your particular programs
I personally have been involved in, and it is quite a few. But I
agree with you, wegenerally the YMCA, the YWCA, the 4-H
Clubs that I have been involved in, generally speaking, you start
with good youth to begin with, people that are not necessarily from
troubled homes. And programs like Mrs. Wallace's, you know
where the rubber meets the road; and we need to figure out some
way to get mor.-,'y to programs like yours that are productive.

Ms. WALLACE. Yes, sir. For the young fellows now, we must un-
derstand, this may be their last opportunity. So from here there
may be permanent jail courses that cost $48,000 or $50,000 a year.
So when you weigh the levels of prevention that we could get into,
starting with people who, at first, have not had any trouble, then
go on to some minor scrapes, it still does not cost $48,000 to
$50,000 a year that we are paying for citizens who are nonproduc-
tive when they come out.

So you are right, at our IYO where the rubber meets the road,
as you say, our job is to try to get everybody out there on the cor-
ners inside the building. One of the failures that we have is that
we don't have enough staff to stand on the corners and talk to
young people.

NO has been fortunate to have so many successes. The word of
mouth is out there now, so I have large waiting lists. But wouldn't
it be great to have five or siA people on the corners talking to the
young people, knowing that many just need that to come off the
corners. The war against drugs, as far as I am concerned, we lost
several years ago. So now we have to come back with a new kind
of emphasis to try to save who we can save.

Mr. BALLENGER. Right. Well, again to the young gentlemen, I
kind of straightened up about 22, so you all picked a good time.
Maybe we will see you up here in about 15 or 20 years.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman OWENS. Mr. Payne.
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Mr. PAYNE. Thank you very much. I am glad you said 15 or 20
years. They live in my district now.

Ms. WALLACE. Competition coming.
Mr. PAYNE. Yes. Let me also thank all of the young panelists and

thank the organizations for allowing the young people to speak.
I think that when Joel started out saying that young people have

a lot to offer, there is no question that you and the other young
men and women from IYO have shown that in your testimony. Of
course, I am very familiar with IYO, being that it is in town, and
have been supportive of it for a number of years. I recall when they
first started out and had taken an old factory building and just
continued to expand and paint it and fix it up themselves.

As a matter of fact, as I indicated, Mr. Gephardt spent about an
hour and a half there; and he is still talking about the experience
that he had up there in Newark visiting the IYO. So hopefully a
program like this could get organizations that are doing a good job
in the local area to compete with the larger organizations.

I also would like to say that 15 or 20 years ago a number of the
organizations did start to change and to have outreach. I think the
programs that the Boys and Girls Clubs are doing today are a lot
different than they were 15 years ago and 20 years ago. We have
a very active group in Newark, also, in the Boys and Girls Clubs;
and the YM and YWCA started to detach themselves from the
main buildings years ago and did a detached worker program back
in the 1960s. But we in Newark have had a very active program
for inner-city youth through the years.

So I do think that many of the organizations andI know the
Girl Scouts have moved into projects in the inner cities, and many
of the programs have modified themselves. So I think that today
it is safe to say that many of the organizations that in the past,
when you saw the list, you kind of got an image of only upper class
or wealthy young people, upper-middle-income kids. Many of the
organizations have changed and really are in the inner city and so
forth.

Let me just ask the panelists, how early do you think that we
need to start developing serious programs flr prevention? We have
heard that pr,vention is the way to go. What age? Would anyone
like to comment from the panelists; what age do you think it ought
to begin?

Ms. WALLACE. Well, I agree with the age of six. Basically, we say
it in two ways: from two-and-a-half to five, most young people
should be in some kind of day care center for that good start, that
right start. At five, they are getting ready to go into kindergarten,
and it is a changing time for them, because they are now in the
bigger structure. So six years old is great.

But I also would like the committee to consider that there are
a large number of young people who have had children, and they
are children themselves, and these children are not being prepared
in any way. So eventually we are going to have to start talking
about infant care where infants learn the right kinds of things to
hear, to feel, to see. We don't realize that infants are aware of their
surroundings.
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So, there is no such thing as too early. But for right now, until
we can get a really comprehensive understanding of infant care, I
think six years old is an excellent age to start with.

Ms. STEWART. I agree. In the ideal, you start day one with a
child in both prevention and development. I am a reading teacher
by training, and I believe you start reading to them as soon as they
come out to get them on the right path; but that is not realistic.
And so I would agree that certainly by age sixcoincidentally, age
six is when Girls, Inc. programming starts.

I would like to emphasize the usefulness of what we do as youth
organizations informally, reiterating the piece about the 40 percent
of the child's time that is not taken up by school or sleeping. We
must fill that time. If it is called prevention, that is fine. I would
rather think of it as development. There is so much that we can
do, we in formal organizations, educationally, in that time after
school and before supper, that if we can get it started by age six
and I am talking now beyond sports and recreation, although we
certainly have a sports program at Girls, Inc.to actual edu-
cational pieces in leadership, in math and science, in literacy. I
think age six is absolutely crucial.

Mr. PAYNE. All right. Let me just ask the last question to any
of the older four young people, from Newark, who participated. If
any of you would like to just say, what was it that made you decide
to join the program? I am sure that you have got some buddies out
there that still will not become a part of the program even if there
were some slots available.

What is the difference in you four and your buddies? Even
though Ms. Wallace might have spoken to some of your friends,
any of you may want to take a shot at that.

Mr. KINCHEN. Really, what made me and I guess the other gen-
tlemen and the lady, change was to get an education and to better
ourselves, and also proceed to want to do something different in
our lives other than doing the same thing day in and day out. Be-
cause doing the same thing day in and out, you could end up hurt
or dead. I had two boys myself at a young age, and I would like
to see them grow up and become somebody and do something right
in their life.

Mr. PAYNE. Do you think if there were more employment oppor-
tunities that this would help you. If there were jobs available,
would that pull some of the guys from wanting to sell drugs? Of
course, you know, the salary is a lot different. But do you think if
there wore some meaningful jobs, that a lot of your buddies would
turn over?

Mr. KINCHEN. Yes, sir, they would. Right now there are not too
many jobs out there, and it is kind of hard. So they see that selling
drugs is a different way of life to get what they need; but, that
won't always be there. So really, you do need more jobs and they
need to go back to school and get a better education.

Mr. SYKES. I hear a lot of guys saying they want to get jobs. So,
they are selling drugs to get a car and they go further out to get
a job. There aren't really that many jobs in Newark; they want to
go further out and find a job.

Mr. PAYNE. Thank you.



MS. WALLACE. Another thing, Congressman. We have a tendency
to compare a drug-selling salary, as I call it, to a normal salary.
So, we have a tendency to say, they are not going to give up the
$5,000, $10,000. I have some young people that are making serious
money on the corners.

But it is not the amount of money that they give up; it is a life-
style. At first, I didn't think that working and getting a stipend of
$100 could compare to what they usually get. But, they dont value
the money that they make. Otherwise, they would be doing some-
thing constructive with it. The value of the stipend becomes more
important because it is theirs without any fear of it being taken.

So even though young people really make a lot of money, it is
really not a lot of money to them. Am I making myself clear?

If I were making $10,000 a day, knowing I want to buy clothes,
cars, travel, vacation, I start planning that. To young people who
make $10,000 a day who have no plan or what to do with the
money, then it isn't a lot of money. So you kind of say, well, how
did they give up all of that for the little bit? Well, the little bit is
theirs with a plan.

The large amount of money is theirs without a plan, and the
danger of losing it is very high, because of the muggings and what
we call competition on the corners.

So, at first I did not understand why young people would come
from $5,000 a day to $100 a week, but it has been made very clear.
I have so many that have come in off the corners and are settling
for the $100, for the structure, for the discipline, for the spirituality
which we must talk about in any bill that we pass.

We do a lot of spiritual things at the center; we pray a lot at the
center. These things are important to young people, because it is
a structure. And out there on the corner, even though you have a
lot of money, there is no structure, no safety, no guarantee, no feel-
ing of importance. All of these things can be built into centers and
programs, and that is what makes the young people change.

They didn't change because some miracle happened; they
changed because I gave them that missing thing that they didn't
even know was missing. It is called spirituality. And until we start
filling that up, then we are not going anywhere either. It is not the
money out there on the corner, or else they would still be there;
it is filling that void inside of them that is hungry for the things
that they need.

We need to understand that the value of money does not mean
the same thing to them as it means to us.

Mr. PAYNE. Thank you.
Mr. JACKSON. Well, what made me stop stealing cars and things

like that was that I saw a lot of friends, that I was close to, get
killed. A lot of friends died, and I didn't want to end up like them.

When I first came to IYO, I didn't think I was going to make it.
But as time went on, IYO became like a family to me; that is what
I needed, because I never really had a family. This kept me there,
kept me in a positive mind. I just think Mr. and Mrs. Wallace
helped me.

Mr. PAYNE. Thank you.
MS. SMITH. Well, what made me come to the IYO was the fact

that around my neighborhood there was a lot of teenage pregnancy.
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The population on my blo.:1 alone has grown tremendously. And I
came to the IYO, so I would have something to do and wouldn't
have to worry about some of the guys on our block. I wouldn't have
to worry about that, because I had my friends and I had Mrs. Wal-
lace and Ms. Jacobs and the rest of them. We would communicate.
I had friends and family and I didn't have to worry about getting
pregnant. So that is where I went.

Chairman OWENS. Thank you.
Mrs. Morella.
Mrs. MORELLA. WOw, to have such candid and exemplary testi-

mony from people who can do their best to show that this Youth
Development Block Grant and these programs really do work. They
do give you a sense of identity. I want to thank the panel, particu-
larly the young people who have been part of these programs, who
have come here to share with us their background and what the
programs have done for them.

Joel, I am curious about, and I am familiar with the Boys and
Girls Clubs of Silver Spring and in the Washington area. Has it
made a difference in your relationship with your family?

Mr. MANN. Yes, it has. My mom has been very proud of me, be-
cause I had an opportunity through the Boys and Girls Club to get
a scholarship for preparatory school in Virginia.

Mrs. MORELLA. Very good.
Mrs. Wallace, you are incredible. We were commenting here that

we would like to see you cloned, spread you all over. Not only did
you articulate it very well, but your whole sense of commitment,
the passion that you have for what you are doing is very evident.
And you started in 1970 with Mr. Wallace. And I guess that it is
true that you have seen a difference in the problems that you are
facing with the young people?

MS. WALLACE. 01, yes, definitely. When we started out, like I
said, the parents v ere there and their goal was to make sure that
the young people pt a good education, because we all felt at that
time that once ym . got a college degree, that was it, you know. You
kind of knew that education was the answer.

Over the years, I have seen a great decline, because that is not
the only answer. You can have the best education in the world and
still not make it. I saw teenage pregnancy on the rise.

One of the things that I saw maybe about 12 years ago that
made me start screaming at politicians and sending out an alarm
was that black little boys were coming to the center unclean. I
don't know if you know about how black mothers always kind of
greased the little boys up and they just took care of them. When
I saw that not happening, then I knew the neighborhood was
changing and that the environment and the ethics and everything
that we knew and held high were changing. So I have seen a lot
of changes.

But I would like to talk about Raesheea. See, in the community,
if we are going to stop teenage pregnancy, one of the things we are
going to have to do is safeguard the Raesheeas of this world. As
she said, she didn't have to worry about always having to say no.
How many times can you say no in one day? I mean, at some point
your resistance is broken.
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But if you are aroulid other boys and you kind of develop a
healthy relationship where that kind of thing isn't always being
heaped on you, then it makes life a little easier. A lot of the girls
got pregnant because they just got tired of saying no. When I talk
to them and ask why they did that, they have no idea. They just
got tired of saying no.

When we were growing up, it wasn't like that; and 20 years ago,
it wasn't like that. But the forces of evil are strong, and we must
understand who our enemy is; it is Satan, and he is evil, and he
is try'.2.-6 to destroy all of us, and if we don't wake up, he is going
to d...:stroy all of us. I didn't come down here to give a religious cere-
mony, but that is the bottom line. We have got to be prepared for
our enemy, and he is destroying us through our young people.

Mrs. MORELLA. Very, very good point. Very well stated. I fully
agree with you.

Ms. Stewart, I wanted to thank you, because in representing the
group, you have just given all of the data here, too; and I know all
of the Members of these subcommittees will read that you have the
definitions, you have the funding level in here, the responsibilities
of the local board. And I think you have pointed out, not only
through Girls, Inc., but you have pointed out through representa-
tion of the group the need to consolidate, the need to have one
place, like, to go to so that you are not all over the map.

I submit, and I wonder what comments you might have, that
really we could even save money from this as well as have more
programs where you are not all fighting about who is going to offer
this. Is it going to be through HUD like your SMART program is,
you know, the VA-HUD; or another grant that someone is offering,
and you have to customize the program to meet whatever the
qualifications are? This way you have local people who know who
deal with the young people, know what the needs are, who can con-
solidate.

Would you like to comment a bit more on that? Because that is,
I think, one of the real pluses, is that you point out there is a need
for consolidation.

Ms. STEWART. There is a need, and the comment I would make,
Congresswoman, is that there is an attitudinal sea change, I think,
among these organizations I represent and beyond in terms of a
willingness; actually, an intention to collaborate. We are tired of
scrambling for the same funds. We know that we know what
works.

I have just come from a meeting in the last month of a number
of the collaboration affiliates where the whole issue of evaluation
mentioned by Mr. Scott was a key discussion item. We are looking
forward to self-evaluation.

So there is a willingness and a desire to collaborate that is very
powerful at the local level, as well as at the National level, and I
think you all can capitalize on that.

Mrs. MORELLA. I just wanted to thank you, thank you all very
much for being in the program, having the programs. What you are
doing in the way of leadershipwe do all profit by it.

I notice you mentioned the major organizations and foundations
that are in strong support of doing more with young people, such
as this Youth Development Block Grant, such as the Carnegie
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Council, Eisenhower Foundation, Kauffman Foundation, et cetera,
et cetera, who have all pointed out the need that kids can walk
around trouble if there is some place to walk to and someone to
walk with. Get them off the corners and into the buildings. Very
good point.

I wanted to also commend Congressman Payne and do hope that
you will wait until he is ready to leave office to run. It is great
working with him on this bill.

Thank you.
Chairman OWENS. Does New Jersey have term limitations?
Mr. PAYNE. Not yet, but don't give them any ideas.
Chairman OWENS. Mr. Scott.
Mr. Scorr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would like to thank all

of the witnesses who have testified. They have given us a lot to
think about.

I won't ask any questions other than to ask Ms. Stewart, did you
say that you have clone evaluations of your program?

Ms. STEWART. Yes. Girls, Inc. has done extensive evaluations.
Mr. Scow. Could you give us the results of those evaluations?
Ms. STEWART. I will give you one powerful one. A particular teen

pregnancy program which is called Preventing Adolescent Preg-
nancy was piloted at four sites with a cohort of almost 800 girls,
and the results from the program interventionsthere are four
parts to that program starting with girls talking to their mothers
about human and sexual and social developmentin the pilot
study evaluation were that for 11- and 12- and 13-year-old girls
onset of sexual activity was halved; reduced by half. And the actual
pregnancies resulting for the 14-, 15- and 16-year-old cohort were
reduced by half. And that is pretty powerful documentation result-
ing from very careful evaluation. And then, of course, we ruled that
program out once it was pilot to all of our affiliates across the coun-
try.

Mr. Scorr. And how expensive were these four interventions?
Ms. STEWART. How expensive? Per girl?
We had extensive foundation funding to roll the program out,

which of course is required, and the assessment per girl, as we esti-
mate it now in a given affiliate, is about $100. A lot of start-up
money is involved, needless to say, but once the programand that
is part of the point; all of us knowall of us have programs now
that work, so that the actual delivery of the program is a lot less
expensive.

Mr. SCOTT. Well, the point that needs to be made is that for very
modest cost you can reduce a very expensive problem in society.

Ms. STEWART. That is exactly right.
Mr. Scow. And those are the kinds that we cando you have

the evaluations, copies of them that we can
Ms. STEWART. Yes.
Mr. SCOTT. If you could provide the committee with that, that

would be very helpful, because we found that for thc just the
smallest amounts of money, you could make a lot of difference
prevention, teen pregnancy prevention, a lot of other things that
cost us a lot at the end.

Ms. STEWART. We will be happy to.
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May I give you another example of anot completed, but another
evaluation going on. We have a very good science and math pro-
gram that kind of exemplifies the hands-on learning that we offer
to girls, and it is being evaluated now. It is called Operation Smart,
and we will be happy to give you those results when they are avail-
able, to see what effect exposure to math and science has on girls
in the long term in career choice.

Mr. Scow. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman OWENS. I want to thank all of our witnesses.
Our next panel consists of Ms. Elnora Watson, Executive Direc-

tor of the Urban league of Hudson County, jersey City, New Jer-
sey; Mr. Richard L. Murphy, Director of the Youth and Violence
Program, tbs Fund for the City of New York; Mr. Lynn C. Swann,
National Board President, Big Brothers/Big Sisters of America
from Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

Please be seated. We will recess for three minutes.
[Brief recess.]
Chairman OWENS. Please be seated; we will resume.
I am going to yield to Congresswoman Morella for an introduc-

tion of Mr. Swann, and then I am going to turn over the Chair to
Mr. Payne for a short period of time. I have to leave for another
engagement, but I will return.

Mrs. Morella.
Mrs. MORELLA. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I appre-

ciate that. I want to welcome all of the witnesses, Ms. Watson, Mr.
Murphy; and since I had invited, with your permission, Mr. Swann,
I particularly wanted to introduce him.

What happens to the youngest of three boys, whose name is
Lynn when his mother enrolls him in dance school as an eight-
year-old child? What will people say? Well, Howard Cosell said,
"Maybe the most perfect wide receiver of his time."

Curt Gowdy, Super Bowl X, said, "The Baryshnikov of football."
Ray Blount, Jr., author and a commentator, said, "I always

thought that what Swann did was a higher art form than what
Baryshnikov is doing, because I know that Swann is not as good
a dancer as Baryshnikov, but I would like to see Baryshnikov
dance while people are trying to separate his head from his body,
and I would like to see him catch a bullet pass while doing this
stuff. I think that some of the things that Swann did with his body
I hope would be available to art historians."

Well, if your name is Lynn Swann, then you become an artist in
the world of football. Lynn Swann, while in high school, was an all-
American in football, California State long jump champion, and
still dancing.

From a scholarship at University of Southern California, he was
in two Rose Bowlshe played on two Rose Bowl teams, national
champions in 1972, team captain, most valuable player, et cetera.
I could go on.

As you all know, for nine years, he was a vital player with the
Pittsburgh Steelers as they won four Super Bowls, and the danc-
ingall of that dancing paid off. He also was on stage with Gene
Kelly; ballet star Peter Martins; dance choreographer, Twyla
Tharp, et cetera, including his broadcasting career. He is also an
active community volunteer.
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But he is here today because, as well as being on several boards
of directors, he is a spokesman for several national organizations,
and he is the National spokesperson for Big Brothers/Big Sisters of
America. He has been that since 1980. And he now servesas of
June of 1993, as the President of the National Board of Directors.

He has traveled across the Nation and has visited the White
House on behalf of the Nation's oldest one-to-one organization. And
so, I guess dancing isn't such a bad beginning, if your name is
Lynn Swann, and I very much appreciate, as I know these sub-
committees do, the fact, Mr. Swann, that you have come here on
behalf of what you consider to be an important piece of legislation.

Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for letting me introduce Mr. Swann.
Mr. PAYNE. [presiding] Thank you for that excellent introduction.

So, Mr. Swann, we will lead off with you.

STATEMENTS OF ELNORA WATSON, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
URBAN LEAGUE OF HUDSON COUNTY, JERSEY CITY, NEW
JERSEY; RICHARD L. MURPHY, DIRECTOR, YOUTH AND VIO-
LENCE PROGRAM, FUND FOR THE CITY OF NEW YORK, NEW
YORK, NEW YORK; AND LYNN C. SWANN, NATIONAL BOARD
PRESIDENT, BIG BROTHERS/BIG SISTERS OF AMERICA,
PHILADELPHIA, PENNSYLVANIA
Mr. SWANN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman; and Mr.

Owens and Mr. Martinez, who are not here; Congressman Payne.
Congresswoman Morella, thank you very much for that kind and
very gracious introduction. I appreciate it. Certainly my mother
will appreciate it, and my father will appreciate it, having paid for
all of those dance lessons that indeed paid off.

Congressman Scott, thank you very much for being here.
I am honored to be here, to be able to represent Big Brothers and

Big Sisters of America, and to speak as a member agency of the
National Coalition for Youth about H.R. 4086, the Youth Develop-
ment Block Grant Act.

I am not going to throw at you a number of statistics. I think
you have that in our written testimonies. There is a great deal of
information.

There are a few things I would just like to share with you, for
you to consider, these statistics: in 1993, the University of Michi-
gan study, 19 percent of eighth graders reported having been
threatened by a weapona gun, knife or club; almost half of those
threatened reported that they were actually injured. Fifty percent
of eighth graders reported they had been offered an illegal drug.

Reporters at the Chicago Tribune analyzed the deaths of 29 Chi-
cago-area children under the age of 15 who were killed during the
first six months of 1993. Seventeen lived in homes where no one
was employed. Four of those accused of killing children were four-
teen years old or younger.

Since nearlysince 1980 the public concern related to youth has
principally focused on improving education, academic performance,
fighting problems such as substance abuse and juvenile delin-
quency; and we are in grave danger of not meeting any of our na-
tional educational goals, not until the youth problems of our Nation
are addressed on a broader basis.
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I also want to read to you just the first paragraph and one sen-
tence from an article written in The Washington Post, Tuesday,
April 12, 1994:

"Growing up has never been easy. These days, for many kids, it
is close to impossible.

"The American Psychological Association's Commission on Youth
and Children studied first and second graders, six- and seven-year-
old children here in the District of Columbia, and discovered that
45 percent had seen someone mugged, 31 percent had seen some-
one shot, and 39 percent had seen dead bodies. Some city children
play a new game called funeral where they pick out the color of
their caskets, the color of their clothes, and the names of those peo-
ple to be invited to the funeral."

The title for this article is, and rightfully so, What Have We
Done to Childhood? The article is written by Congresswoman
Morella. And if you haven't seen it or read the entire article, I
would really strongly suggest that you do so, because we have lost
our children.

I say "lost" because I would hate to think that we have thrown
the youth of our society away. We have indeed lost them, because
we have not given them the opportunities, we have not opened the
windows, we have not shown them the vision or the greatness that
we believe and we know our country to have and to be.

We do not need to sit here and lecture about the fundamentals
that children need. We know what they need. But in addition to
the needs, they need the opportunity to see what they can become,
to have the ability to believe in themselves and what they can be-
come, to know that if they put the work in, they can be whatever
it is they want to be; that in time, those young people, no matter
where they come from, no matter what economic background they
come from or social background they come from, the young people
in this country can dream, accurately, that they can sit in the
chairs that you now occupy, that they can sit in the chair that I
occupy, that they can stand under the lights of surgery and operate
as a neurosurgeon, on thoracic surgeon, a lawyer, to do and achieve
anything they want to be. There is no chair that they can't sit in.

We want them to know that there is an area we don't need for
them to go or push them in, and that is towards jails. We have
seen how the institutions exist and work, the punitive kind of dam-
age that is done to children, to adults. Our young people need to
know that that will not happen to them, and we need to give them
the opportunity.

Once I was sitting at a dinner table and a gentleman who did
not know me very well leaned over and he asked me why I gave
scholarships to youn people in Pittsburgh between the ages of
eight and eighteen. I have given over 100 scholarships to kids to
the Pittsburgh Ballet Theatre School. He said, Why are you wast-
ing time giving those kids scholarships for the ballet? Why don't
you send them off to a trade school and teach them how to hammer
something or do something or be in construction or whatever? I
mean, they don't need that.

And I looked at him and I said, What do you mean, they don't
need that? I said, If we are ever going to break the mold of what
a bad environment does to a child, we have got to let them see
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what they can become, not give them the bare minimum. We need
to fuel their needs, but we also need to build their dreams.

We don't know what we are capable of when we are children. We
see so many different things that we want to become and want to
do. And we go out into our bad environments, to bad neighbor-
hoods; all of the successful people are no longer there.

As a child, I grew up and I could see the neighborhood doctor
going to work. I could see the dentists or the lawyer who was in
our neighborhood. And I said, That is my role model, that is the
person I want to emulate and be like.

Young people today go out and who do they see? The most suc-
cessful people they see are selling drugs or stealing cars, or people
who have the best clothes are selling drugs, stealing cars. That be-
comes their role model.

No matter how much we preach to them, no matter how much
we tell them, they need to see examples of people who are succeed-
ing on a daily basis. We have to provide through community orga-
nization3 those examples.

Mentoring has been a proven deterrent to bad behavior in young
people. They need that caring relationship; they need to know
someone cares about them. Resiliency research indicates, through
a study of youth who have beaten the odds, and points to the pres-
ence of a caring adult as a pivotal reason why children, who should
have succumbed to deleterious life circumstances, instead thrive.
That is very important.

Of course, I wish we wouldn't have to say kids "who have beaten
the odds." You know, there should not be those exceptions. You
know, the normal thing should be saying, well, which direction of
so many are you going into; not that you have beaten the odds,
that you are one of just a few who have succeeded.

I have always believed that there is never one answer to any
issue. While I believe strongly in mentoring and on one-to-one rela-
tionships established through Big Brothers and Big Sisters of
America, I know that the problems have to be attacked from a vari-
ety of angles.

We believe in classroomschool mentoring programs and group
mentoring. I believe in the Boys Clubs and Girls Clubs and what
they do for our youth in this country, having a place to go. I believe
in all of the other programs who are spending time, and volunteers
who are dedicating man-hours to helping young people.

I believe that the Youth Development Block Grant is a big part
of pushing our country towards the right end, to the solution to
helping our young people.

The community-based organizations, whether it is one office in
Washington, DC., or an organization that has several offices and
facilities and agencies across the country, are doing an outstanding
job; and we need to make surebecause they have the experience
and the staff and the people who know what the problems in their
community are, we need to help all of those organizations. I think
the structure that we have talked about for the Youth Development
Block Grant will make that possible.

I look forward to working with all of you in the near future and
coming back in two and three years down the road to quantify and
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tell you how the success r..,f the Youth Development Block Grant has
had a great impact on the youth of America.

Thank you.
Mr. PAYNE. Thank you very much, Mr. Swann.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Swann follows:]
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L C. SWANN

Thank you Chairman Owens, for providing me the opportunity to testify before this
Subcommittee regarding HR 4068. The Youth Development Block Grant Act.

I am Lynn Swann, National Board President of Big Brothers/Big Sisters of
America, the federated movement of over five hundred Big Brothers/Big Sisters
affil;ated agencies, located in all fifty states. The Big Brothers/Big Sisters
movement began in 1904 to provide One-To-One services to boys and girls in need
of additional adult support and guidance.

Big Brothers/Big Sisters of America exists to build the capacity of local affiliated
agencies to give children and youth, typically from single parent homes, the
opportunity to experience healthy relationships with caring adult volunteers. Such
relationships are the foundation for developing the full potential of boys and girls
as they grow to become competent and caring men and women.

Since the early 1980's, public concern related to youth has principally focused on
improving academic performance and fighting problems such as substance abuse
and juvenile delinquency. It is becoming increasingly clear, however, that the
United States will neither achieve the National Education Goals nor make any
significant progress on other youth problems until the nation addresses the broader
developmental needs of our children and youth. Parents have the primary
responsibility for the physical, emotional, moral, social and intellectual
development of their children. Tremendous social and demographicchanges since
the 1950's have had a significant effect on family life and youth development,
expanding the need for programs to strengthen the family unit and to help parents
meet their children's developmental needs.

Youth development is an ongoing process through which all youth actively seek to
meet their basic needs and to develop key competencies that will enable them to
deal successfully with the challenges of adolescence and prepare them for the
independence and responsibilities of adulthood. Research has shown that the basic
needs of youth include: safety and structure; belonging and membership;self-worth
and the ability to contribute; self-awareness; independence and control over one's
life; closeness, including lasting relationships with caring adults; and competence
and master,. Key competencies that are part of healthy youth development
include: knowledge, reasoning and creativity; work and family life skills; physical
and mental health skills; personal and social skills; and responsibility and
citizenship. Resiliency research -- the study of youth who have "beaten the odds"
- points to the presence of a caring adult as the pivotal reason why children who
should have succumbed to deleterious life circumstances instead thrived.
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Big Brothets/Big Sisters of America (BB/BSA) supports the need for national

leadership in the promotion of youth development. BB/BSA believes that
communities know the needs of their youth best and so should be responsible for
developing their own comprehensive youth development strategies, rather than any
mandated top-down national or state approach.

It is for these reasons that I encourage your support and adoption of HR 4068. I
speak not only representing BB/BSA but as a member agency of The National
Collaboration for Youth, an affinity group of the nations largest youth serving

organization Lh are united in their support of this important legislation.

Lynn S. Swann
National Board President
Big Brothers/Big Sisters of America
August 4, 1994
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Mr. PAYNE. We will now hear from Ms. Elnora Watson from the
Urban League of Jersey City, the Executive Director of Hudson
County.

Ms. WATSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. To you, Congressman
Payne and Congresswoman Morella, I thank you for the introduc-
tion of this bill; and to the committee chairpersons, for adopting
this very important legislation.

As stated, my name is Elnora Watson, and I am the President
of the Urban League of Hudson County in Jersey City; and the
Urban League of Hudson County in Jersey City serves over 7,000
households annually. Like many Urban Leagues across the coun-
try, we serve persons from infancy tr, their twilight years.

Of the 7,000 households we serve, 6,100 involve faMilies with
children of three or more children in the families.

My submitted testimony outlines the services we provide; I will
not go over them, but they mirror what is presented in the youth
development legislation, which is why I included them.

I would also like to add, before I go on, that many of the pro-
gramsand there. are 15 that I have just pigeonholed in my testi-
monyare collaborative efforts. We have a collaborative agreement
with housing authorities and the Boys Clubs; YMCAs; Impact,
which is a minority police officers organization in Jersey City; the
prosecutor's office and many smaller block associations, because we
know that it takes everyone's effort at the crisis situation we are
in to address the problems of youth in our community. We believe
that youth development is very important.

Recently, the newly elected President of the National Urban
League had, as one of his priorities, youth development for all of
our 113 affiliates around the country. So we too recognize the im-
portance of focusing our efforts and beginning to get resources to
serve our young people.

I would also like to add that I would hope that we aren't just
talking about reassignment of existing revenue, that maybe some-
place we can find some new revenue, because our children are our
most important, our most valued resource. We have no future if
they have no future.

So we shouldn't talk about just reallocating resources; we really
need to find some new resources so that some of the very important
programs that are going on now don't get hurt by cuts.

I have benefited from youth development on a small term. I hap-
pen to belong to a church with a pastor who, before I was born,
sold rags and papers to establish an education fund and a youth
fund to provide positive experiences for the young people in our
church. And over 300 young peoplepardon me, 3,000 have been
served by that act. It is past time that our government take the
lead in the development of our youth.

We see daily the horrors of what has resulted from youth who
have felt unloved and uncherished. We don't need to be reminded;
we just have to turn on the TV or pick up our morning paper see
the results of what has happened. In my own town, Larely a week
goes by without two or three young people being shot for no reason
at all. Guns are available. So we need to redirect what these young
people have theirdo with their leisure time.
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The block grant legislation is necessary so that the young people
that are in my community and in communities across the country
can stop saying, If I grow up, I can be, and return to what you
knew and what I knew, When I grow up, I can be, I can become.
It is a sad testimony to our country that our children don't believe
that they will have a future, because they may die.

We have recently had three triple murders in our town, all in-
volving children as young as four years old who were killed. They
are not valued in our country.

One aspectthe youth development bill, I am very much in sup-
port of, and I believe in most aspects of it. There is one aspect of
it thatas an African-American, and I believe other minority orga-
nizations have had the experience of having to go through too
many governmental bureaucracies, having to lobby and take bus-
loads of kids and bring them, as some have brought people to you
this morning, to impress upon you how important it is to get to or-
ganizations that deal with at-risk youth.

The children that are served, many of them through the Urban
League, have the streets as their playground. Their after-school ac-
tivities involve dodging drug dealers. So we must make sure that
the people like the International Youth Organization and other
community-based organizations that are represented get named in
this legislation so that they don't have to fight to get the resources;
they don't have to spend time lobbying governmental entities to say
that this is important.

My office opens at 9 a.m. I usually get to my office at 7 a.m., and
between 7 a.m. and 8, we have families lining up for service, and
know that they cannot be served until nine o'clock. The need is
there; what is lacking are the resources. And I would hope that
first of all, that this bill is successful, that all of you and the other
Members of this committee will support it.

We should not be telling children they have to be served through
a crime bill; they should be served through a youth development
bill. I would hope that the committee recognizes that and sees that
they make every effort, that this legislation is passed, hopefully
with some considerations that I have mentioned about African-
American and minority and Hispanic organizations especially. I
think if you look at records around the country, you will see that
we areunless we bus young people there in great numbers and
make noise, we rarely get the dollars; and we should not have to
do that. Lives get lost when we have to wait for the resources to
come down.

So I am very much in support of the youth development bill; I
can't tell you how happy I was to see it come forth. Our youth have
to be a priority; there is just no question about it. And I will work
when I go back to make sure that others in the community know
about this and make sure that they send their letters of support
for this very important effort.

Thank you.
Mr. PAYNE. Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of Ms. Watson follows:]
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ELNORA WATSON

My name is Elnora Watson, I am the President of the Urban

League of Hudson County in Jersey City, New Jersey. I would

um to first commend Congressman Donald Payne, and

Congresswoman Constance Morella for introducing H.R. 4086,

for inviting me to share my thoughts.

Urban League of Hudson County like Urban Leagues around the

County serve persons from infancy to their twilight years.

(Vibe 7000 households we serve annually, eighty five percent

have children. To those 6,000 households with children thc

following services are served:

Youth Competency Program - Includes employability skills,

self esteem, effective thinking/decision making, responsibility,

1
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social development, and leadership in a workshop/seminar

format. Participants spend three days per week in internships at

tie 'Urban Lamas °Mow cer are plowed as wilds rms. enema

government or social service agencies. Additional experiences

include ATODA, AIDS, Violence and Teen Pregnancy

Prevention, Peer Rap Groups and culture/arts opportunities.

Youth Employment Readiness Program - offers young

persons a comprehensive education, pre-employment and work

maturity skills program.

Earn As You Learn - provides employment for students

involved in the Home Economics Co-op Program at Lincoln

High. Students are identified and placed at day care centers in

Jersey City. 2
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Educational, SAT, Post-Secondary and Financial Aid counseling

and advocacy services are provided to high school and GED

students.

Substance Abuse Prevention

Since 1988 the Urban League has been offering a range of

services to young persons with the overriding goal of preventing

ATODA (Alcohol Tobacco and Other Drugs of Abuse).

Parental involvement is a crucial element in all these programs

and parent support groups are formed at service locations. We

work to build self esteem and positive behaviors through

education and involvement.

Somebody Cares About My Future - offers services to

3
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residents of five Jersey City Housing Authority sites under a

partnership agreement

Program components include:

- GED/ABE classes for 16 to 18 year old high school drop outs

- Tutorial services for in school youth.

Vocational training and assistance.

Sports and Recreation Involvement including organizing a

summer night basketball league (in partnership with DARE and

the Jersey City Boys Club), trips to New Jersey Nets and New

York Mots and Yankee games and comxnunity social events

(picnics, trips to parks, etc.).

Peer leadership training programs.

4

86-877 0 - 95 - 5

129



126

- Youth comil involvement.

- Special Events: Annual County-Wide Youth Conference for

150 youth.

Annual African American Cultural Bowl for 100

boys (in 1994 Girls were included).

Annual Education Over Drugs Festivals at five

public housing sites.

- Aids, Violence and Teen Pregnancy Prevention Education.

- Substance Abuse Education and Awareness

Adolescent Substance Abuse Training and Awareness

(ASATA) provides substance abuse prevention services to

Hudson County Board of Education identified students throul

5
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a curriculum designed to address substance abuse education and

awareness. It is presented in schools ss well as in special

workshops targeting pregnant adolescents, young mothers, and

children of substance abusers.

BABES (Beginning Alcohol and Addictions Basic Education

Studies) is a program utilizing puppets and stories to bring our

ATOM prevention message to preschool and early childhood

age children. We deliver these workshops in schools,

preschools, day care centers and at Urban League events. Our

BABES coordinator has recently been eeitified as the first

bilingual BABES txainer in North and South America.

Training For Parents, Volunteers and Staff Who Work With

6
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Youth and Their F es - is in service ATODA prevention

methodology training offered at no cost by Urban League staff

who were trained by the National Volunteer Training Center For

Substance Abuse Prevention (training of trainers program).

Attending this training are staff from other social service

providers, volunteers, other Urban Leagues and members of our

staff.

Yot and/amily Protective Services

Adolescent Servicing Center - provides counseling for teenage

parents and their families that are involved with the Division of

Youth and Family Services (DYFS). Teenage pregnancy is the

primary focus as we address pre/pet4 natal nutrition, parenting

7
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skills, self sufficiency and life skills planning.

Life Sins - program teaches Independent Living SIdlls to

DYFS identified youth that are aging out of residential foster

care. The extensive experience of the staff has played a major

roll in designing the life skills approaches for our Youthbuild

design. It includes self awareness, personal appearance and

hygiene, time management, shopping skills, budgeting skills,

housekeeping skills, emergency safety skills, consumer rights,

community resources, hesith, decision making and problem

solving.

Adopt-A-Parent Program - provides support for pazents in

crisis where there is suspicion or charges of child abuse and/or

8
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minors are running the household. Older volunteers are placed

in the homes to provide support, serve as companions, role

model positive parenting behaviors, teach life skills, initiate

recreation activities, help with household chores and in general,

stabilize the hmily. The program eases the crisis, protects the

children, keeps the family intact and allows the family to heal.

Family Development Program - provides short term

therapeutic interventions designed to stabilize families in crisis.

The program facilitates the return of placed children to nuclear

families or prevents the placement of at risk children. Crisis

include child neglect/abuse, incest, substance abuse, truancy,

juvenile delinquency, general family dysfunction and poor

parenting skills. 9
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Supervhed Visitation - provides an organized approach in

arranging/coordinating, transporting and supervising visits for

children placed in foster care and their natural parents.

Other youth Services

IIIV/AIDS Education Program - provides workshops and

technical assistance at many community sites.

Advocacy and Assistance - Services are vital part of our

mission in which the staff utilizes their extraordinary depth and

breadth of knowledge, experience, contacts and clout to

intervene in issues that private indivi duals lack the resources to

resolve. Some issues addressed involve: housing; hopelessness;

education; discrimination; careers; employment; criminal

10
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justice; government agencies; health; and any other concerns

that are brought to our doors.

VISTA - volunteers implement our Educational reclamation

Project that seeks out dropouts (including homeless youth) and

influences them to return to school. A natmal outgrowth will be

to provide assistance in recruitment and outreach for

Youthbuld.

Women In Urban Leadership - is a project that is creating an

urban women's leadership group by bringing together successful

women and young economically challenged women.

Parenting Skills Workshops - based on CICC's Effective Black

Parenting Program utilizing an achievement orientation to Black

11
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Parenting. It teaches child management skills from within a

Black frame of reference, includir4 affective praise, effective

ignoring, healthy confrontation, time out effective discipline

methods. Special sensitivities are addressed to contemporary

urban realities including single parent families, drugs and

violence.

You will note that Urban League Programs are valued. Our

services for youth represent 1 million in financial resources

prevention initiatives comprise only 1190 of that 1 million.

Most available resources are targeted toward remediating of

youth problems.

Hugh Price, President of the National Urban League has made

12
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youth development one of three initiatives for Urban League

affiliates around this county. He has done so because we all

know and have experienced what can result by targeting

resources to develop positive experiences forour children. Had

not a Black Baptist Ghetto Preacher by the name of Rev. Ercel

Webb started an education fund before I was born I would not

have gone on to a higher education. He knew that the best way

to develop young people was to plan for their benefit.

It is past time for our government to take the lead in the

development of our youth. We see constantly the horror and

tragedy of what is now a society that cares little for its children

The Youth Development Block Grant is necessary if we are to

13

138

I.

1



135

stop children from saying," if I grow up" and return their

language to what knew, and what you knew that when I grow

up I can become.

There is one aspect of the bill that I wish to recommend some

adjustment. Block grants funding in its traditional form is very

difficult for African American, and Hispanics organization to

access. If a youth development initiative is to truly reach high

risk youth; those whom the street is their only play ground and

after school activity is dodging bullets and drug dealers. You

must include in this legislation the names of community based

organization such as the Urban League or PACO, (in Jersey

City).

14
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You must insure that the necessary resources go to those local

groups who have proven success with high risk, disadvantaged

youth. Until African American and other minority organizations

are named in the legislation too much time will be

spent in the polidcal process that puts minority organization at

the bottom of the funding heap. I urge the passage of this bill

with adjustment to insure that those of us who are front line get

the the resources.

15
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Mr. PAYNE. Mr. Richard Murphy from New York City.
Mr. MURPHY. Thank you very much. I want to thank everyone

before me, behind me and beside me for what they have said, and
I want to move along. I also want to say I didn't have dancing les-
sons and I wish I had; and I am going to talk to my mother to-
night, because I think there is a realand I joke, but I also say
that it is opportunities, and that is real important, and I think that
is a real Important part.

I corn a here sort of in an odd position because I am currently ac-
tually ibrming something new and I want to just briefly give two
of my past experiences that I think qualify me for speaking today,
bemuse I am going to talk about a couple of concerns I have about
this block grant. But I want to say right up front that this is real
important, and we have to do this, and I actually want to do it a
little bigger, I think, in some places. So any concerns or criticisms
I say are in that context of saying, this is real important.

And for 25 years I have been waiting to hear this word as op-
posed to all of the preventive words. Because there is a big dif-
ference between developing young people as opposed to preventing
X, Y and Z; and I have spent a lot of years, I started out in 1970
developing and founding a program called Reading Centers and
Children in Families. It works in Harlem and serves over 200 peo-
ple and families every day, starting from one class, one schoolroom
in a school-based program.

And then in the last four yearsI just finished being Commis-
sioner of the New York City Department of Youth Services where
I was able to spend $40 million of new tax levied monies on youth
development programs that were not connected to stopping some-
thing as opposed to developing something. And while I can briefly
mention some of those initiativesand they include Beacon
Schools, which is keeping a school open literally twice as many
hours as it is currently to offer a range of opportunities to the
young people and their parents; New York City Youthline, street
outreach, intergenerational programs.

I think the important thing is, now that we are in the eighth
month of a new administration going from Democratic to Repub-
lican, I am pleased to say that all of those initiatives have been
kept, and that I consider an accomplishment not just of mine, bu..,

a lot of other people who worked at institutionalizing those initi a-
tives and buying in support that was broad-based. That is wIA, I
talk about three concerns on this legislation.

The first one is the composition and powers of the National,
State and local commissions, which I think are real important to
make those commissions more advisory and to involve the local and
State governments much more in the decision-making power. I see
this block grant as reallyI used an analogy in the testimony that
we have sort of got a desert of opportunity, a lack of opportunity
for young people; and this block grant is the irrigation system upon
which we can put a lot of the other crime prevention and initiatives
that have been hanging out there. If we are to have this as a main
structure of the developmental funding stream in State, city and
Federal Government, we have to have it seem broader based. And
if we have a commission that is made up of people who are going
to be the primary beneficiaries, it will be perceived as too vested.
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Now, I believe those organizations who are going to be sitting
there are going to and should get the money because they are the
leaders and they do the services best. But I think we have to be
careful of perception and buying from a locala larger group of
people.

For example, in New York City, the organizations that would
represent the National organizations would comprise about 50 of
the 700 organizations that could apply for that money, or 50 of
1,000 organizations. And I don't want to have that perception.

The second recommendationand this is much harder and
trickieris that I believe there has got to be some local govern-
ment matching funds, that we have to work at that to getbuy in
at the real local level so that they want to keep this going on, if
they see this as a real important service.

We have been talking about how much these programs are need-
ed. One statistic: We now have young people in school 1,000 hours,
1,080 hours a year. There are over 4,500 hours that they are not
in school and awake. The best family in the country today is lucky
to spend half of those hours with their children, with the number
of working families, onesingle-parent families. We have easily
2,000 hours where young people need a safe place, opportunities
and structure; and schools are not there, they are not open. And
unless we change the school system a great deal, we need this
youth development structure, if we are going to develop our young
people.

Japan has 241 school days a year and a longer school day, plus
they have a whole system of youth development programming. So
I just throw that out there, that we have to work on the localities
to put in some matching monies beyond the private organizations.

The third and final recommendation is the planning process. It
has to be focused on uniform data collection and current youth
funding allocations. I provided an excerpt from a report I did while
I was Commissioner in New York City of just showing the 17 agen-
cies in New York City that in one way or another funded youth
programs, and that was an indication of how muchnot duplica-
tion, but overlap. I don't think we have too much money for young
people, I think we don't have enough coordination; and I think the
language about coordination has to begin first with just having eas-
ily documentable information on what exists at the local level.

We now in New York City have through this Youthline, and
through the magic of computers and geo-codingevery service that
exists for young people blocked out, block by block, and it can be
brought up very simply on a computerthat lets us know where
the gaps are. And I think this legislation can be a catalyst for this.

I mean, right away, I would like to get that list that Congress-
man Ballenger had of all of those programs, that those should be
formatted in a way of how they are going to translate into average
expenditure per youth and how does it complement other things, so
that we can quickly get at that.

I think this Youth Development Block Grant can be the catalyst
for this, because it is the only time we have proactive language
from the Federal Government in such a positive way; and that is
really significant.
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So I leave with that and will look forward to working with you
in the future on this.

Thank you very much.
Mr. PAYNE. Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Murphy followsl
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Richard Murphy, Director
Youth line America

Good Morning.

I am pleased to be testifying on the Youth Development Block Grant. While I do have major
concerns about elements of this Block Grant and how it will be implemented at the local
level. I want to make clear that federal legislation to support local Youth Development
Programs is long overdue.

Before I go into the details of my concerns. I will give some background on myself and the
perspective from which I am approaching this legislation. In 1970 I founded RHEEDLEN
Centers for Children and Families, a community based organization providing comprehensive
services to 2,000 children and their families in Harlem. In 1990, I was appointed
Commissioner of the N.Y.C. Department of Youth Services. This city agency has the
distinction of being one of the few government agencies in the country dedicated solely to
providing youth development programs open to all youth up to 21 years of age.

The N.Y.C. Department of Youth Services funds 675 community-based organizations
(CBO's) which provide services and supervised activities to young people -from toddlers to
young adults. These programs have no eligibility requirements and do not charge fees. DYS
supports these youth programs through a combination of state and city tax-levy funds. This
agency is mirrored at the state level by the N.Y. State Division for Youth. A significant
share of this funding is distributed by a formula to local planning bodies. This allocation
process does not work as well or as fairly as the monies distributed directly by government.
In addition, the programs themselves raise private funds to supplement the public funds.

Programs and services provided by the CBO's include tututoring, remedial education,
adolescent health, recreation, performing arts, crisis intervention, college preparation,
counseling, cultural arts, mediation, career guidance, leadership training and mentoring.
Many, if not all of the local members of the National Collaboration for Youth receive funding
from the N.Y.C'. Department of Youth Services.

During my four year tenure as Commissioner, close to 40 million of Youth Development
dollars was added to my budget. These monies allowed me to implement the following
programs:

Beacons

Beacons operate during the school days, evening and weekends, offering a broad array of
programs and services to young people and their families. By placing a variety of activities
and services to young people under one roof, programs are better able to attract various
populations within a neighborhood and offer a safe, productive haven for all community
residents. These innovative school-based community centers are now being replicated
throughout the country.

BEST COPY AVAILABLE
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Neighborhood Youth Alliance
This initiative brings together leadership training and co.-.;iunity service work. Community-
based organizations train young people in such areas as c. ilict resolution, respecting cultural

diversity, and community organizing. The young people then use these skills to design and
implement community service projects, ranging from recycling initiatives to community

newsletters to multi-cultural forums.

Street Outreach
Programs located in neighborhoods throughout the City use outreach workers to develop

trusting relationships with "hanging out" youth to bring them into programs. Additional

funding allows organizations to go beyond their traditional outreach methods and make

contact with those young people who are particularly hard to reach. Sometimes vans are used

to assist in this work.

Youth link
Community-based organizations located in high crime areas provide diversion, outreach, small

group counseling, drug prevention and counseling, family intervention services and
community service projects in close cooperation with local police precincts. This program
also includes additional training and opportunities for cooperation between police officers and

program providers.

Cit ysoorts
Large community-based organizations act as administrative entities to foster and expand

sports and other leisure time activities among young people in neighborhoods throughout the
City by purchasing equipment and supplies, keeping inventories, recruiting grass-roots
organizations, organizing tournaments, and teaching coaching skills.

NYC Youth line
This is not just a hotline. N.Y.C. Youth line, staffed by trained youth, provides geo-coded

resource information," listening", and crisis intervention to thousands of youth weekly.

As much as I believe these new programs are solid and based on principles long practiced

by the members of the National Collaboration for Youth, I believe the biggest achievement

of the last four years is that the new Republican administration in N.Y.C. is keeping the

majority of these programs and consequently, institutionalizing the programs.

It is my concern about institutionalization that drives my recommendations on this proposed

legislation. My recommendations are three-fold and all involve making the state and local

government more integral in the planning, decision-making, and funding provisions of this

2.
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Recommendation #1: Compositior: PoA ers of National/ State/ Local Commissions

If this Block Grant is to be a catalyst for establishing a Youth Development System, then
government at all levels must play the major role in the planning and decision process.
Without government taking a leadership role this grant will be viewed as a special-interest
fund. No matter what safeguards are put in place, the present structure of the Commissions
does not appear inclusive or fair. If the present structure were implemented in N.Y.C., you
would have 14 Youth Development organizations who would be in the position of making
directly and/or indirectly the decisions of allocating the money to themselves while hundreds
of similar organizations would not have the same access. Such a process would not attract
other funding sources. Therefore,my recommendation is that Government must have the
major decision-making role with current commission structure serving as an advisory body.

Recommendation #2: Matching Monies

A local government match should be required. By requiring a match at the local level there
will be an immediate and/or long-term investment in the programs. Since the majority of the
country has no Youth Development funding stream, localities will be faced with either
increasing revenues or reallocating current expenditures on youth. It will not be easy to raise
the local match at first, but the work and consciousness-raising that will go into this effort
will compliment current work in creating an infrastructure for a Youth Development System.

Recommendation #3: Planning Process

The planning process should be focused on uniform data collection and current youth funding
allocations There is an urgent need for obtaining data on how we currently spend money on
youth at the national and local level. For example one bottom line need is a breakdown of
local government budgets - agency by agency to illustrate how much of their budget is
allocated for youth. (See attachment A for a sample). If simple and standard forms are used
from the beginning, the aggregate information can be a valuable tool for all of us to visualize
better how we spend money on our youth. Regarding your desire to prioritize Youth
Development needs this mandate in fact contradicts the underpinning of the theory of Youth
Development. i.e. as an entitlement as opposed to reactive to a deficit in youth.

3.
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In my 25 years working with and on behalf of youth. I've seen many good youth programs
start up. do a great job, and then slowly fade away because there is no mechanism for

institutionalization. Usually the source of funding is a federal or state demonstration grant
that has a limited life. We need to change this paradigm; the Youth Development Block
Grant could be the mechanism if there is local input at the beginning.

Currently, this Youth Development Block Grant is similar to bringing water to the barren
dessert of opportunity youth face in non-school hours. The challenge is just not to bring in

the water in any which way but to use this block grant as a catalyst for laying down a
structure similar to an irrigation piping system that can carry more than this block grant to
our youth, but become the foundation of a Youth Development System that will be viewed
as a universal and needed compliment to our educational system. The chart below clearly
illustrates how many hours our youth are not in school and need
a " place to go and " something to do ".

When School's Out, What Do Young People Do?

2.000 nours

Nowhors tc go
L, Noltvng to do /

in School
1.080 houls

Ideally
wel family

2 455 houls

I look forward to working with you toward creating a Youth Development System.
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Excerpted from: GAP Report FY '92: A project of the InterAgency Coordinating
Council on Youth; Prepared by Department of Youth Services June 1993 ATTACHMENT A

Thousands
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Department of Juvenile justice
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Mr. PAYNE. I appreciate the testimony from all three of you.
I would allow Congressman Ballenger to begin questioning. I

would like a copy of that book, too.
Mr. BALLENGER. I was just trying to ask, whose book is this, and

I find out it is his. We will check and see about that.
I would like to ask each of you, because I asked the other panel,

and I don't think I ever got an answer as to how much Federal aid
they got. In fact, I think basically they all came and said, there is
too much paperwork, too much red tape; you have got to jump
through too many hoops to make it worthwhile to even try.

And I don't know how many programs we have at the present
time, and you kind of said the same sort of thing. I think the City
of New York, surely you have the people that know how to jump
through hoops and stuff. The rest of you might actually be on the
outside looking in. But could I ask you?

MS. WATSON. Well, I am from Jersey City, and we get no block
grant funds or Federal dollars for youth services.

Mr. BALLENGER. Lynn?
Mr. SwANN. For Big Brothers and Big Sisters of America, we

have not received Federal funds. We are currently applying for
funds through the juvenile mentoring program which is in the
crime bill, for JUMP; and also for the community service funds.

But most of the funding we have for all of our programs comes
from foundationsyou know, some of our agencies are associated
with United Way and have some funding therebut from the local
boards and from fund-raising programs.

Mr. BALLENGER. And surely you can tell me that there must be
some youthfunds that we have in the Federal Government right
now, before the block grant, that the City of New York has figured
out how to get.

Mr. MTTRPHY. We do. We are not as good as we should be. Actu-
ally Texas, I think, is almost the best State for getting Federal
funds, because we are modeling a new grant program of grant-get-
ting program on their State.

But the kind of money we get now is really what I call deficit
kind of money. If there is a deficit in a kid, there can be money,
and that includes some juvenile justice funding, homeless and run-
away. If a kid runs away from home, we get some money. If the
family becomes dysfunctional, we can get the Family Preservation
and Foster Care Prevention mandated prevention monies. But it is
based on a deficit within the child or within his family.

So we do get it, but there is not any truly proactive youth devel-
opment monies, that should be tied to all young people, I think, in
the same way.

Mr. BALLENGER. And you all gatherI am a Republican, and I
see that here we have got a real thick book of programs available
for youth, and in any way that it can be done; and I am sure in
the educational area there must be some use of the Federal funds.
But I see "Big Brother" up here in WashiLgton, as we pass pro-
grams here that are going to solve individual problems; and we
draw up lines and regulations and make everythingmake you
jump through every hoop in the world to get some of this fabulous
money that you can only use in this little teeny, specific area.
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The block grant idea is, in my considered opinion, probably one
of the most constructive ways that we would ever go about it. If
we just can stay away from drawing the rules and regulations that
make it so impossible to get the money.

And I would hope thatI know that Mrs. Morella and Iwait
a minute. Here wein case you want to buy the book now, it is
$15 a copy. But it is Targeting Youth Source Book, Institute for
Educational Leadership, 1001 Connecticut Avenue, Northwest,
Suite 310, and so forth. We brought the order forms for you too,
if you would like. And wP did provide something constructive out
of this hearing.

But I have found over and over again, when I was a county com-
missioner back home, and we were trying to do things construc-
tively, and the Federal Government money was there. But it was
sort of like if you want to run a sewer line, you had to go through
some clean water area and apply for money and then you couldn't
use it the way you wanted to use it, tio we finally just gave up.

And I think that is what has happened to our youth programs,
that even though there is money available at the Federal level, we
have put so many strings and various and sundry ways of restrict-
ing the usage that we aren't providing anything except jobs for peo-
ple here in Washington. That is kind of a negative approach to this
thing, and I think it makes Connie's idea and the one that you all
are supporting much more constructive.

With that, Mr. Chairman, I will turn it back over to you.
Mr. PAYNE. Thank you very much.
Mr. Chairman, would you like to conclude, and I will give the

seat back to you when the hearing is adjourned, or would you liketo ask
Chairman OWENS. Go right ahead.
Mr. PAYNE. All right. Then you have the time.
Chairman OWENS. I am sorry I had to be absent, but I have read

your testimony, and I just have one question, and that is, a lot of
the Federal programs are geared toward schools and programs for
youth are funneled through schools. In the old community action
program for which I was once Commissioner in New York City, one
of the principles that the Federal Government insisted that we fol-
low was to always link up our youth programs somehow with the
schools, because the schools are the number one youth program of
America, where whether we like that idea or not, they have more
to do with youth than anybody else.

And I would just like for you to comment on how you think
schools can be helpful, or are they a hindrance, or are they com-
petitors for funds, but they produce no results in the direction that
you want to go? Just overall, how you see yourself interacting with
the schools?

Mr. SwANN. Chairman Owens, first of all, I like to try not to use
the word "competition," because I think what the National Coali
tion on Youth is attempting to do is to combine and create a posi-
tive coalition, not to compete for funds, but to address the issue of
how to get those funds channeled to those organizationsbe they
schools, church organizations, community organizationswho are
out there doing the work.
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I see the schools as a great place to begin. Certainly, maybe, they
aren't the hub that they used to be for our youth to always be in
school. We need to reopen some of those doors of those schools be-
yond school hours and access some of those facilities so that other
community-based programs necessarily aren't having to look for a
place to go for their programs and their services.

Certainly, Big Brothers and Big Sisters of America, we have over
500 agencies across the U.S., about 70 of those agencies are housed
in collaboration with Boys and Girls Clubs, a YMCA, a YWCA. We
have school-based mentoring programs wherein our foundational
programs, which is a one-to-one relationship between a young per-
son and an adult male or female; we have large group mentoring
programs that we do in conjunction with schools. So I think cer-
tainly there needs to be that continued collaboration.

I don't see education as a hindrance, except in those areas where
a school can't, for financial reasons or some other reason, or is un-
willing to help facilitate some of the comr nity-based programs.
But certainly I think there is a great deal of collaboration that is
done and can continue to go on between our educational systems
and existing programs.

MS. WATSON. I have a concern as to whether urban school dis-
tricts have a commitment to at-risk youth. In Jersey City, which
is the largest city in the community I serve, the graduation rates
for freshmen who entered in 1990 and were supposed to gradues,
in 1994one school, 36 percent of those entering freshmen grad-
uated; another, 55 percent, 59. The academic school only had 71
percent. And I have found that programs that are inat least the
public school districts that we work with, tend to deal with children
who are not ,going to give them a lot of problems. And so the highly
at-risk youth don't necessarily get served, and they end up drop-
ping out or getting pushed out and causing very expensive prob-
lems in the community.

So I am not at all too happy about that, unless there is some
kind of language which mand.ates that they work with community-
based organizations who end up getting these children that they
don't want to serve or are not serving.

Mr. MURPHY. I want to just reiterate what you said, Congress-
man, about whether we like it or not, we have to realize the schools
are where young people are and they have the most time and the
most money for young people. And the community groups that are
represented here today have to have equal access to that structure,
as well as the space.

One of the things, as I mentioned earlier, were the Beacon
Schools, where we literally in New York paid for community-based
organizations to manage programs more hours in that school build-
ing than the school personnel were in it. And it has begun to
change the dynamic and the sense of community ownership in
those schools, and that is what we have to work toward, that the
school is not a separate entity and may or may not allow people.
And I think making sure that money is allocated for community
programs should be not justsometimes just goes to schools. I
think community-based organizations have to have equal access to
that money, not just in this legislation, but a lot of other legisla-
tion.
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Chairman OWENS. Thank you very much.
Mr. PAYNE. Thank you.
Mrs. Morella?
Mrs. MORELLA. Thank you. Again, this has been a wonderful

panel and, I think, a great hearing, where the people who really
have been working at trying to face the challenge have been hereto tell us.

You mentioned, Ms. Watson, the need to make sureand you al-
luded to it too, Mr. Murphymake sure that the money would go
to those areas that need it most. And within the bill, there is a for-
mula for the States and there is a formula for the local commu-
nities, and the formula is one that will include within it the num-
ber of youth in the State compared to the youth and the numbers
in all of the States; the allocation in terms of the number of youth
from low-income families in the Stateyou know, as it is done na-
tionallythe extent to which there has been an increase in violent
juvenile crime in the State since 1990; and the same thing with the
localities. Co there is an attempt to try to make sure that there will
be accessibility in those areas which deal mostly with our at-risk
areasrather than at-risk kids, the at-risk areas.

I would like to commend you, Mr. Murphy. The bill in terms of
any specificityI was very interested in the comments that you
had with regard to where you think there could be or should be
some changes. Maybe some of them are addressed, and if they are
not, would you share it with us?

Mr. MURPHY. I shall, yes.
Mrs. MORELLA. And the same thing with you, Ms. Watson, since

you work withwe think it has been crafted well to try to make
that accommodation; and when I talk about redirecting some of the
resources, it is because of what we have said during this hearing,
that there may be monies that we are not utilizing that are already
there that should be directed toward this block grant.

Of course, the Federal Government can put more money in as the
program progresses, but the point is to do some reallocating now
and to also make the money go further. But I would agree with
you.

And, Mr. Swann, I am sorry I didn't mention the number of
scholarships that you have given. I was aware of it, and I meant
to, so I am glad that people know that you have given of yourself
in so many different ways.

As you have traveled the country, what are you learning? As you
go into different locales with different people, is there a similarity?

Mr. SWANN. Well, what I learned in terms of my travels in visit-
ing with the agencies and doing work for kids is that it is very
much a struggle, that the children look for role models. I don't nec-
essarily mean that they are looking to athletes, looking to enter-
tainment people.

But you know, in order to break the moldif a child is born into
this world in less than fortunate circumstances, in order to break
the mold, they have to be shown a way to break that mold. And
they are looking for some positive reinforcement, some guidelines,
some model to emulate before they begin thinking confidently on
their own. And they are not getting it; they are just not seeing it
enough.
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You know, for a Lynn Swann that might be in the community
for one day and leaves, you know, who takes over? And it is not
necessarily a good role model.

Mrs. MORELLA. Would you not all agree that the media doesn't
make any special positive contributions when you have got pro-
grams like the Geraldo programs and all of these big scandal kinds
of things. They see these, not as fiction; this is real life stuffthat
is, the extraordinary, bizarre, aberrant behavior that is before
them.

Mr. SWANN. They see these things, but I think probably one of
the fundamental problems is that in our society of convenience.
and I think that is what we have become, you know, when it is con-
venient, even if it costs more, we don't care, it is convenient, so we
do itthe kids look at TV, they look around them and they see
what is convenient, they see what is easy to look at and digest.

They don't see the hours that congressmen and women and our
politicians spend preparing, researching, getting ready to do the
work that you do on the Floor, before you come to that point where
there is a press conference on an issue.

They have not seen, you know, the Michael Jordans or the Joe
Montanas spending hours as a child or as a college player and a
professional working day in and day out. They do not hear about
the sacrifices their families make, that when a Joe Montana doesn't
have a good game, his daughter goes to school and someone says,
well, your dad stinks, and she has to deal with that burden.

They don't see the hours and years of near starvation and work-
ing three and four jobs that people in the entertainment business
go through before they are, quote-unquote, "an overnight success."

We do not seeour youth do not see the work that goes into
being successful. They think you wake up, you turn it on, you get
a break and it happens; and it doesn't work that way, not for any
of us.

They don't know that the custodian who has been working at the
same job for 35 or 40 years is a productive role model, because he
had a goal and a job and he provided. He did it without the flash
and dance; he just did it day in and day out. He didn't have a job
that was putting his life at risk, or if he brought a child into this
world, working at something that maybe he wouldn't come home,
and his son or daughter would say, well, where is dad? Well, dad
is not coming home ever because dad is dead because he was sell-
ing drugs; or you know, dad or mom is in jail because they got
caught doing what they weren't supposed to have done.

That man is a role model, the people who are working day in and
day out, and we need to get that message over to our kids.

You know, we all fail. Every one of us here has failed at some-
thing. You know, our success in life and who we are is not going
to be determined on whether we won the election or whether we
won the game or made more money; it is going to be determined
on how we handled our failures. Did we pack it up and go home?
Did we choose an easier out?

We have got to teach our youth that it is okay to fail, because
there are other opportunities. Given that ability, let them know the
work that is required and give them the tools, then the day-to-day
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needs will be taken care of and we will produce a generation of so-
ciety that will live its dreams, not just its needs.

Mrs. MORELLA. That is beautifully flated. We live in an instant
society of I want what I want when I want it, and if I don't get
it, I will tear the place down; and that is what you are trying to
avoid.

I just want to ask Mr. Murphy and Ms. Watson if they have any
final comments.
MS. WATSON. Only that this is very, very important legislation.

The idea of developing our futurebecause that is what our youth
isneeds to be known among not just people here, but throughout
the Congress, that this is our future, our youth. We are not talking
about something abstract, we are talking about our future; and the
youth development legislation is very important.

Mr. MURPHY. I just want to say well done for getting it to this
point, and I hope you really use it as a catalyst to bring in other
parts of Federal funding and make it more cohesive.

Thank you.
Mrs. MORELLA. Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. PAYNE. Thank you. Let me ask a question or two, since I de-

ferred to my colleagues.
And I would like to also commend you, Mr. Swann, for the fact

thatgiving scholarships for ballet rather than send them to learn
how to paint a building or put a nail in. As you know, Booker T.
Washington had the big debate about whether every black person
should go to a manual training school that Booker T. had talked
about in those days; and DuBois talked about the fact that we
should give some scholarships for ballet, so to speak. And so that
is still a debate. But let me commend you for your work.

And all the things that we have heard a lot about, it is so dif-
ficult to get money for prevention or development, whichever you
want to call it; the old saying, the stitch in time saves nine, which
no one seems to say any more; with the crime bill, I know we have
strong proponents of the crime bill. It was basically, first, let's
build the jails, that sounds good; three strikes you're out, let's get
them in off the street; 60 death penalties, that will show that we
are tough on crime.

But I always said that that original concept of the crime bill
wasn't going to do anything to prevent crime; it was simply going
to take care of the criminal after the crime is done. Many criminals
needed to be taken care of after the crime was done.

But this whole question about prevention, just like I guess you,
Mr. Swann, would really know. They used to say the best offense
is a good defense. If you prevent them from scoring, you can't lose,
and then if you happen to flip one, in fact, they may win. And so
it is so hard, though, to get to this whole question of how to stop
things from happening.

Annually, for the last 24 years, we have -1 a Congressional
Black Caucus, which is a conference now. It i. Zs be a weekend;
it has gone now to a week. Our theme this I am the Chair
and have had the opportunity to suggest the , _erne and work with
itis Enhancing Our Youth for a Better Tomorrow. And one of the
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key components is dealing with just what you talk about,
mentoring.

We are going to have a mentoring luncheon, which I would like
for you to, if your schedule permitsit is around the 15th of Sep-
temberto participate in, because we are going to have successful
African-American role models with 500 or 600 youngsters from the
Washington DC. area, just to sit at the table with a person like
yourself or Representative Owens and other outstanding persons in
the country. We are going to follow through all year with this
group of 500 or 600 that are here already, that we will follow up.

We are also going to do research to find out what really works
and what doesn't work, and where the successes are, so that we
can make this available to participants that will be coming down
to 10,000, the people that usually participate in this, because we
can't think of anything as important.

We are even going to have a Youth Congress where we are invit-
ing young high school students from each of the congressional dis-
tricts where African-Americans serve to be a part of a Youth Con-
gress; and then young adults from colleges, several days later to
come down. So we are getting serious, very serious about this
whole question of prevention and development.

And I would just like to commend you for what you are doing.
And, of course, I know what Ms. Watson is doing, that is why

she is here.
Let me just ask a question of Mr. Murphy. He indicated that he

felt in the second of the three points you talked about that there
should be some local government matching funds. Now, we listened
to Ms. Watson talk about a bankrupt system of educational system
in her town of Jersey City. As a matter of fact, it was so bad that
it was the first school system taken over by the State; and unfortu-
nately, it seems as though the school system in my town may be
taken over in the next week or two.

But she has gotten no Community Development Block Grants
ever. Ms. Wallace gets a little pittance, because the harder you
lobby, the better you do with CDBG. I think it is the best way to
go. At least it gives cities an opportunity to do what they think is
best with the money; and it is not the strings that my colleague,
Mr. Ballenger, talks about.

You know, a city council and a mayor can put it wherever they
think it ought to go. Unfortunately, in all instances, you just don't
have thoughtful mayors and city council people. I served on a city
council. I know. And I also served as a county commissioner.

How do you prevent Ms. Watson, who is shut out already be-
cause they don't get any Community Development Block Grants, if
then you are asking the city not only to decide to give her some
funds, but you are asking the city to put up some money to partici-
pate in this program; what happens to a person like Ms. Watson
in Jersey City?

Mr. MURPHY. Well, I think if we put in the right kind of lan-
guage, and it would flow from Federal to State to local, county or
city, on some guidelines that would give her access to applying; and
in return, I think the localities have to give some money. And why
I think that is important is that I think we have to start thinking
we are building a developmental system that is as important as
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school, and that we have to struggle through that; and if we are
going to have that, if we believe that, then the local places have
to give money and think of this as important as school, as a police
station, as a fire station, and call this a youth station, if we are
going to have, you knowand that is the way I think we have to
start thinking.

Because if there is not local buy-in, the moment this money, you
know, maybe gets turned into something else or the appropriation
goes down, the local match will justsay it did, I should say, the
local match is still there; and I believe, knowing from some experi-
ences in New York, that once you create certain program models
out there that people like, it builds a constituency that will go to
the city council members and say, we want to keep this money in.
I mean, I know that it happened in New York this past spring in
a way that had you a Democratic council with a Republican mayor,
and there was so much lobbying done by groups like Ms. Watson's
that it did have an impact; they kept the money in there and they
thought of that as important.

And I know it is hard. On one level it is, you know, well, let her
raise the money. But that is hard, too, for Ms. Watson to raise
money, because there are only so many foundations, and you are
the favorite flavor of the month one year and then next year they
are on to something else.

Mr. PAYNE. Okay.
Mr. MURPHY. That is not an easy answer, but it is what I think

is real.
Mr. PAYNE. Well, if anyone else wants to comment, we certainly

will look into that.
As indicated, there would be a match required from the local

agency, but then to have the official city or county or State agency
to get involved, I just see that as being something of a problem.
But we had the hearing so that we can hear from the people in the
field, and we certainly will take all of your suggestions very thor-
oughly and carefully.

VVell, I think thatlet me just conclude by once again thanking
my colleague, Ms. Morella, for co-authoring this Youth Develop-
ment Block Grant legislation. Hopefully, we can get cooperation
from the other side of the aisle to see how we can work on the
funding.

Mrs. MORELLA. I think he is sold.
Mr. PAYNE. Well, that is great. He is for block grants as long as

it doesn't cost anything. We have to try to keep him on our side.
We are going to assign Mrs. Morella to Mr. Ballenger.

But once again, I thank the Chair, Mr. Owens and Mr. Martinez
for allowing us to present the bill at this time, and thank all of you
once again for your participation.

This hearing stands adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 1 p.m., the subcommittees was adjourned.]
[Additional material submitted for the record follows.]
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STATEMENT OF HON. ROMERO-BARCELO, A RESIDENT COMMISSIONER IN CONGRESS
FROM THE COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

Mr. Chairman, I would first like to commend the gentleman from New Jersey and
the gentlewoman from Maryland for introducing H.R. 4086, the "Youth Development
Block Grant Act of 1993." I agree that there is a pressing need to give our at-risk
youth greater opportunities to develop the physical, social, moral, emotional and
cognitive skills needed to excel in today's world. I also believe that we must offer
these young people a chance to get off the streets and encourage cooperative youth
development.

Today's inner city youth live in a war zone. They face day to day challenges deal-
ing with violence and crime in their community. At times these children are not
even safe in their own neighborhoods, schools or even their homes. The threat and
reality of violence is only one of the problems that today's children must endure.
They are also affected by teen pregnancy, child abuse, neglect and poverty. We have
a responsibility to provide these at-risk youth with the opportunity to strive for a
better future.

The "Youth Development Block Grant Act of 1993" targets low-income commu-
nities and supports the local initiatives which build on the strength of community-
based organizations. It would certainly seem that the best way to resolve some of
these problems with our at-risk youth is through community-based orgainzations.
With our help these children may be able to help themselves.

Mr. Chairman, I welcome these witnesses and the opportunity, to hear from them
and to take their personal experiences into consideration as we further discuss this
bill.
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